WACO Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, July 7, 2021 ~ 8:30am –2:30pm
Hotel Windrow – Yakima Room – Ellensburg, WA
AGENDA
Wednesday, July 7, 2021
8:30am

Call to Order – President Greg Zempel
Roll Call of Attending Members

8:35am

Nominee for Trustee At Large Position 5 – term expires 2022
Approval of Agenda
Approval of Minutes – March 9 & 10, 2021

Tab A
Tab A-1
Tab B

8:40am

New Business:
WACO 2022 Budget Proposal – Jerry Pettit, Lisa Gancel

Tab C

9:30am

Committee Reports:
Audit Committee – Adam Kick
• 2020 Independent Audit from Aiken Sanders
• 2020 IRS 990 Tax Return
Legislative Committee – Interim plans and progress, emerging
proposals – Stacie Prada

10:00am

BREAK

10:15am

Committee Reports (continued):
Education Committee –Upcoming training – Jeff Gadman
Conference Committee – Conference agenda, decision on
conference attendee vaccination status reporting – Melanie Terry
Nominating Committee – Jennifer Wallace

11:30am

Tab D
Tab D-1
Tab D-2
Tab E

Tab F
Tab G
Tab H

BREAK/LUNCH
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12:30pm

Staff Reports:
Executive Director – Strategic Plan Progress, WSACA proposal,
WCB Update, Summer County visits & Affiliate Conference Plans
– Jennifer Wallace
Deputy Director – Communications (KYCO), 2021 Scholarship
Update/Winners – Timothy Grisham
Member Services – Outreach, NEO – Melanie Terry
Finance/Operations – May 2021 Reports – Lisa Gancel

1:00pm

BREAK

1:15pm

Old Business:
Continued Development of Cross-Affiliate Policy Issues and
Position Statements – Jennifer Wallace

2:00pm

Other Business:
Updates from Affiliate Representatives and Trustees-At-Large

2:30pm

ADJOURN

Tab I

Tab J
Tab K
Tab L

Tab M

*RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee.
However, subject to RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of employment to be generally
applied within the agency shall occur in a meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action hiring, setting the
salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to
the public.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Jennifer Wallace, WACO Executive Director

SUBJECT: WACO TRUSTEE AT LARGE POSITION #5
_____________________________________________________________________________
BACKGROUND:
Tristen Worthen has resigned her position as Douglas County Clerk to take a
position as a Clerk with Division III of the Court of Appeals in Spokane. As such
there is a vacancy in the WACO Trustee-at-Large Position 5.
A call for nominations went out to the WACO membership May 21st encouraging
nominations by June 18th. One application was received from Ruth Gordon,
Jefferson County Clerk. Her letter of interest and resume’ are attached.
Per WACO bylaws and policy, the Board of Trustees may take action to accept or
reject this nominee for appointment to the Board of Trustees.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion and motion re: Ms. Gordon’s
appointment.
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OFFICE OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY CLERK
Ruth Gordon
P.O. Box 1220
Port Townsend, WA 98368
360‐385‐9128

June 9, 2021
Hon. Greg Zempel, WACO President
c/o Jennifer Wallace, Executive Director
Washington Association of County Officials
206 10th Avenue SE
Olympia, WA 98501
Dear Greg,
With this letter I respectfully submit my name as a nominee for appointment to the
position of Trustee-at-Large, Category 5 on the Washington Association of County
Officials Board. It is my hope to fulfill the remainder of my Douglas County
colleague’s term as the representative of counties with populations between 50,000
and 100,000.
I first joined the Board of Trustees as an At Large member representing small counties
very early in my tenure as a county official. During my four years on the board I
gained a wealth of knowledge about county government and met many valuable
mentors. Now, as I am completing my final term in office, fate has offered me an
opportunity to seek re-appointment to the Board as an At Large Trustee. This time I
hope to be able to repay WACO for the gifts it has given me over my county career by
bringing the value of my years of experience to the Board.
I sincerely enjoyed my service on the WACO Board back in the day. I would be
honored to use my skills in support of WACO’s mission. So, I humbly present to you
my letter of intent to seek appointment to the WACO Board of Trustees.
Respectfully,

Ruth Gordon
Ruth Gordon
Jefferson County Clerk
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RUTH GORDON
Jefferson County Clerk
P.O. Box 1220
Port Townsend, WA 98368
(360) 385-9128 rgordon@co.jefferson.wa.us

OBJECTIVE: WACO Board of Trustees, Trustee-at-Large, Category 5
My sincere respect for people combined with expertise in consensus group process and a life-long
penchant for creative problem solving are assets I bring to WACO. As a retuning Trustee I hope to
contribute my experience and perspective to assist WACO in strengthening its role as an effective
advocate for Washington’s county government officials and the work we all do for our constituents.

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY
Specialized expertise in organizational development; program and team management; development and
implementation of systems of electronic and physical access and archival storage. Top level strategic
planning and management experience. Forty years’ experience in the expert and professional use of
language to precisely convey meaning. Six years private sector experience as a successful division head
collaborating with diverse staffs. Sixteen-and-a-half years as an elected public official in local government.
Countless hours spent in meetings. Proven commitment to community activism. Clerk of the Year 2008,
2016. Washington State Democrats Warren Magnuson Award for Elected Official of the Year, 2010.
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2005-Present

Jefferson County Clerk

Port Townsend, WA

1983–2005

Registered Counselor

1996–2001

Internet Editor and Producer Port Townsend, WA & New York, NY

Port Townsend & Seattle, WA

BOARD EXPERIENCE

2014-2016

Washington State Association of County Clerks, President/Past President

2009-2016

Washington State Gender and Justice Commission, Vice-Chair

2007-2010

Washington Coalition for Open Government, Director

2006-2010

Washington Association of County Officials, Trustee, Position 4

2006-2012

Jefferson County Democrats, State Committee Woman

2005-2007

Steering Committee, Democracy for America, Jefferson County

2003-2020

League of Women Voters, Jefferson County Unit, various positions

1993–1995

Head, Site Council for Orca at Columbia School, Seattle

1991–1993

Executive Committee of Seattle Powerful Schools

EDUCATION

2009

Certified Public Official

1974-1976

University of Minnesota, Masters Study in Curatorial Science

1973-1974

Illinois State University, Undergraduate and Graduate Studies

1971-1973

Purdue University, BA, Summa Cum Laude, Phi Beta Kappa
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WACO Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
March 9-10, 2020
Washington Counties Building
206 10th Avenue SE
Olympia, WA 98501
Draft Minutes
Tuesday, March 9, 2021-Wednesday, March 10, 2021
Board Members Present:
Greg Zempel
President
Stacie Prada
Vice-President
Jeff Gadman
2nd Vice-President
Adam Kick
Secretary/Treasurer
Jerry Pettit
Immediate Past-President
Dianne Dorey
Past-President
Mike Lonergan
Assessors Trustee

Kittitas
Jefferson
Thurston
Skamania
Kittitas
Lewis
Pierce

Mary Hall
Peggy Semprimoznik
Timothy Davidson
Jon Tunheim
Eddie Cantu

Auditors Trustee
Clerks Trustee
Coroners Trustee
Prosecutors Trustee
Trustee at Large Position 1

Thurston
Lincoln
Cowlitz
Thurston
King

Linda Hjelle
Brenda Chilton
Lisa Frazier
Tristen Worthen
Grace Cross

Trustee at Large Position 2
Trustee at Large Position 3
Trustee at Large Position 4
Trustee at Large Position 5
Trustee at Large Position 6

Snohomish
Benton
Mason
Douglas
Skamania

Staff Present:
Jennifer Wallace
Timothy Grisham
Lisa Gancel
Melanie Terry

Prosecutor
Treasurer
Treasurer
Prosecutor
Auditor
Assessor
Assessor /
Treasurer
Auditor
Clerk
Coroner
Prosecutor
Licensing
Manager
Assessor
Auditor
Treasurer
Clerk
Clerk

Executive Director
Deputy Director
Finance and Administration Manager
Member Services Manager
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Guests:
Eric Johnson
Dr. Amanda Kemp
Kristen Mun
Jillian Gross Fortgang

Executive Director, Washington State Association
of Counties
Racial Justice from the Heart
Racial Justice from the Heart
Racial Justice from the Heart

1)
Call to Order, Roll Call, Approval of Agenda, Approval of Minutes
Greg Zempel, President called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. Roll call noted Rob
Snaza, Sheriffs Trustee and Josie Koelzer, Treasurers Trustee as absent.
Jeff Gadman 2nd Vice-President MOVED to accept March 9-10, 2021 agenda as
presented MOVED Mary Hall, Auditors Trustee SECONDED the motion. The
MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
Stacie Prada, Vice-President MOVED to approve the December 2, 2020 Board of
Trustees minutes. 2nd Vice-President Gadman SECONDED the motion. The
MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
2)

New Business
a. WACO Member Survey Results
Melanie Terry, Member Services Manager presented the 2021 membership survey
results. The survey re-affirmed WACO’s priority areas should be legislation,
education, and communication. The education and communication areas increased
in response rates over previous years. The Board discussed affiliate and county
participation rates and utilizing the outreach plan to increase engagement.
The Board went on BREAK at 9:48 am. RECONVENED at 10:00 am.
3)
Work Session: Implicit Bias
Dr. Amanda Kemp introduced work session coordinators Kristen Mum and Jillian
Gross Fortgang of Racial Justice from the Heart. The Board participated in an
implicit bias training provided by Racial Justice for the Heart.
The Board went on BREAK at 12:00 pm. RECONVENED at 1:01 pm.
4)

Old Business
a. Updated Member Outreach Plan
Jennifer Wallace, Executive Director and Melanie Terry presented the updated
Member Outreach Plan. The updates take into account the realities of a remote
workplace. The outreach plan is intended to amplify not only individual affiliate
needs, but cross-affiliate areas. Executive Director Wallace led the Board through
the objectives of the plan.
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2nd Vice-President Gadman MOVED to approve the current outreach plan, with a
review by the board annually at the board retreat. Linda Hjelle, Trustee at Large
Position 2 SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
b. Continued Development of Cross-Affiliate Policy Issues and
Position Statements
President Zempel discussed the need to identify areas and issues that multiple
affiliates can work together to address. The Board broke out into groups in order to
discuss potential areas of focus. The three groups came back together to further
discussions regarding policy issues.
Trustee at Large Hjelle MOVED to take the draft policy issues and position
statements to affiliates for review/discussion. Lisa Frazier, Trustee at Large
Position 4 SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
The Board went on BREAK at 3:00 pm. RECONVENED at 3:10 pm.
a. Updates to the WACO Policy Manual
Executive Director Wallace provided background on the updates to the policy
manual. Discussed how to handle a Conference Committee in policy as well as the
role of Past-President in current policy.
2nd Vice-President Gadman MOVED to accept the WACO policy manual as
amended, and to create conference committee language. Trustee at Large Hall
SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
The Board SUSPENDED the meeting at 3:34 pm. RECONVENED at 8:36 am.
5)

Other Business
a. Updates from WSAC
Eric Johnson, WSAC Executive Director provided an update on WSAC state and
federal legislative activities, as well as new membership, Covid response, and
current unfunded mandate litigation case progress.
6)

Committee Reports
a. Legislative
Vice-President Prada provided the Legislative Committee report. Timothy Grisham,
Deputy Director provided an overview of State V. Blake and its potential impact on
counties, as well as connection to the legislative session.
2nd Vice-President Gadman MOVED to accept the Legislative Committee report.
Trustee at Large Frazier SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED
Unanimously.
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b. Education
Vice-President Gadman presented the Education Strategic Action Plan. The
plan details the role and responsibilities of the Education Committee, provides a
mission, values, and alignment with the WACO Strategic Plan.
2nd

2nd Vice-President Gadman MOVED to adopt the Education Strategic Action Plan.
Trustee at Large Frazier SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED
Unanimously.
Vice-President Prada MOVED to accept the Education Committee report. Jerry
Pettit, Immediate Past-President SECONDED the motion. The MOTION
CARRIED Unanimously.
c. Audit
Adam Kick, Secretary/Treasurer provided the Audit Committee report and
discussed working with independent auditor for annual review.
Mike Lonergan, Assessors Trustee MOVED to accept the Audit Committee report.
Dianne Dorey, Past President SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED
Unanimously.
d. Personnel
Trustee at Large Frazier presented the Personnel Committee report. Discussed the
annual employee benefit and pay levels and policies. Personnel Committee
presented a policy change to use the prior year’s Seattle CPI for spring budget
development to identify potential COLA levels for the following year.
2nd Vice-President Gadman MOVED to adopt the amended Personnel Policy. VicePresident Prada SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
Immediate Past-President Pettit MOVED to accept the Personnel Committee
report. Vice-President Prada SECONDED the motion. The MOTION CARRIED
Unanimously.
e. Legal Brief Committee
President Zempel presented the Legal Committee report noting that there is no
current Amicus Brief activity following the dismissal of the Mason County banking
case.
Trustee at Large Frazier MOVED to accept the Legal Brief Committee report.
Tristen Worthen, Trustee at Large Position 5 SECONDED the motion. The
MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
The Board went on BREAK at 9:42 am. RECONVENED at 10:00 am.
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7)

Staff Reports
a. Executive Director
Executive Director Wallace presented the Executive Director report. Executive
Director Wallace provided a Strategic Plan status update. Executive Director
Wallace discussed need to explore options for the July 2021 Board of Trustees
meeting.
Trustee Lonergan MOVED to have July meeting at Hotel Windrow subject to
availability due to Covid. Trustee at Large Frazier SECONDED the motion. The
MOTION CARRIED Unanimously.
Executive Director Wallace discussed the Auditors RFP for services related to
conferences, legislative advocacy, and administration of the association in the role of
Managing Director. The Board discussed the size and scale of conferences and
WACO’s continued commitment to provide services to all affiliates.
Trustee Lonergan MOVED to instruct the Executive Director in collaboration with
the WACO Executive Officers to pursue a potential WSACA RFP for additional
services. 2nd Vice-President Gadman SECONDED the motion. The MOTION
CARRIED Unanimously.
b. Communication
Deputy Director Grisham presented the Communication report. Deputy Director
Grisham discussed social media reach and communications efficiency.
c. Finance
Finance and Administration Manager, Lisa Gancel presented the Finance report.
d. Member Services
Member Services Manager Terry presented the Member Services report. Member
Services Manager Terry discussed conference planning.
8)

Other
a. Updates from WACO Affiliate Representatives and Trustees at
Large

Trustee Lonergan reported that the Assessors are seeking assistance from WACO in
compiling salary study records. Trustee Lonergan discussed legislative session
progress.
Brenda Chilton, Trustee at Large Position 3 provided an Auditors’ update. Trustee
at Large Chilton discussed legislative session progress and the Office of the State
Auditor’s draft report regarding signature collection process and rejection rates.
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Peggy Semprimoznik, Clerks Trustee – provided a Clerks’ update. Trustee
Semprimoznik discussed issues with State v. Blake and the Clerks’ June 21
conference in Skamania County.
Tim Davidson, Coroners Trustee provided Coroners’ update. Trustee Davidson
discussed training shortages during Covid and updating the WACME webpage
using WACO’s infrastructure.
Jon Tunheim, Prosecutors Trustee provided a WAPA update. Trustee Tunheim
discussed reopening of courts in the state, and issues with State v. Blake.
Trustee at Large Frazier provided a Treasurers’ update. Trustee at Large Frazier
discussed legislative session progress. The June Treasurers’ conference may be in
person.
Grace Cross, Trustee at Large Position 6 discussed difficulty to have county group
category meetings, emphasizing that with Covid it has been increasingly difficult.
Meeting ADJOURNED at 3:05 pm.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Jerry Pettit, Kittitas County Auditor, WACO Immediate Past
President, WACO Budget Committee Chair
Lisa Gancel, WACO Finance and Administration Manager

SUBJECT: 2022 PROPOSED BUDGET

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
In 2020, the budget committee was tasked to develop several policies that would aid
in the budget process as it would give clear guidance as to the Board’s desires.
Therefore, at the October 2021 Board meeting, there were policies added 1) to
include an annual increase to WACO dues of at least the most current CPI-U
(Seattle) figure when drafting the annual budget, 2) a policy that would give the
Board discretion to opt out of the annual increase if deemed necessary, and 3) a
policy that outlines designated funds use and description, recommended value for
each fund and the length of time desired to accomplish the value.
SUMMARY:
The WACO Budget Committee drafted the 2021 Proposed Budget during the
months of March – May 2021. As we prepared this budget, we used the WACO
policies and the Board’s desire to build a sustainable financial plan. This budget
brought concern during its development as it became clear there would most
certainly be increases to our counties.
COVID-19 in 2020 brought us all challenges and change like never before and has
spilled into 2021! Some of those changes at WACO came with some financial
savings even though the workload was not diminished and being fully staffed for
the first time in 2 years. Significant savings in operations and travel were achieved
given reduced in-person affiliate gatherings and courthouse visits, the 2021
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legislation session being closed to in-person gatherings, and a virtual, rather than
in-person WACO Day on the Hill.
With a 2021 savings projection of approximately $40,000, the WACO budget
committee has taken that projection of unspent cash and is carrying it forward into
2022 in the operating fund and in designated funds to continue building towards
the goals established.
Looking back from 2009-2021 (13 budget cycles), the WACO Board implemented an
increase in dues only 4 times even though the expenses continued to increase. At
some point it was known the lack of small revenue increases would catch up…and it
has.
The Budget Committee looked at various options as it drafted the 2022 budget. The
1st scenario takes into account the new policy of following the CPI-U (Seattle). At
draft time, the rate was 1.4% which left quite a gap between revenue and expenses.
The committee asked staff to make reductions in expenses. Staff recommends
reducing 1) the staff benefits calculations from 4 staff accepting medical to 3 staff
accepting medical which equates to approximately $10k in savings, 2) not adding to
the state unemployment liability fund saving $1444, 3) move from annual
independent audits to biennial audits saving approx. $4k, and 4) reducing the
March board meeting from 2 days to 1 day saving approximately $3k. To fill the
gap, the committee is recommending a new revenue line for Membership Annual
Conference Registration. This line item will “pre-pay” for the WACO
elected/appointed members to attend Annual Conference, or to send a
replacement/substitution if the elected/appointed cannot attend. This line item
would be billed with the annual dues (quarterly or annually based on county
preference). The 2nd scenario uses a 9.6% rate increase to close the gap, and
attendees to conference would continue to pay separately for each registration.
The committee looks forward to Board discussion.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board discussion; Budget approval
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DRAFT - 2022 WACO OPERATING AND DESIGNATED FUNDS BUDGET SUMMARY

Fund # in MIP

2022 Projection Budget
as of 2021 0504

Funded only by Designated

Funded through County Dues and Other Income

6/17/2021
10

20

2022 Projection
Operating

21

2022 Projection
Unexpended

Operating

(Contingency)

Budget

2022 Projection
Reserve Budget

Budget

Donations

30

31

50

51

2022 Projection

2022 Projection

2022 Projection

Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve

Designated

Budget -

Budget -

Funds Budget -

WCB Maint

Tech & Equip

NEO Conf

42

2022 Projection
Designated
Funds Budget Prof Fees

Total to Fund all
Accounts in 2022

SAO/Legal

70

2022

2022

Projection

Projection

Scholarship

Networking

Fund Budget

Fund Budget

REVENUE
Carryforward Fund Balance
Membership Reimbursements

$10,000

$10,000

$5,000

$6,000

$9,000

$40,000

$942,611

$0

$0

$0

$0

$942,611

$103,200

$103,200

-$228,583

-$228,583

Contracts

$16,800

$16,800

Conference:Annual

$42,200

Membership ‐ Annual Conf
WAPA Allocation Pass-Through

Conference:NEO Attendees
Education
Rental
Miscellaneous

$42,200

$0

$15,000

$15,000

$4,000

$4,000

$27,600

$27,600

$6,953

$6,953

$900

$0

$6,500

Scholarship
Hospitality

$0
Total Revenue

$924,781

$0

$0

$10,000

$5,000

$21,000

$9,000

$969,781

$1,500
$7,400

$1,500

EXPENSES
Payroll and Benefits

$550,019

Conference

$550,019

$85,750

Education

$9,000

Professional Services

$5,875

Legislative

$35,600

$9,000
$5,875

$95,800

Operations/Administration
Communications

$121,350

`

$104,942

$95,800
$3,200

$108,142

$10,575

$10,575

Outreach to Membership

$5,000

$5,000

Insurance-Business

$4,800

$4,800

$47,000

$47,000

$6,020

$6,020

Travel
Membership and Subscriptions
Scholarship

$0

Hospitality

$0

WCB Improvements

$0

$675

$9,000
$800

$0

Tech Equip
Depreciation
Total Expenses
Budgeted Change to Net Asset
Est. 2022 Beg Cash Balance

$924,781

$0

$0

$0

$3,200

$35,600

$0

$963,581

$9,675

$800

$0

$0

$0

$10,000

$1,800

-$14,600

$9,000

$6,200

-$2,275

$700

$62,500

$4,958

$500,000

$76,550

$3,500

$30,000

$8,766

$2,500

$100

Est. 2022 Revenue

$924,781

$0

$0

$10,000

$5,000

$21,000

$9,000

$7,400

$1,500

Est. 2022 Expenses

-$924,781

$0

$0

$0

-$3,200

-$35,600

$0

-$9,675

-$800

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$62,500

$4,958

$500,000

$86,550

$5,300

$15,400

$17,766

$225

$800

TRX to Other Funds
Est. 2022 Ending Cash Balance

#
Fund $$ Goal:

1

1a

1b

1c

$500,000

$120,000

$10,000

$30,000

1d
$32,000 Recommended Goal Amount
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2022 PROJECTION WACO BUDGET SUMMARY (OP FUND)

Fund #

Dues w/ CPI 1.4%

Fully fund w/ 9.6% Increase in Dues

Scenario 1

Scenario 2

10

10

2022 Operating
Budget

10

2021

2022 Operating

Approved

% Change

Operating

Projection

10

Budget

% Change

Operating

Projection

Budget

2021
Approved
Budget

REVENUE
Carryforward Fund Balance

$10,000

$64,500 -84.4961%

$10,000

$64,500

-84.4961%

1.4000%

$1,018,838

$929,597

9.6000%

Membership Reimbursements

$942,611

$929,597

Membership - Annual Conf

$103,200

$0

$0

$0

-$228,583

-$225,427

1.40%

-$247,068

-$225,427

9.60%

Contracts

$16,800

$1,800

833.33%

$16,800

$1,800

833.33%

Conference:Annual

$42,200

$83,250

-49.31%

$87,825

$83,250

5.50%

$0

$0

$4,000

$0

WAPA Allocation Pass-Through

Conference:NEO Attendees
Education

#DIV/0!

$0
#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

$4,000

$0

$27,600

$31,715

-12.97%

$27,600

$31,715

-12.97%

$6,953

$10,823

-35.76%

$6,953

$10,823

-35.76%

$924,781

$896,258

3.18%

$924,948

$896,258

3.20%

$550,019

$528,926

3.99%

$550,019

$528,926

3.99%

$85,750

$75,600

13.43%

$85,750

$75,600

13.43%

Education

$9,000

$8,660

3.93%

$9,000

$8,660

3.93%

Professional Services

$5,875

$9,375

-37.33%

$5,875

$9,375

-37.33%

$95,800

$91,800

4.36%

$95,800

$91,800

4.36%

$104,942

$110,624

-5.14%

$104,942

$110,624

-5.14%

$10,575

$8,695

21.62%

$10,575

$8,695

21.62%

Outreach to Membership

$5,000

$4,138

20.83%

$5,000

$4,138

100.00%

Insurance-Business

$4,800

$5,000

-4.00%

$4,800

$5,000

-4.00%

$47,000

$48,000

-2.08%

$47,000

$48,000

-2.08%

$6,020

$5,440

10.66%

$6,020

$5,440

10.66%

$924,781

$896,258

3.18%

$167

$0

Rental
Miscellaneous
Scholarship
Hospitality
Total Revenue
Expenses
Payroll and Benefits
Conference

Legislative
Operations/Administration
Communications

Travel
Membership and Subscriptions
Scholarship

$0

$0

Hospitality

$0

$0

WCB Improvements

$0

$0

Tech Equip

$0

$0

Depreciation

$0

$0

Total Expenses

$924,781

$896,258

$0

$0

3.18%
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FUND 30
2022 WCB Maint Budget
in Process as of

2021 ACTUAL
REV & EXP

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /
PROPOSED

Percentage
Change from
Prior Year

BUDGET

Budget

a
x

Budget Committee NOTES
FUND GOAL ESTABLISHED IN 2020: $120k

(RED) = Deficit

Current Cash Balance in Fund 30
Current Cash Balance in Fund 30

T

85,000
85,000

76,550
76,550

(8,450)
(8,450)

Cash to Fund Expenses
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements
Cash added to Funds from Carryforward
Total WCB Revenue

0

0

0
10,000
10,000

Total Revenue + Current Cash

85,000

86,550

8,450

0

(8,450)

‐100.00%

0
8,450

0
0

0
(8,450)

#DIV/0!

Total WCB Expenses
WCB Cash Balance to Carryforward

76,550

86,550

REVENUE
#DIV/0!

annual replenish of fund towards next year's needs

0

EXPENSES
Improvements
WACOs 1/2 of Planned Improvements
Other

WCB Board approved postponing improvements in the
kitchen until further analysis
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FUND 31
2022 Tech & Equip Budget
in Process as of

2021 ACTUAL
REV & EXP

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /
PROPOSED

Percentage
Change from
Prior Year

BUDGET

Budget

7,500
7,500

3,500
3,500

(4,000)
(4,000)

Cash to Fund Expenses
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements
Cash added to Funds from Carryforward
Total T&E Revenue

0

0

0
5,000
5,000

Total Revenue + Current Cash

7,500

8,500

Total T&E Expenses

4,000
0
4,000

2,500
700
3,200

T&E Cash Balance to Carryforward

3,500

5,300

a
x

Budget Committee NOTES
FUND GOAL ESTABLISHED IN 2020: $10k

(RED) = Deficit

Current Cash Balance in Fund 31
Current Cash Balance in Fund 31

T

REVENUE
#DIV/0!

annual replenish of fund towards next year's needs

‐37.50%
#DIV/0!

details on Tab Prop Tax Inventory
details on Tab Prop Tax Inventory

0

EXPENSES
Supplies ‐ Technology and Equipment
Technology ‐ Computers, monitors, etc
Equipment ‐ chairs, furniture

(1,500)
700
(800)
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2022 ‐ Tech and Equip Scheduled Replacements

Asset

Year
Purchased

Equipment: Camera: FujiFilm s9400W
Furniture: Desk Chair ‐ Black Mesh
w/removeable arms

2015
?

CPU: Laptop: Dell Inspiron 15 5566

2017

Equipment: Monitor: HP 23inch 2310m 2010

Model Year

2015

Location / User

Serial Number

Office 3 / Conference Bins

4U016359

Office 3 / MSM

n/a

2017

Offsite / FAM

JSW06M2

2010

Office 4 / FAM

3CQ0332F9

Notes

Out dated, recommend
upgrade to DSLR w better
photo and video
mvd from 2021 to 2022
Laptop for FAM Remote
Access

Estimated
Replacement
Cost

Date Due for
Replacement?

2022

$

800.00

2022

$

700.00

2022

$

1,500.00

2022

$
$

200.00
3,200.00

2021
2022
2023

$
$
$

4,000.00
3,200.00
3,400.00
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FUND 50
2022 NEO Conf Budget
in Process as of

2018 REV &
EXP

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR CONF
ACTUAL

Percentage
Change from
Prior Year
Budget

a
x

Budget Committee NOTES
FUND GOAL ESTABLISHED IN 2020: $30k
to meet conf exp every 4 yrs

(RED) = Deficit

Current Cash Balance in Fund 50
Total Transfer/Carryover ‐ Other Funds

T

0
0

30,000
30,000

0
0

Newly Elected Officers Conference
Newly Elected Officers ‐ Attendee
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements
Cash added to Funds from Carryforward
Total Revenue Conferences

13,475
0
0
13,475

15,000
0
6,000
21,000

1,525
0
6,000
7,525

11.32%
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!

Total Revenue + Current Cash

13,475

51,000

4,650
22,689
142
638
1,961

5,000
25,000
0
3,600
2,000

350
2,311
(142)
2,962
39

7.53%
10.19%
‐100.00%
464.26%
1.99%

Total Conference

30,080

35,600

5,520

18.35%

NEO Conf Cash Balance to Carryforward

(16,605)
exp to WACO;
saved funds
didn't exist

15,400

REVENUE
2018=49 paid $275; 2022=50 @ $300
annual replenish of fund towards next conf

EXPENSE
Newly Elected Officers Conference
NEO Conf ‐ Facility / Equip Rental
NEO Conf ‐ Food / Catering
NEO Conf ‐ Facilitators / Speakers / Trainers
NEO Conf ‐ Reg / CC Fees / Whova Software
NEO Conf ‐ Printing / Supplies / Staff Lodging

Overall cost in 2018 pp = $196
2018=125 ppl + 10 ppl (special guests)
2%+.99 per ticket; 3% CC

increase over 2018 conf
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FUND 51
2022 Prof Fess ‐ SAO/Legal Budget
in Process as of

2021 ACTUAL
REV & EXP

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /
PROPOSED

Percentage
Change from
Prior Year

BUDGET

Budget

8,766
8,766

3,766
5,000
8,766

Cash to Fund Expenses
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements ‐ SAO
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements ‐ LEGAL
Cash added to Funds from Carryforward
Total Prof Fees Revenue

0

0
0
9,000
9,000

Total Revenue + Current Cash

8,766

17,766

Total Prof Fees Expenses

0
0
0

0
0
0

Prof Fees Cash Balance to Carryforward

8,766

17,766

a
x

Budget Committee NOTES
FUND GOAL ESTABLISHED IN 2020:
SAO = $12K every 3 years; LEGAL = $20k starting point

(RED) = Deficit

Current Cash Balance in Fund 51: SAO
Current Cash Balance in Fund 51: Legal
Current Cash Balance in Fund 51

T

(3,766)
(3,766)

REVENUE
0

#DIV/0!

annual replenish of fund towards next year's needs

#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!

SAO Audit every 3 yrs; next in 2023; est $9‐$12K

0

EXPENSES
Professional Fees Expenses
Prof Fees: SAO
Prof Fees: LEGAL

0
0
0
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2022 ‐ Operating Fund Budget

FUND 10
2022 Operating Budget
in Process

T
a

APPROVED
2021 BUDGET
7.8.2020

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /

Percentage
Change from

PROPOSED
BUDGET

Prior Year
Budget

x
a
b
l
e

Budget Committee NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

64,500
64,500

10,000
10,000

(54,500)
(54,500)

‐84.50%

N

projection of unspent 2021 funds

929,597

942,611

13,014

1.40%

N

0
(225,427)
704,170

103,200
(228,583)
817,228

103,200
(3,156)
113,058

100.00%
1.40%

N
N

county portions based on qty of ppl; increase of 1.4% (CPI‐
U Seattle)
258 Elected Officials Annual Conf Allocation

1,800
0
1,800

1,800
15,000
16,800

0
15,000
15,000

0.00%
#DIV/0!

Y
N

12 months based on 2020 inc.
yr round partnership

48,250

2,200

(46,050)

‐95.44%

N

Conference Registration Revenue ‐ Exhibitors

25,000

30,000

5,000

20.00%

N

Conference Registration Revenue ‐ Sponsorships

10,000

10,000

0

0.00%

N

93 ppl @ $350 in 2018; 112 @ $350 in 2019; 2020 data not
used; 2021 est 125@$365
2016=$20383; 2017=$19960;2018=$24275; 2019=$28000;
2020 data not used
2016=$5160; 2017=$8874; 2018=$10400; 2019=$5500;
2020 data not used

Total Revenue Conferences

83,250

42,200

(41,050)

Non‐Conference Education
Summer Ed/Training ‐ Members
Summer Ed/Training ‐ Sponsors
Total Revenue Non‐Conference Education

0
0
0

0
4,000
4,000

0
4,000
4,000

#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!

Y
Y

0
funded, sponsor to support training

31,715

27,600

(4,115)

‐12.97%

N

2013‐2018=$2129pm; 2019=$2204pm; 2020=$2296;
2021=$2643(actual $2296); 2022=$2300

Total Revenue Rental Receipts

31,715

27,600

(4,115)

Miscellaneous
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income / Restitution
Total Revenue Miscellaneous

9,023
1,800
10,823

4,553
2,400
6,953

(4,470)
600
(3,870)

‐49.54%
33.33%

N
N

based on projections
conservative projection based 2020 recvg of restitution

Total Revenue + Funds Carryover

896,258

924,781

28,523

3.18%

Prior Year's Cash Carryforward
Total Transfer/Carryover ‐ Other Funds

REVENUE
Members Cost Allocations
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements
Membership Income ‐ Annual Conf Allocation
WAPA Cost Allocations Pass Through
Total Revenue WACO Cost Allocation
Contracts
DSHS
Partnership Sponsors
Total Revenue Contracts
Conferences / Training / Education
Annual Conference
Conference Registration Revenue ‐ Other Attendees

Rental
Rental Income ‐ WAPA
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2022 ‐ Operating Fund Budget

FUND 10
2022 Operating Budget
in Process

T
a

APPROVED
2021 BUDGET
7.8.2020

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /

Percentage
Change from

PROPOSED
BUDGET

Prior Year
Budget

x
a
b
l
e

Budget Committee NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

EXPENSE
Salaries / Taxes Benefits
Salaries
Accrued Vacation

2,500

5,000

2,500

100.00%

Employee ‐ Exec Dir

129,725

137,461

7,736

5.96%

Employee ‐ Dep Dir

101,942

109,753

7,811

7.66%

Employee ‐ Mem Svcs Mgr

67,559

69,703

2,145

3.17%

Employee ‐ Fin/Adm Mgr

73,776

79,255

5,479

7.43%

375,502

401,172

25,670

6.84%

Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ Health Insurance

79,118

64,507

(14,611)

‐18.47%

Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ HSA Contributions
Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ HRA Contributions

12,000
0

9,000
13,069

(3,000)
13,069

‐25.00%
#DIV/0!

Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ Retirement
Payroll Taxes ‐ WA SUI

28,332
1,500

30,088
0

1,756
(1,500)

6.20%
‐100.00%

Payroll Taxes ‐ FUTA (n/a 501c3)
Payroll Taxes ‐ FICA (SS & MC)
Payroll Taxes ‐ Labor & Industries (Workers Comp)
Payroll Taxes ‐ Paid Leave & Medical Plan (PFML)
Subtotal Benefits & Taxes

0
31,038
888
548
153,424

0
30,690
912
581
148,847

0
(348)
24
34
(4,577)

#DIV/0!
‐1.12%
2.70%
6.15%
‐2.98%

Total Salaries, Taxes, Benefits

528,926

550,019

21,094

3.99%

Subtotal Salaries & Wages

B/S has funds to payout full leave balances; being
adjusted monthly
Anniv date based on Aug; Step 6 for 7 months; Step 7 for
5 months
Anniv date based on Nov; Step 5 for 10 months; Step 6 for
2 months
Anniv date based on April; Step 3 for 3 months; Step 4 for
9 months
Anniv date based on May; Step 6 for 4 months; Step 7 for
8 months

Taxes / Benefits
based on high deductible plan; 3 staff; est 4‐5% increase
projected as of 4.30.21
based on 3 staff on HDHP
60% of medical premium for 1 EE that declines health
coverage
7.5% of salaries
add to accrued liability to meet 26 wks of SUI max ‐ EOs
agreed to postpone for 2022
n/a as 501c3
7.65% of salaries
slight increase est
Premium= 0.001467 of EE salary
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2022 ‐ Operating Fund Budget

FUND 10
2022 Operating Budget
in Process

T
a

APPROVED
2021 BUDGET
7.8.2020

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /

Percentage
Change from

PROPOSED
BUDGET

Prior Year
Budget

x
a
b
l
e

Budget Committee NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

Conferences
Annual Conference
Annual Conf ‐ Facility / Equip Rental

22,000

25,000

3,000

13.64%

25,000

28,000

3,000

12.00%

6,000

6,000

0

0.00%

10,600

11,600

1,000

9.43%

1,500

1,550

50

3.33%

Annual Conf ‐ Registration Platform/App/Processing Fees

3,800

6,300

2,500

65.79%

Annual Conf ‐ Admin / Printing / Supplies / Staff Lodging

5,000

5,500

500

10.00%

200
1,500
75,600

300
1,500
85,750

100
0
10,150

50.00%
0.00%

8,660

9,000

340

3.93%

8,660

9,000

340

7,000

3,500

(3,500)

‐50.00%

Trowe/ClearPoint/PPA ‐ 401k Financial Fees

2,200

2,200

0

0.00%

AATRIX ‐ 941 / 942 / W2 / 1099 / 1096 Processing
Total Professional Fees

175
9,375

175
5,875

0
(3,500)

0.00%

Annual Conf ‐ Food / Catering / Awards Banquet
Annual Conf ‐ Outgoing President's Reception
Annual Conf ‐ Facilitators / Speakers / Trainers/ Honorariums
wTrvl Exps
Annual Conf ‐ Entertainment

Annual Conf ‐ Networking Supplies
Awards & Recognition
Total Conference
Non‐Conference Education
Summer Education/Training ‐ Members
Total Non‐Conference Education
Professional Fees ‐ Acctg / Auditing / PR
Aiken Sanders ‐ Annual Audit / 990 Prep

Davenport 2018=$13789; Murano 2019=$21891;
Davenport (Virtual) 2020=$1246; Murano 2021 $22000
bdgt
Davenport 2018=$27974; Murano 2019=$21791;
Davenport 2020 (COVID)=$0; 2021=$25k bdgt
$4k‐$6k allowed; Davenport 2018=$6502; Murano
2019=$5500; Davenport 2020 (COVID)=$0; 2021=$6000
2016=$8925; 2017=$1489(joint conf); 2018=$12800;
2019=$8652; 2020 (COVID)=$1k; 2021=$10k bdgt
2018=$1200; 2019=$1001; 2020 (COVID)=$0; 2021=$1500
bdgt
Prior year fees incurred 2015=$1519; 2016=$3419;
2017=$2081; 2018=$3450; 2019=$431; 2020
(COVID)=$1324; 2021=$3800 bdgt
2018=$8471; 2019=$1946; 2020 (COVID)=$0; 2021=$5k
bdgt
2019=$157.51; 2020 (COVID)=$0; 2021=$200 bdgt
qty of retirees determines need; includes Pres Awards

spent $10k in 2017; no training in 2018/2019/2020

2017=$6700; 2018=$6800; 2019=$6800; 2020=$7250;
2021=$7300 est
2016=$767; 2017=$2200; 2018=$2200; 2019=$1964;
2020=$3538; 2021=$2200
based on 2021 est
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2022 ‐ Operating Fund Budget

FUND 10
2022 Operating Budget
in Process

T
a

APPROVED
2021 BUDGET
7.8.2020

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /

Percentage
Change from

PROPOSED
BUDGET

Prior Year
Budget

x
a
b
l
e

Budget Committee NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

Legislative Advocacy
Contract ‐ Legislative/Advocacy

88,000

92,000

4,000

4.55%

3,800
91,800

3,800
95,800

0
4,000

0.00%

4,600
5,435
250
91,520
1,440
4,200

3,000
6,020
250
88,344
1,440
4,300

(1,600)
585
0
(3,176)
0
100

‐34.78%
10.76%
0.00%
‐3.47%
0.00%
2.38%

Property Taxes / B&O Taxes

300

300

0

0.00%

Fees ‐ Banking / EFT / Direct Deposit / Misc

600

500

(100)

‐16.67%

79
2,200
110,624

30
758
104,942

(49)
(1,442)
(5,682)

‐62.03%
‐65.55%

125
100

100
100

(25)
0

‐20.00%
0.00%

Phone Conf Service ‐ UberConference
Web Conf Service ‐ LogMeIn /GoTo Meeting/Zoom
Website Platform ‐ CivicPlus

250
1,200
4,290

250
1,800
4,425

0
600
135

0.00%
50.00%
3.15%

Media Sharing ‐ WSAC
Survey Service ‐ Survey Monkey
Website domains ‐ Blu Hosts ‐ Clerks / WACO
Social Media Archiving

1,900
480
350
0

2,000
425
375
1,100

100
(55)
25
1,100

5.26%
‐11.46%
7.14%

8,695

10,575

1,880

Legislative Sessions Support Waco Day Hill
Total Legislative Advocacy
Operations / Administration
Supplies / Printing
Software / Software Renewals
Postage & UPS
Office Lease
Telephone ‐ Cell
Equipment Rental & Maint. Agree.

License Fees and Permits
Miscellaneous
Total Operations
Communications
Video Sharing ‐ Vimeo
Cam License ‐ Sparko

Total Communications

M Shaw contract through 2025 ‐ HOLDs @ $72k py; David
Foster $20k (Jan/Feb/Mar/Nov/Dec)
2018=$2520; 2019=$3860; 2020=$3471; 2021=$0

based on 2020/2021 projections
based on current contract/service of softwares
2018=$6600; 2019=$6750; 2020=$6933; 2021=$7100
2015=$8700; 2016=$5437; 2017=$7653; 2018=$7274;
2019=$5783; 2020=$3522; 2021=$4200 est
Copier contract 9/2019‐9/2024
county taxes on personal prop including copier; DOR/OLY
B&O tax estimate ‐ $0
2016=$712; 2017=$208; 2018=$555; 2019=$641;
2020=$480; 2021=$485 est
Sec of State; DOL; Notary License (next in 2025)
used for items not in other categories; to balance budget

based on 2021
license reqd for green screen with live events such as a
webinar.
1 ‐ 800 line for conf calls
2020=$1200 (disc new user); 2021=$1300 bdgt
not under contract; 2019=$3570; 2020=$4004;
2021=$4208
2018=$1550; 2019/2020=$1800; 2021=$1900 bdgt
based on 2020 est
based on 2020 increased cost; Clerks/WACO
new exp for 8/2020‐8/2022=$4600 (pro rated 5 months
for 2022); 2023=$2300 est
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2022 ‐ Operating Fund Budget

T

FUND 10
2022 Operating Budget
in Process

a

APPROVED
2021 BUDGET
7.8.2020

2022 BUDGET
in Process

6/17/2021

VARIANCE TO
PRIOR YR /

Percentage
Change from

PROPOSED
BUDGET

Prior Year
Budget

x
a
b
l
e

Budget Committee NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

Outreach
Membership Outreach

4,138
4,138

5,000
5,000

862
862

20.83%

Total Communications

5,000
5,000

4,800
4,800

(200)
(200)

‐4.00%

Total Insurance

28,000

27,000

(1,000)

‐3.57%

2015=26765; 2016= $16500; 2017= $8600; 2018= $24200;
2019= $34130; 2020=$12k

20,000

20,000

0

0.00%

2016=$19400; 2017=$11800; 2018=$22600; 2019=$19000;
2020=$1500

48,000

47,000

(1,000)

2,000
750
2,000
400
100
190

2,000
1,250
2,000
400
100
220

0
500
0
0
0
30

Total Memberships and Subscriptions

5,440

50
6,020

580

Total Expense
OPERATING FUND ‐ DEFICIT/PROFIT

896,258
0

924,781
(0)

26,644
1,880

Insurance ‐ Business
Insurance ‐ WACO

Travel
Travel Expense ‐ Board
Travel Expenses ‐ Staff ‐ Contg Ed / Training / Travel
Total Travel
Memberships and Subscriptions
Assoc of Wa Cities
NCCAE / NACo
LOBBYGOV ‐ Organization Team Plan
3CMA
Thurston County Media
Society for Human Resource Mgmt
News Tribune

0.00%
66.67%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
15.79%

membership / survey sponsorship
2016‐2018=$500 py; 2019=$750; 2020=$1250
membership
City/County Comm & Marketing Assoc ‐ Tim
Media production/training services for nonprofits
HR Mem; ER resources like advising, forms, policies, job
description, trainings, legal compliance updates/notices

2.97%
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General Dues:
Basic Dues:
Annual Conf:
Maximum Cap%:
Maximum Cap$:
POP Dues less KC:
Increase from Prior
Year

2017
915,859
2000
25%
228,965
610,894

2018
929,597
2,000
-

2.5%

1.5%

25%
232,399
621,198

SCENARIO AT CPI 1.4% w/Conf Included
2019
2020
2021
2022
929,597
929,597
929,597
942,611
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,646 **

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
235,653
630,959

1.4%

Calculations based on OFMs Population Report
April 2021 OFM Population
County
Adams
Asotin

Benton
Chelan
Clallam
Clark
Columbia
Cowlitz
Douglas
Ferry
Franklin
Garfield
Grant
Grays Harbor
Island
Jefferson
King
Kitsap
Kittitas
Klickitat
Lewis
Lincoln
Mason
Okanogan
Pacific
Pend Oreille
Pierce
San Juan
Skagit
Skamania
Snohomish
Spokane
Stevens
Thurston
Wahkiakum
Walla Walla
Whatcom
Whitman
Yakima
Totals

All Counties
POP
%
20,800
0.27%
23,000
0.30%
209,300
2.69%
81,600
1.05%
77,550
1.00%
512,800
6.60%
4,200
0.05%
111,800
1.44%
44,600
0.57%
8,000
0.10%
99,500
1.28%
2,250
0.03%
102,400
1.32%
75,450
0.97%
86,350
1.11%
32,450
0.42%
2,293,200
29.53%
275,600
3.55%
47,400
0.61%
23,150
0.30%
81,250
1.05%
11,150
0.14%
66,250
0.85%
43,525
0.56%
22,075
0.28%
14,000
0.18%
917,100
11.81%
17,500
0.23%
131,800
1.70%
12,450
0.16%
844,400
10.87%
527,600
6.79%
46,400
0.60%
295,300
3.80%
4,275
0.06%
62,350
0.80%
228,700
2.94%
48,000
0.62%
261,300
3.36%
7,766,825
100.00%
100.00%

2022 Dues based on 2021 Actual OFM Data published 6.30.2021

Excluding King
POP
%
20,800
0.38%
23,000
0.42%
209,300
3.82%
81,600
1.49%
77,550
1.42%
512,800
9.37%
4,200
0.08%
111,800
2.04%
44,600
0.81%
8,000
0.15%
99,500
1.82%
2,250
0.04%
102,400
1.87%
75,450
1.38%
86,350
1.58%
32,450
0.59%

CAPPED
275,600
47,400
23,150
81,250
11,150
66,250
43,525
22,075
14,000
917,100
17,500
131,800
12,450
844,400
527,600
46,400
295,300
4,275
62,350
228,700
48,000
261,300
5,473,625

CAPPED
5.04%
0.87%
0.42%
1.48%
0.20%
1.21%
0.80%
0.40%
0.26%
16.75%
0.32%
2.41%
0.23%
15.43%
9.64%
0.85%
5.39%
0.08%
1.14%
4.18%
0.88%
4.77%
100.00%
100.00%

Basic
Dues
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
78,000

POP/Base
Share
2,398
2,651
24,127
9,406
8,939
59,112
484
12,887
5,141
922
11,470
259
11,804
8,697
9,954
3,741

CAPPED
31,769
5,464
2,669
9,366
1,285
7,637
5,017
2,545
1,614
105,716
2,017
15,193
1,435
97,336
60,818
5,349
34,040
493
7,187
26,363
5,533
30,121
630,959

**Conf
Value
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
2,646
103,200

Total
Dues
7,044
7,297
28,773
14,052
13,586
63,758
5,130
17,534
9,787
5,568
16,116
4,906
16,450
13,343
14,600
8,387
238,299
36,415
10,110
7,315
14,012
5,931
12,283
9,663
7,191
6,260
110,363
6,663
19,839
6,081
101,982
65,464
9,995
38,686
5,139
11,833
31,009
10,179
34,767
1,045,811
Total Revenue

Cost
Per Capita
0.339
0.317
0.137
0.172
0.175
0.124
1.221
0.157
0.219
0.696
0.162
2.180
0.161
0.177
0.169
0.258
0.104
0.132
0.213
0.316
0.172
0.532
0.185
0.222
0.326
0.447
0.120
0.381
0.151
0.488
0.121
0.124
0.215
0.131
1.202
0.190
0.136
0.212
0.133
0.135

** the $2646 conf value is calculated at: $400 per Elected Official x 258 Elected Officials / by 39 counties.
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General Dues:
Basic Dues:
Maximum Cap%:
Maximum Cap$:
POP Dues less KC:
Increase from Prior
Year

2017
915,859
2000

2018
929,597
2,000

25%
228,965
610,894

232,399
621,198

2.5%

25%

1.5%

SCENARIO AT CPI 9.6%
2019
2020
2021
2022
929,597 929,597 929,597 1,018,838
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
232,399
621,198

0.0%

25%
254,710
688,129

9.6%

Calculations based on OFMs Population Report
2022 Dues based on 2021 Actual OFM Data
published 6.30.2021

April 2021 OFM Population
County
Adams
Asotin

Benton
Chelan
Clallam
Clark
Columbia
Cowlitz
Douglas
Ferry
Franklin
Garfield
Grant
Grays Harbor
Island
Jefferson
King
Kitsap
Kittitas
Klickitat
Lewis
Lincoln
Mason
Okanogan
Pacific
Pend Oreille
Pierce
San Juan
Skagit
Skamania
Snohomish
Spokane
Stevens
Thurston
Wahkiakum
Walla Walla
Whatcom
Whitman
Yakima
Totals

All Counties
POP
%
20,800
0.27%
0.30%
23,000
209,300
2.69%
81,600
1.05%
1.00%
77,550
6.60%
512,800
0.05%
4,200
1.44%
111,800
0.57%
44,600
0.10%
8,000
1.28%
99,500
0.03%
2,250
1.32%
102,400
0.97%
75,450
1.11%
86,350
0.42%
32,450
29.53%
2,293,200
3.55%
275,600
0.61%
47,400
0.30%
23,150
1.05%
81,250
0.14%
11,150
0.85%
66,250
0.56%
43,525
0.28%
22,075
0.18%
14,000
11.81%
917,100
0.23%
17,500
1.70%
131,800
0.16%
12,450
10.87%
844,400
6.79%
527,600
0.60%
46,400
3.80%
295,300
0.06%
4,275
0.80%
62,350
2.94%
228,700
0.62%
48,000
3.36%
261,300
7,656,125
98.57%

Excluding King
POP
%
20,800
0.38%
23,000
0.42%
209,300
3.82%
81,600
1.49%
77,550
1.42%
512,800
9.37%
4,200
0.08%
111,800
2.04%
44,600
0.81%
8,000
0.15%
99,500
1.82%
2,250
0.04%
102,400
1.87%
75,450
1.38%
86,350
1.58%
32,450
0.59%

CAPPED
275,600
47,400
23,150
81,250
11,150
66,250
43,525
22,075
14,000
917,100
17,500
131,800
12,450
844,400
527,600
46,400
295,300
4,275
62,350
228,700
48,000
261,300
5,473,625

CAPPED
5.04%
0.87%
0.42%
1.48%
0.20%
1.21%
0.80%
0.40%
0.26%
16.75%
0.32%
2.41%
0.23%
15.43%
9.64%
0.85%
5.39%
0.08%
1.14%
4.18%
0.88%
4.77%
100.00%

Basic
Dues
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
78,000

POP/Base
Share
2,615
2,891
26,313
10,259
9,749
64,468
528
14,055
5,607
1,006
12,509
283
12,873
9,485
10,856
4,080

CAPPED
34,648
5,959
2,910
10,215
1,402
8,329
5,472
2,775
1,760
115,295
2,200
16,570
1,565
106,156
66,328
5,833
37,124
537
7,838
28,752
6,034
32,850
688,129

Total
Cost
Dues
Per Capita
4,615
0.222
4,891
0.213
28,313
0.135
12,259
0.150
11,749
0.152
66,468
0.130
2,528
0.602
16,055
0.144
7,607
0.171
3,006
0.376
14,509
0.146
2,283
1.015
14,873
0.145
11,485
0.152
12,856
0.149
6,080
0.187
254,710
0.111
36,648
0.133
7,959
0.168
4,910
0.212
12,215
0.150
3,402
0.305
10,329
0.156
7,472
0.172
4,775
0.216
3,760
0.269
117,295
0.128
4,200
0.240
18,570
0.141
3,565
0.286
108,156
0.128
68,328
0.130
7,833
0.169
39,124
0.132
2,537
0.594
9,838
0.158
30,752
0.134
8,034
0.167
34,850
0.133
1,018,838
0.133
Total Revenue
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Adam N. Kick, Skamania County Prosecuting Attorney,
WACO Secretary/Treasurer, Audit Committee Chair

SUBJECT: WACO AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
______________________________________________________________________________
Members Present:

Meredith Green, Kitsap County Treasurer
Heidi Hunt, Adams County Auditor

BACKGROUND: The WACO Audit Committee met by Zoom March 16, 2021,
April 20, 2021, May 11, 2021, and June 9, 2021, to review the WACO financial
documents reconciled February 2021 through May 2021 including:
1.
2.

WACO Bank Statements, WACO Board Financials, and WACO Treasurer
Financials
WACO Executive Director Leave Balances and Usage

WACO Financial Statements
Conclusion: It is the opinion of the WACO Audit Committee that there are no
concerns to bring forward to the Board.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion and motion to accept report, 2020
independent financial audit/statements and 2020 IRS 990 tax return.
Reminder: Meredith Green has put us on notice that she is ready to retire from the
audit committee but is staying through 2021 to assist in the transition. We
probably should start asking around to see if there is someone who is willing to take
Meredith’s place, because the entire committee is just three people, including the
Secretary/Treasurer.
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION
OF COUNTY OFFICIALS

T

Financial Statements

D
R

AF

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for 2019

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 29

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .............................................................................................. 1

T

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Statement of Financial Position .................................................................................................. 3

AF

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets .................................................................... 4

Statement of Functional Expenses .............................................................................................. 5

Statement of Cash Flows ............................................................................................................ 6

D
R

Notes to the Financial Statements ............................................................................................... 7

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 30

Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Washington State Association of County Officials
Report on the Financial Statements

T

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Washington State Association of County
Officials, which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

AF

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

D
R

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

1
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MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND WASHINGTON SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Washington State Association of County Officials as of December 31, 2020, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Report on Summarized Comparative Information

Montesano, WA

D
R

June 30, 2021

AF

T

We have previously audited the Washington State Association of County Officials 2019 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated June 15, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

2
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2020 (With Comparative Totals for 2019)

2020

2019

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

$

831,504
3,449
9,316

$

Other Assets
Investments
Total Assets

15,063
2,138

AF

Property & Equipment
Leasehold Improvements, Net
Furniture and Equipment, Net

759,009

T

844,269

743,555
7,959
7,495

$

15,547
3,846

17,201

19,393

152,829

176,467

1,014,299

$

954,869

$

20,611
26,074

D
R

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Vacation

$

Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions
Without Donor Restrictions-Board Designated
Total Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$

10,735
44,051
54,786

46,685

221,781
723,296
945,077
14,436

245,539
653,258
898,797
9,387

959,513

908,184

1,014,299

$

954,869

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended December 31, 2020 (With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Support and Revenue
Membership Dues
$
Contract Revenue
Conference Income
Rent Income
Investment Income (Loss)
Contributions
Interest Income
Satisfaction of donor restriction

Expenses
Program Services
Management & General
Total Expenses
Change in Net Assets

929,597 $
1,575
27,900
27,555
(26,439)
3,722
9,306
2,699
975,915

5,049

TOTAL

929,597 $
1,575
27,900
27,555
(26,439)
11,470
9,306
980,964

$

929,602
3,347
74,710
26,455
(11,583)
16,732
11,444
1,050,707

737,461
192,174

-

737,461
192,174

803,602
208,512

929,635

-

929,635

1,012,114

46,280

5,049

51,329

38,593

898,797

9,387

908,184

869,591

D
R

Net Assets at Beginning of Year
Net Assets at End of Year

- $
7,748
(2,699)

TOTAL

AF

Total Support and Revenue

With Donor
Restrictions

2019

T

Without Donor
Restrictions

2020

945,077

$

14,436

$

959,513

$

908,184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES OFFICIALS
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31, 2020 (With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Management
&
General

Program
Services

76,875
25,444
43,528
3,111
110
1,340
2,192
324
12,599
4,647
2,903
19,101
-

$

192,174

$

Total

Total

344,142 $
102,445
4,536
225,428
87,056
6,913
996
2,978
13,520
2,192
720
12,599
4,647
5,807
106,656
9,000

308,845
99,622
63,211
225,428
86,781
8,789
2,140
231
47,646
2,759
1,956
8,761
4,659
6,642
128,019
16,625

929,635 $

1,012,114

T

267,267 $
77,001
4,536
225,428
43,528
3,802
886
1,638
13,520
396
2,904
87,555
9,000

2019

D
R

AF

Salary & Wages
$
Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits
Conferences
WAPA Pass-through Dues
Lease Expense
Printing & Office Supplies
Miscellaneous Expense
Postage
Travel
Depreciation
Telephone
Technology
Insurance
Dues and Subscriptions
Professional Services
Scholarships

2020

Total

$

737,461 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31, 2020 (With Comparative Totals for 2019)

$

2019

51,329

$

AF

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash Capital Contribution to Building Investment
Purchase of Fixed Assets

D
R

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

38,593

2,192
26,439
4,510
(1,821)
(9,876)
17,977

2,759
11,609
20,746
661
2,612
(33,804)
(9,025)

39,421

(4,442)

90,750

34,151

(2,801)
-

(10,500)
(2,711)

(2,801)

(13,211)

T

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Investment Loss (Gain)
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Reimbursement Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation

2020

-

-

87,949

20,940

743,555

722,615

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

$

831,504

$

743,555

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash Paid During the Year for Interest

$

-

$

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2020
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE
The Washington State Association of County Officials (the WACO) was incorporated in the State of
Washington in 1960. The WACO has approximately 270 members. The membership of WACO includes
elected county assessors, auditors, clerks, coroners and medical examiners, prosecuting attorneys, sheriffs,
treasurers & comparable appointed officials in charter counties.

T

WACO provides its members legislative representation; education and training; informational publications;
day-to-day assistance concerning a wide variety of issues of importance to counties; local, state, and federal
agency liaison; an annual conference for training and to develop a legislative package; affiliate support; and
other forums in which to develop ideas and build consensus.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AF

Basis of Accounting

WACO maintains its financial records on the accrual basis of accounting. Therefore, revenue is recognized
when it is earned and expenses are recognized when the obligations are incurred.
Presentation Method for Financial Statements

Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donorimposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the WACO and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

D
R

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations. Includes public support and revenues which are not restricted by the donor and
currently available for the support of WACO.
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor imposed restrictions that may
or will be met whether by actions of the project and/or the passage of time. Generally, the donors
of these assets permit the project to use all or part of the income or gains earned on related
investments for general or specific purposes. Net assets are released from restrictions when the
purpose or time restrictions have been satisfied. The following represent net assets with donor
restrictions at December 31, 2020:
Program Restrictions:
Scholarship Program

$

14,436

$

14,436

Use of Estimates
Financial statement preparation requires estimates and assumptions concerning the value of assets, the
amount of liabilities, including contingent liabilities and revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ
from management’s estimates or assumptions.
7
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2020
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash on deposit in financial institutions with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Accounts Receivable

AF

Recognizing Revenue from Contracts

T

Bad debts have been immaterial in the past; therefore, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been
established. Receivables are considered past due if not collected within 90 days. The WACO does not
charge interest on past due receivables. As of December 31, 2020, management believes that all accounts
receivable are collectible.

D
R

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued amended guidance to clarify the
principles for recognizing revenue from grants and contracts with customers. The standard is
effective for annual period beginning after December 15, 2018. The guidance requires an entity to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The WACO follows these principles. The WACO if it receives an advance of funds from grants
or contracts, recognizes deferred revenue in the amount of the advance for its performance
obligation to perform services in the future. The balances of receivables and deferred revenue from
contracts are as follows as of December 31, 2020:
Accounts Receivable

$

3,449

Deferred Revenue

$

-

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if acquired as a donation, at the estimated fair value at the
date donated. Depreciation is computed utilizing the straight-line method and the following estimated useful
lives:
Equipment and furnishings
Leasehold improvements

3 - 7 years
39 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; major renewals and improvements are
capitalized. When items of equipment are sold or are otherwise disposed of, the appropriate cost and related
accumulated depreciation amounts are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in
income.
Advertising Costs
The costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.
8
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2020
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
Allocation of Indirect Costs
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or more programs
or supporting functions of WACO. These expenses include facilities, printing and office supplies, postage,
and dues and subscriptions and are allocated based a ratio determined by management to be appropriate.
Payroll and related costs are allocated based on time spent on each function.

T

Employee Benefits And Compensated Absences

AF

WACO provides its employees with paid annual and sick leave in accordance with its current policies. Sick
leave benefits are cumulative only to the extent of use for illness. Accrued and unused annual leave is
payable to the employee in cash upon termination. Unused balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019
totaled $44,051 and $26,074, respectively
All WACO employees are eligible to patriciate in their retirement program, a 401(k) plan. The amount of
the contribution is determined annually during the budget process and must be approved by the Board of
Directors. WACO approved a matching contribution of 7.5% of employee wages for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Once the contribution is made to an employee's 401K account, control over
the account is vested in the employee. Pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 were
$16,754 and $14,502 respectively.
NOTE 3 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

D
R

WACO, although it expects to receive current support to fund operations for 2021 and later years, has
$820,517 and $742,127 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position
dates on December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, to meet cash needs for general operating expenditures
of WACO. Financial assets available within one year consists of the following:
2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Donor Restriction Imposed

Financial Assets Available to Meet
Cash Needs Within One Year

2019

$

831,504
3,449
(14,436)

$

743,555
7,959
(9,387)

$

820,517

$

742,127

NOTE 4 – CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION
The WACO places its cash assets in federally insured institutions and limits the amount of credit risk by
employing different institutions. At December 31, 2020, the WACO had cash deposits, at one institution,
exceeding the $250,000 insurance limit provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in the
amount of $72,935.
9
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2020
NOTE 5 – BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS
WACO has a board restricted reserve that can be used for maintenance or improvements to the Partnership
(see note 6), anticipated expenses for annual events, and unforeseen expenditures. As of December 31, 2020
and 2019, the board restricted reserve was $723,296 and $653,258, respectively
2020

2019

500,000
90,000
30,000
9,000
19,000
75,000
296

$

Total Board Restricted Net Assets

723,296

$

554,958
55,000
15,000
9,000
19,000
300

AF

T

Board Reserve For:
Operations
$
Capital Expenditures
Conference
Audit Reserve
Earmarked for Unemployment Claim
Earmarked for Current Year Income
Other

$

653,258

NOTE 6 – INVESTMENTS & FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

D
R

The WACO is the general partner of Washington Counties Building (Partnership). WACO is a 50%
participant in the income/loss of the Partnership. The WACO’s invested capital in the Partnership at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $152,829 and $176,467, respectively.
Investment (loss) on the statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $(26,439).
Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets that the WACO has the ability to access.
Level 2: Inputs to valuation methodology include:
A. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
B. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets.
C. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
D. Inputs that are principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means.
10
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NOTE 6 – INVESTMENTS & FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT.)
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

T

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have
been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 20120.
Washington Counties Building: The equity method of accounting.

AF

The preceding method described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the WACO believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the WACO assets at fair value as of
December 31, 2020 with comparable totals for 2019:
Level 1

$

-

$

D
R

Washington Counties
Building

Level 2

$

-

$

2020
Total

Level 3

2019
Total

-

$

152,829 $

152,529

$

176,467

-

$

152,529 $

152,529

$

176,467

Level 3 Losses
Balance January 1, 2020
Capital Contributions
Realized Loss

Balance December 31, 2020

$

176,467
2,801
(26,439)

$

152,829

NOTE 7 – LEASES

The WACO leases office space that is classified as an operating lease. The lease is year to year. Lease
expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, was $83,200 and $81,000 respectively.
The WACO also leases a copier that is classified as an operating lease. The lease expired in 2020 and the
WACO currently uses it on a month to month agreement. Lease expense for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, was $3,856 and 5,781, respectively.

11
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NOTE 8 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2020:
Beginning
Balance
01/01/2020

Ending
Balance
12/31/2020

Additions

$

37,841
(33,995)

$

(1,708)

$

Net Furniture and Equipment

$

3,846

Leasehold Improvements
Less Accumulated Deprecation

$

Net Leasehold Improvements

$

37,841
(35,703)

$

(1,708)

$

2,138

18,886
(3,339)

$

(484)

$

18,886
(3,823)

15,547

$

(484)

$

15,063

AF

T

Furniture and Equipment
Less Accumulated Deprecation

Net property and equipment as of December 31, 2019, was $19,393.
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

D
R

No events have occurred through June 30, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued based on client facts and circumstances, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.
NOTE 10 - UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The WACO is a non-profit corporation exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is not classified as a private foundation.
The WACO files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The WACO is no longer subject to
U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2017. Currently, there is no
examination or pending examination with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).
As of December 31, 2020, there are no tax positions for which the deductibility is certain but for which
there is uncertainty regarding the timing of such deductibility.

12
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NOTE 11 – COVID-19 CORONAVIRUS

D
R

AF

T

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization officially declared COVID-19, the disease caused by
the novel coronavirus, a pandemic. COVID-19 has required The WACO to make adjustments to operating
practice and delivery of services. The WACO has continued to provide program services. Management is
closely monitoring the evolution of this pandemic, including how it may affect the economy and the general
population. Economic uncertainties and government mandates, which are expected to be temporary, could
have a negative impact on operating results. However, the related financial impact and duration cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time

13
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June 21, 2021
Washington State Association of County Officials
Officials
206 10th Avenue SE
Olympia, WA 98501
Washington State Association of County Officials Officials:

Specific filing instructions are as follows.
FORM 990 RETURN:

T

Enclosed is the organization's 2020 Exempt Organization return.

AF

This return has been prepared for electronic filing. If you wish to have it transmitted electronically to the
IRS, please sign, date, and return Form 8879-EO to our office. We will then submit the electronic return
to the IRS. Do not mail a paper copy of the return to the IRS. Return Form 8879-EO to us by November
15, 2021.
A copy of the return is enclosed for your files. We suggest that you retain this copy indefinitely.
Very truly yours,

D
R

AIKEN & SANDERS INC PS
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Form

8879-EO

IRS e-file Signature Authorization
for an Exempt Organization
For calendar year 2020, or fiscal year beginning

, 2020, and ending

OMB No. 1545-0047

2020

, 20

| Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EO for the latest information.
Name of exempt organization or person subject to tax

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

Taxpayer identification number

91-6017001

Name and title of officer or person subject to tax

JENNIFER WALLACE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Part I
Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you
check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, 5a, 6a, or 7a below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was
blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, 5b, 6b, or 7b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the
return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I.

6a Form 990-T check here
7a Form 4720 check here

|

b Total tax (Form 990-T, Part III, line 4) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Total tax (Form 4720, Part III, line 1) 

2b
3b
4b
5b
6b
7b

Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer or Person Subject to Tax
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that X I am an officer of the above organization or
I am a person subject to tax with respect to

AF

Part II

|

1,007,403.

1b

T

b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ~~~~~~~
1a Form 990 check here | X
b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
2a Form 990-EZ check here |
|
b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3a Form 1120-POL check here
b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5) ~~~~
4a Form 990-PF check here |
|
b Balance due (Form 8868, line 3c) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
5a Form 8868 check here

(name of organization)

, (EIN)

and that I have examined a copy

D
R

of the 2020 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are
true, correct, and complete. I further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the electronic return.
I consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the return to the IRS and
to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in
processing the return or refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, I authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial
Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation
software for payment of the federal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke
a payment, I must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment
(settlement) date. I also authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive
confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the payment. I have selected a personal
identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return and, if applicable, the consent to electronic funds withdrawal.
PIN: check one box only

X I authorize AIKEN & SANDERS INC PS

17001

to enter my PIN

Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

ERO firm name

as my signature on the tax year 2020 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with
a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned ERO to enter my
PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen.

As an officer or person subject to tax with respect to the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2020
electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies)
regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I will enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen.

Signature of officer or person subject to tax

Part III

Date |

|

Certification and Authentication

ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN.

91427919848
Do not enter all zeros

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2020 electronically filed return indicated above. I confirm
that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized
IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns.
ERO's signature |

Date |

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.
023051 11-03-20

13570621 790549 15928
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Form

8868

(Rev. January 2020)

Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an
Exempt Organization Return

OMB No. 1545-0047

| File a separate application for each return.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).
All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.
Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions.

Type or

Taxpayer identification number (TIN)

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

print
File by the
due date for
filing your
return. See
instructions.

91-6017001

Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.

T

206 10TH AVENUE SE

City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.

OLYMPIA, WA

98501

Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return)
Return

Is For
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ

Code
01

Application

Is For
Form 990-T (corporation)

AF

Application



0 1
Return
Code
07

02

Form 1041-A

08

03

Form 4720 (other than individual)

09

04

Form 5227

10

Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust)

05

Form 6069

11

Form 990-T (trust other than above)

06

Form 8870

12

Form 990-BL
Form 4720 (individual)
Form 990-PF

THE ORGANIZATION
¥ The books are in the care of | 206 10TH AVENUE SE - OLYMPIA, WA 98501
Telephone No. | 360-753-7319
Fax No. |

D
R

¥ If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ |
¥ If this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN)
. If this is for the whole group, check this
box |
. If it is for part of the group, check this box |
and attach a list with the names and TINs of all members the extension is for.
I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until

1

NOVEMBER 15, 2021

, to file the exempt organization return for

the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's return for:
|

X calendar year 2020 or

|

tax year beginning

, and ending

If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason:

2

.
Initial return

Final return

Change in accounting period

3a

If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrefundable credits. See instructions.

b

$

0.

3b

$

0.

If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit.

c

3a

Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions.

0.
$
3c
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment
instructions.
LHA

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.

023841 04-01-20

13570621 790549 15928
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EXTENDED TO NOVEMBER 15, 2021
Form

990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

OMB No. 1545-0047

| Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Open to Public
Inspection

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning
and ending

B

C Name of organization

Check if
applicable:
Address
change
Name
change
Initial
return
Final
return/
terminated
Amended
return
Application
pending

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY
Doing business as
Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

D Employer identification number

91-6017001

Room/suite E Telephone number

206 10TH AVENUE SE

360-753-7319
1,007,403.

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

OLYMPIA, WA

2020

G
H(a) Is this a group return
Gross receipts $

98501

T

for subordinates? ~~
F Name and address of principal officer: JENNIFER WALLACE
Yes X No
SAME AS C ABOVE
Are
all
subordinates
included?
H(b)
Yes
No
) § (insert no.)
If "No," attach a list. See instructions
501(c) (
4947(a)(1) or
527
I Tax-exempt status: X 501(c)(3)
H(c) Group exemption number |
J Website: | HTTP://WWW.WACOUNTIES.ORG/
Trust
Association
Other |
K Form of organization: X Corporation
L Year of formation: 1961 M State of legal domicile: WA
Part I Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: TO PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES AND
LEGISLATIVE SERVICES TO ELECTED OFFICIALS.
Check this box |

3

Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a)

if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

4

Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4

5

Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2020 (Part V, line 2a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

6

Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6

7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 

7a

AF

2

7b

Prior Year

8

Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h)

9

Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g)

10

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ~~~~~~~~

12

Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 

13

Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)

14

Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4)

15

Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ~~~

D
R

11

~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

0.
|
b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
18

Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ~~~~~~~

19

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 

20

Total assets (Part X, line 16)

21

Total liabilities (Part X, line 26)

22

Part II

19
19
4
19
0.
0.
Current Year

946,334.
78,057.
11,444.
26,455.
1,062,290.
16,625.
0.
408,467.
0.

941,067.
29,475.
9,306.
27,555.
1,007,403.
9,000.
0.
446,588.
0.

587,022.
1,012,114.
50,176.

474,047.
929,635.
77,768.
End of Year

Beginning of Current Year

954,869.
46,685.
908,184.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 

1,014,299.
54,786.
959,513.

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign
Here

=
=

Signature of officer

Date

JENNIFER WALLACE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name

Date

Preparer's signature

NIKOLE WELLS, CPA
AIKEN & SANDERS INC PS
Preparer Firm's name
324 S MAIN ST UNIT A
Use Only Firm's address
MONTESANO, WA 98563-4502
Paid

9
9

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions
032001 12-23-20

Check
if
self-employed

Firm's EIN

9

PTIN

P01409848
91-0870697

Phone no. 360-533-3370


LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

X Yes

No
Form 990 (2020)
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
Form 990 (2020)
Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

91-6017001

Page 2

X

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III 
1

2

Briefly describe the organization's mission:

TO PROVIDE SUPPORT, REPRESENTATION AND ADVOCACY FOR OUR MEMBERS WITH
PARTNER AGENCIES.

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Yes

X No

Yes

X No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ~~~~~~
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

507,497. including grants of $
9,000. ) (Revenue $
27,555. )
(Code:
) (Expenses $
COSTS OF OPERATION OF THE ASSOCIATION ARE REIMBURSED BY THE COUNTY
MEMBERS.

4,536. including grants of $
27,900. )
(Code:
) (Expenses $
) (Revenue $
CONFERENCES PROGRAM ENHANCES EFFICIENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BY
CONDUCTING WORKSHOPS AND SEMINARS ON TOPICS OF SPECIFIC INTEREST TO
COUNTY OFFICIALS AND THEIR EMPLOYEES.

D
R

4b

AF

T

4a

4c

4d

225,428. including grants of $
(Code:
) (Expenses $
) (Revenue $
WAPA (WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF PROSECUTING ATTORNEYS) PROGRAM PROVIDES
TRAINING FOR ALL PROSECUTING ATTORNEYS AND THEIR DEPUTIES SO THEY CAN
MAINTAIN THEIR LICENSE TO PRACTICE LAW.

Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $

4e

Total program service expenses |

032002 12-23-20

13570621 790549 15928

including grants of $

737,461.

) (Revenue $

)

1,575. )
Form 990 (2020)
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
Form 990 (2020)
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

91-6017001

Page 3
Yes

No

1

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "Yes," complete Schedule A ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1

2

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors ? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2

X

3

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

X

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

X

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I

6

X

7

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7

X

8

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Part III ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

8

X

amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9

X

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

10

X

4
5
6

X

X

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for

T

9

10

AF

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X

11

as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part VI ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

11a

X

b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

11b

X

c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

11c

X

11d

X
X

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ~~~~~~
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ~~~~

D
R

f

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional ~~~~~
Is
the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
13

11e
11f

X

12a

X

14a

X
X
X

investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

14b

X

15

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

15

X

16

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

16

X

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

17

X

18

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

18

X

19

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule G, Part III ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

19

X
X

14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,

17

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ~~~~~~~~~~
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

032003 12-23-20
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12b
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20a
20b

X
21
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Page 4
Yes

22
23

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and III ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

22

X

23

X

24a

X

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes," complete
Schedule J ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

24 a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? ~~~~~~~~~~~
c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease

No

24b

any tax-exempt bonds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~

24d

25 a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

25a

X

25b

X

26

X

27

X

28a

X
X

24c

Schedule L, Part I
26

T

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If "Yes," complete

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,

AF

27

creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III ~~~
28

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

28b

X
X

28c
29

30

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

30

31

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I ~~~~~~
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes," complete

31

X
X

Schedule N, Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

32

X

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, and

33

X

Part V, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

34

D
R

29

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M ~~~~~~~~~

32
33
34

35 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
36
37
38

35a

X
X

35b

X

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

36

X

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ~~~~~~~~

37

X

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 

Part V

38

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V



1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~~
1a
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~
1b
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? 
032004 12-23-20
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Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return ~~~~~~~~~~

4
2a
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ~~~~~~~~~~
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) ~~~~~~~~~~~

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ~~~~~~~~~~
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? ~~~~~~~

2b
3a

No

X
X

3b
4a

X

5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? ~~~~~~~~~

5a

X
X

c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit

5c

b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country J
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

6a

b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6b

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor?
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7d
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?

~~~~~~~

7e

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ~~~~~~~~~
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? ~
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?

X
X

7g
7h

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

8

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9a

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

D
R

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?

11

7f

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the

a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966?
10

7b

X

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
9

X

7c

f

8

7a

X

c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
to file Form 8282? 

AF

7

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

T

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?

5b

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9b

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

10a

b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities ~~~~~~

10b

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

a Gross income from members or shareholders ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

11a

b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against

amounts due or received from them.) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year

13



12a

12b

Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13a

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13b

c Enter the amount of reserves on hand ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O ~~~~~~~~~
15

14a
14b

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

15

X

16

X

If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?

~~~~~~

X

If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2020)
032005 12-23-20
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Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI



X

Section A. Governing Body and Management
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year ~~~~~~
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing

body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.
1b
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent ~~~~~~
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
3
4
5

Yes

19

1a

19

officer, director, trustee, or key employee?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

2

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? ~~~~~
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? ~~~~~~~~~

3

X

4
5

Did the organization have members or stockholders? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6

X

7a

X

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7b

X

8a

X
X

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

AF

9

T

6

8

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O 

Section B. Policies

No

8b

X
X
X

X

9

(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes
10a

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

10b

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? ~~~~~~
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," describe

12b

D
R

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,

11a

X

12a

X
X

in Schedule O how this was done ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

12c

13

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13

14

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

14

15

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Other officers or key employees of the organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

15a
15b

No

X

X
X
X
X
X

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

16a

X

b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 

Section C. Disclosure
17
18

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed

16b

JWA

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

X Own website

19

Another's website

X Upon request

Other (explain on Schedule O)

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

20

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records

THE ORGANIZATION - 360-753-7319
206 10TH AVENUE SE, OLYMPIA, WA

032006 12-23-20
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Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Page 7



Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
¥ List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
¥ List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."
¥ List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
¥ List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
¥ List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.
(C)
Position

032007 12-23-20
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(D)
Reportable
compensation
from
the
organization
(W-2/1099-MISC)

40.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

(E)
Reportable
compensation
from related
organizations
(W-2/1099-MISC)

T

(do not check more than one
box, unless person is both an
officer and a director/trustee)

(F)
Estimated
amount of
other
compensation
from the
organization
and related
organizations

X

121,096.

0.

20,790.

X

X

0.

0.

0.

X

X

0.

0.

0.

X

X

0.

0.

0.

X

X

0.

0.

0.

X

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.
990
Form
(2020)

D
R

(1) JENNIFER WALLACE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(2) GREG ZEMPEL
PRESIDENT
(3) JERRY PETTIT
IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT
(4) STACIE PRADA
VICE PRESIDENT
(5) JEFF GADMAN
2ND VICE PRESIDENT
(6) ADAM KICK
SECRETARY/TREASURER
(7) MIKE LONERGAN
TRUSTEE
(8) TIM DAVIDSON
TRUSTEE
(9) PEGGY SEMPRIMOZNIK
TRUSTEE
(10) JON TUNHEIM
TRUSTEE
(11) JOSIE KOELZER
TRUSTEE
(12) ROB SNAZA
TRUSTEE
(13) MARY HALL
TRUSTEE
(14) BRENDA CHILTON
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE
(15) EDDIE CANTU
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE
(16) TRISTEN WORTHEN
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE
(17) LISA FRAZIER
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE

(B)
Average
hours per
week
(list any
hours for
related
organizations
below
line)

AF

(A)
Name and title
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Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(B)
(C)
(A)
(D)
(E)
Position
Average
Name and title
Reportable
Reportable
(do not check more than one
hours per
box, unless person is both an
compensation
compensation
officer and a director/trustee)
week
from
from related
(list any
the
organizations
hours for
organization
(W-2/1099-MISC)
related
(W-2/1099-MISC)
organizations
below
line)

1.00

(18) GRACE CROSS
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE
(19) LINDA HJELLE
TRUSTEE-AT-LARGE
(20) DIANNE DOREY
PAST PRESIDENT

1.00

(F)
Estimated
amount of
other
compensation
from the
organization
and related
organizations

X

0.

0.

0.

X

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

X

X

AF

T

1.00

Page 8

1b Subtotal ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ |
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ~~~~~~~~~~ |
2

d Total (add lines 1b and 1c)  |
Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable

4

0.
0.
0.

20,790.
0.
20,790.
1

|

D
R

compensation from the organization
3

121,096.
0.
121,096.

Yes

Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

X

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4

X

5

X

5

Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person 
Section B. Independent Contractors
1

No

Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
(A)
Name and business address

2

(B)
Description of services

NONE

(C)
Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization |

0

Form 990 (2020)
032008 12-23-20
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Page 9

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII 
(A)
(B)
(C)
(D)
Revenue excluded
Related or exempt
Unrelated
Total revenue
function revenue business revenue from tax under
sections 512 - 514
1a

c Fundraising events ~~~~~~~
d Related organizations ~~~~~

1c

similar amounts not included above ~

1f

1b

1d
e Government grants (contributions) 1e
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and

929,597.

11,470.

g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f
1g $
h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 
2 a
b

CONFERENCES
CONTRACT REVENUE

900099
900099

c
d
e
f

941,067.

|

Business Code

All other program service revenue ~~~~~
|

27,900.
1,575.

29,475.

AF

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f 
Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
3
other similar amounts) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

27,900.
1,575.

T

1 a Federated campaigns ~~~~~
b Membership dues ~~~~~~~

|

4

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds

5

Royalties  |
(i) Real
(ii) Personal

6 a Gross rents ~~~~~
b Less: rental expenses ~

9,306.

9,306.

|

6a

6b
c Rental income or (loss)
6c
d Net rental income or (loss)  |
(i) Securities
(ii) Other
7 a Gross amount from sales of
assets other than inventory 7a

D
R

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses ~~~

7b
c Gain or (loss) ~~~~~ 7c
d Net gain or (loss) 

|

8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
including $
of
contributions reported on line 1c). See

Part IV, line 18 ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 8a
b Less: direct expenses ~~~~~~~~~ 8b
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events 

|

9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line 19 ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 9a
b Less: direct expenses ~~~~~~~~ 9b

c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities  |
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 10a 27,555.
b Less: cost of goods sold ~~~~~~~ 10b
c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory 

0.
|

27,555.

27,555.

1,007,403.

57,030.

Business Code

11 a
b
c
d All other revenue ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d 
12

Total revenue. See instructions 

032009 12-23-20
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|
|

0.

9,306.
Form 990 (2020)
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
Form 990 (2020)
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses

91-6017001

Page 10

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX 
(A)
(B)
(C)
(D)
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b,
Total expenses
Program service
Management and
Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.
expenses
general expenses
expenses
Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations

1

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21

~

9,000.

9,000.

153,018.

137,716.

Grants and other assistance to domestic

2

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ~~~~~~~
Grants and other assistance to foreign

3

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 ~~~
4

Benefits paid to or for members ~~~~~~~

5

Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees ~~~~~~~~

15,302.

Compensation not included above to disqualified

6

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

~~~

7

Other salaries and wages ~~~~~~~~~~

8

Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
Other employee benefits ~~~~~~~~~~
Payroll taxes ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

211,915.

148,263.

63,652.

16,754.
37,238.
27,663.

12,118.
24,688.
21,484.

4,636.
12,550.
6,179.

AF

9
10

T

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and

Fees for services (nonemployees):

11

a Management ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Legal ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
c Accounting ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Lobbying ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

8,234.

10,867.
87,555.

87,555.

8,234.
10,867.

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees ~~~~~~~~
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch O.)
Advertising and promotion ~~~~~~~~~

13

Office expenses ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

14

Information technology ~~~~~~~~~~~
Royalties ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9,890.
12,599.

5,439.

4,451.
12,599.

87,056.
13,520.

43,528.
13,520.

43,528.

4,536.

4,536.

D
R

12

15

Occupancy ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Travel ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

16
17
18

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials ~

19

Conferences, conventions, and meetings ~~

20

Interest

21

Payments to affiliates ~~~~~~~~~~~~

22

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization ~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

23

Insurance

24

Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

WAPA PASSTHROUGH DUES
b DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
c MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE
d TELEPHONE
a

e All other expenses
25
26

Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e
Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

2,192.
4,647.

2,192.
4,647.

225,428.
5,807.
996.
720.

225,428.
2,904.
886.
396.

2,903.
110.
324.

929,635.

737,461.

192,174.

0.

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here

|

if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

032010 12-23-20

13570621 790549 15928
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Form 990 (2020)

Part X

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

91-6017001

Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X 
(A)
Beginning of year
1

Cash - non-interest-bearing ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2

Savings and temporary cash investments ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

Pledges and grants receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4

Accounts receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,

85,455.
658,100.
7,959.

(B)
End of year
1
2
3
4

177,538.
653,966.
3,449.

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons
6

~~~~~~~~~

5

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
~~

6

7

under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

Notes and loans receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7

8

Inventories for sale or use ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

b Less: accumulated depreciation

~~~~~~

56,727.
39,526.

10a

8
9

T

10 a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D ~~~

7,495.

10b

19,393. 10c

11

Investments - publicly traded securities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

12

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

13

14

Intangible assets ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

14

15

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

16
17

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

954,869. 16
46,685. 17

18

Grants payable ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

18

19

Deferred revenue ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

19

20

Tax-exempt bond liabilities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

20

21

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D ~~~~
Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,

21

AF

22

11

176,467. 12

15

9,316.
17,201.
152,829.

1,014,299.
54,786.

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons

~~~~~~~~~

22

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties

~~~~~~

23

24

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~~~

24

25

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third

D
R

23

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

26

27
28

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here | X
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
Net assets without donor restrictions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Net assets with donor restrictions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here

25

46,685. 26

54,786.

898,797. 27
9,387. 28

945,077.
14,436.

|

29

and complete lines 29 through 33.
Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

29

30

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund ~~~~~~~~

30

31

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds

32

Total net assets or fund balances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

33

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances

032011 12-23-20

13570621 790549 15928

~~~~



31

908,184. 32
954,869. 33

959,513.
1,014,299.
Form 990 (2020)
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
Form 990 (2020)
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

91-6017001

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI 

1,007,403.
929,635.
77,768.
908,184.
-26,439.

1

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1

2

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2

3

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

4

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) ~~~~~~~~~~

4

5

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

6

Donated services and use of facilities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6

7

Investment expenses ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7

8

Prior period adjustments ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

8

9

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O)

9

0.

10

959,513.

10

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
column (B)) 

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII
Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990:

Cash

X Accrual

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.

2 a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Consolidated basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:

X Separate basis

Consolidated basis

X

2a

Both consolidated and separate basis

AF

Separate basis

X
No

Other

T

1


Yes

2b

X

2c

X

Both consolidated and separate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Act and OMB Circular A-133? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

D
R

b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 

032012 12-23-20

13570621 790549 15928

3a

X

3b
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

2020

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
Employer identification number
OFFICIALS
91-6017001
Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

Name of the organization

Part I

OMB No. 1545-0047

Public Charity Status and Public Support

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

1
2

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,

3
4

city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

5

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)
7
8
9

X

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

T

6

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

AF

10

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
11
12

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)
An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) . See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a

organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

D
R

b

Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported

c

d

e

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.
Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III
functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported
organization

(ii) EIN

(iii) Type of organization
(described on lines 1-10
above (see instructions))

(iv) Is the organization listed
in your governing document?

Yes

Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

13570621 790549 15928

No

(v) Amount of monetary
support (see instructions)

032021 01-25-21

(vi) Amount of other
support (see instructions)
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
91-6017001 Page 2
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 OFFICIALS
Part II
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) |
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") ~~

(a) 2016

(b) 2017

(c) 2018

(d) 2019

(e) 2020

(f) Total

893,521. 915,858. 968,997. 946,334. 941,067. 4665777.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf ~~~~

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 ~~~
5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f) ~~~~~~~~~~~~
Subtract line 5 from line 4.

Section B. Total Support

AF

6 Public support.

893,521. 915,858. 968,997. 946,334. 941,067. 4665777.

T

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge ~

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) |
7 Amounts from line 4 ~~~~~~~

(a) 2016

(b) 2017

(c) 2018

(d) 2019

(e) 2020

4665777.
(f) Total

893,521. 915,858. 968,997. 946,334. 941,067. 4665777.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,

and income from similar sources ~

26,692.

29,105.

22,675.

37,899.

36,861. 153,232.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

~

D
R

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~

3,261.

2,204.

5,465.
4824474.
357,351.

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
12
13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2020 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) ~~~~~~~~~~~~
15 Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

14
15

|

96.71
96.83

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

|

b 33 1/3% support test - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

|

%
%

X

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ |
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

~~~~~~~~

|

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions  |
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
91-6017001 Page 3
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 OFFICIALS
Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) |
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") ~~

(a) 2016

(b) 2017

(c) 2018

(d) 2019

(e) 2020

(f) Total

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose
3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or business under section 513 ~~~~~

T

4 Tax revenues levied for the organization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf ~~~~
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge ~

AF

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 ~~~
7 a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year ~~~~~~

c Add lines 7a and 7b ~~~~~~~
8 Public support.

(Subtract line 7c from line 6.)

Section B. Total Support

(a) 2016

(b) 2017

(c) 2018

(d) 2019

(e) 2020

(f) Total

D
R

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) |
9 Amounts from line 6 ~~~~~~~
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources ~
b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 ~~~~

c Add lines 10a and 10b ~~~~~~
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on ~~~~~~~
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here 

|

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2020 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ~~~~~~~~~~~
16 Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part III, line 15 

15

%

16

%

17 Investment income percentage for 2020 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ~~~~~~~~
18 Investment income percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part III, line 17 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

17

%

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

18
19 a 33 1/3% support tests - 2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~

%
|

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~ |
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions 
032023 01-25-21

13570621 790549 15928
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
91-6017001 Page 4
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 OFFICIALS
Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
Yes
1

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.
2

No

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
1

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

3b

T

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If
"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

AF

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

3c
4a

4b

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

D
R

b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

5a
5b

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to

5c

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in

7

8

Part VI.
Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor

6

(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

7

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

9a

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

9b

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer line 10b below.

10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)
032024 01-25-21
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Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)
11

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?
b A family member of a person described in line 11a above?
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in line 11a or 11b above? If "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide
detail in Part VI.

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations
1

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

2

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in

T

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

11a
11b
11c

1

2

Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control

AF

1

Yes
Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations
1

1

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2

D
R

the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3

1

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
2

By reason of the relationship described in line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

supported organizations played in this regard.

3

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
a
The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
b
The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).
c

2

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.
a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,

Yes

No

how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

2a

b Did the activities described in line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement,
one or more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in
Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement.
3

2b

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part VI.

3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.
032025 01-25-21
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Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1

Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part VI ). See instructions.
All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income
1

Net short-term capital gain

1

2

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

2

3

Other gross income (see instructions)

3

4

Add lines 1 through 3.

4

5

Depreciation and depletion

5

6

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

6

7

Other expenses (see instructions)

7

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

8

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount
Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see

T

1

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securities
b Average monthly cash balances

1a

1b

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

1c

AF

1d

e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI ):
2

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

2

3

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

3

4

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

4

5

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

5

6

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

6

7

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

7

8

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

8

D
R

Section C - Distributable Amount
1

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

1

2

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

2

3

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

3

4

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

4

5

Income tax imposed in prior year

5

6

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

7

Current Year

6
Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization (see

instructions).

032026 01-25-21
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Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D - Distributions
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

Current Year
1

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

2

organizations, in excess of income from activity

2

3

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

3

4

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

4

5

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part VI)
Other distributions ( describe in Part VI ). See instructions.

5
7

8

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

9

Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6

6
7

6

8
9

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

10

10
(i)

1

Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6

2

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2020 (reasonable cause required - explain in Part VI ). See instructions.

Excess Distributions

a From 2015
b From 2016
c From 2017
d From 2018
e From 2019
f Total of lines 3a through 3e

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2020

AF

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2020

3

(ii)
Underdistributions
Pre-2020

T

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h Applied to 2020 distributable amount

4

i

Carryover from 2015 not applied (see instructions)

j

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.
Distributions for 2020 from Section D,
line 7:

$

D
R

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2020 distributable amount

5

c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.
Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2020, if

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6

Remaining underdistributions for 2020. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in

Part VI . See instructions.

7
8

Excess distributions carryover to 2021. Add lines 3j
and 4c.
Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2016
b Excess from 2017
c Excess from 2018
d Excess from 2019
e Excess from 2020

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part III, line 12;

D
R

AF

T

Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)
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Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities

SCHEDULE C
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No. 1545-0047

For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527

J Complete if the organization is described below. J Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

2020

Open to Public
Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
¥ Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.
¥ Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part I-B.
¥ Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
¥ Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-A. Do not complete Part II-B.
¥ Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-B. Do not complete Part II-A.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (See separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy
Tax) (See separate instructions), then
¥ Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations: Complete Part III.
Name of organization
WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION

T

Part I-A

OF COUNTY O
Employer identification number
OFFICIALS
91-6017001
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV.
2 Political campaign activity expenditures ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities

J$

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

AF

Part I-B

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 ~~~~~~~~~~

J$
J$

3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
4a Was a correction made? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b If "Yes," describe in Part IV.

Part I-C
1

Yes

No

Yes

No

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities ~~~~ J $

2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527
exempt function activities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

D
R

3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
line 17b ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

J$
J$

4 Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Yes
5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing organization
made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter the amount of political
contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a separate segregated fund or a
political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.
(a) Name

(b) Address

(c) EIN

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

No

(d) Amount paid from
(e) Amount of political
contributions received and
filing organization's
promptly and directly
funds. If none, enter -0-.
delivered to a separate
political organization.
If none, enter -0-.

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
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Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under
section 501(h)).

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020

Part II-A
A Check
B Check

J
J

if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,
expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
if the filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply.
(a) Filing
organization's
totals

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures
(The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred.)
1 a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying) ~~~~~~~~~~
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) ~~~~~~~~~~~

87,555.
87,555.
842,080.
929,635.
164,445.

c Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Other exempt purpose expenditures ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
f Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both columns.
The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
20% of the amount on line 1e.

Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000

$100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.

Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000

$175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.

Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000

$225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.

Over $17,000,000

$1,000,000.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

AF

g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f)
h Subtract line 1g from line 1a. If zero or less, enter -0-

T

If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is:
Not over $500,000

i Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zero or less, enter -0- ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
j If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720
reporting section 4911 tax for this year?

(b) Affiliated group
totals

41,111.
0.
0.



Yes

No

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)
Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period
(a) 2017

(b) 2018

D
R

Calendar year
(or fiscal year beginning in)

2 a Lobbying nontaxable amount
b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e))
c Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount
e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column (e))

147,206.

184,457.

(c) 2019

176,211.

(d) 2020

164,445.

(e) Total

672,319.
1,008,479.

76,743.

75,588.

86,034.

87,555.

325,920.

36,802.

46,114.

44,053.

41,111.

168,080.
252,120.

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures
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Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501(h)).

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020

Part II-B

(a)

For each "Yes" response on lines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed description
of the lobbying activity.
1

Yes

(b)
No

Amount

During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state, or
local legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter
or referendum, through the use of:
a Volunteers? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 1i)? ~
c Media advertisements? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body? ~~~~~~

T

h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means? ~~~~
i Other activities? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
j Total. Add lines 1c through 1i ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
2 a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)? ~~~~
b If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Part III-A

AF

c If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912 ~~~
d If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? 

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6).

Yes

Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1

2
3

Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prior year?

3

1

Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2

Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political

1

2

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part III-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No" OR (b) Part III-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."

D
R

Part III-B

No

expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).
a Current year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Carryover from last year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

c Total ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues ~~~~~~~~
4

If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess

5

expenditure next year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (See instructions) 

1

2a
2b
2c
3

does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and political

Part IV

Supplemental Information

4
5

Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group list); Part II-A, lines 1 and 2 (See
instructions); and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.
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Supplemental Financial Statements

SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No. 1545-0047

2020

| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
| Attach to Form 990.
|Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
Employer identification number
OFFICIALS
91-6017001
Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

Name of the organization

Part I

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds
1

Total number at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

3

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

(b) Funds and other accounts

~~~~

~~~~~~

4

Aggregate value at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6

Yes

No

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)

Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat

Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

AF

2

No

T

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? 
Part II
Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1

Yes

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

day of the tax year.
a Total number of conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure

Held at the End of the Tax Year
2a
2b
2c

listed in the National Register ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3

2d
Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year |

4

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located |

5

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Yes
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

D
R
6

No

|

7

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
|$

8

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

9

Yes

No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Part III

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.
b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:
(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
2

| $
| $

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
032051 12-01-20
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WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
91-6017001 Page 2
Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its

3

collection items (check all that apply):
a

Public exhibition

d

Loan or exchange program

b

Scholarly research

e

Other

c

Preservation for future generations

4

Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII.

5

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? 

Part IV

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.

Yes
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or

No

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Yes

No

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:
Amount
c Beginning balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Additions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1c

e Distributions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
f Ending balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

1e

T

1d

1f
Yes
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? ~~~~~
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII 
Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(b) Prior year

(c) Two years back

AF

(a) Current year

(d) Three years back

No

(e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance ~~~~~~~
b Contributions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
d Grants or scholarships ~~~~~~~~~
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs ~~~~~~~~~~~~~
f

Administrative expenses ~~~~~~~~

g End of year balance ~~~~~~~~~~
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
%

%

D
R

a Board designated or quasi-endowment |
b Permanent endowment |

%
c Term endowment |
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by:
(i) Unrelated organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
(ii) Related organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

Part VI

Yes

No

3a(i)
3a(ii)
3b

Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property

1a Land ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Buildings ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
c Leasehold improvements ~~~~~~~~~~
d Equipment ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

(a) Cost or other
basis (investment)

(b) Cost or other
basis (other)

18,886.
37,841.

(c) Accumulated
depreciation

3,823.
35,703.

e Other 
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.) 

|

(d) Book value

15,063.
2,138.
17,201.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
Part VII Investments - Other Securities.

91-6017001

Page 3

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (including name of security)
(b) Book value
(c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value
(1) Financial derivatives ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
(2) Closely held equity interests ~~~~~~~~~~~
(3) Other
(A) INVESTMENT
(B) BDLG PTP

IN WA COUNTIES

152,829.

COST

(C)
(D)
(E)
(F)
(G)
(H)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) |

152,829.

Part VIII Investments - Program Related.

T

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment
(b) Book value
(c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value
(1)
(2)
(3)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

AF

(4)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) |

Part IX

Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description
(1)
(2)

D
R

(3)

(b) Book value

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)  |

Part X

Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
(a) Description of liability

1.

(b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.)  |
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII 

X

Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Page 4

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1
2

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Donated services and use of facilities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2a

c Recoveries of prior year grants ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2c

980,964.

2e

-26,439.
1,007,403.

-26,439.

2b

2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
4

1

3

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b ~~~~~~~~
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4a

4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) 

5

0.
1,007,403.

1

929,635.

2e

0.
929,635.

4c

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
2

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

T

1

a Donated services and use of facilities ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Prior year adjustments ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2a

c Other losses ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

2c

2b

4

AF

2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

3

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b ~~~~~~~~
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

4a

4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) 

Part XIII Supplemental Information.

4c
5

0.
929,635.

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

D
R

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2:

THE WACO FILES INCOME TAX RETURNS IN THE U.S. FEDERAL JURISDICTION. THE
WACO IS NO LONGER SUBJECT TO U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXAMINATIONS BY TAX
AUTHORITIES FOR YEARS BEFORE 2017. CURRENTLY, THERE IS NO EXAMINATION OR
PENDING EXAMINATION WITH THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE (IRS).

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020, THERE ARE NO TAX POSITIONS FOR WHICH THE
DEDUCTIBILITY IS CERTAIN BUT FOR WHICH THERE IS UNCERTAINTY REGARDING THE
TIMING OF SUCH DEDUCTIBILITY.

032054 12-01-20
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2020
Part XIII Supplemental Information (continued)
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SCHEDULE J
(Form 990)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No. 1545-0047

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.
| Attach to Form 990.
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS
Questions Regarding Compensation

Name of the organization

Part I

Compensation Information

2020

Open to Public
Inspection
Employer identification number

91-6017001

Yes

No

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
First-class or charter travel

Housing allowance or residence for personal use

Travel for companions
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments

Payments for business use of personal residence
Health or social club dues or initiation fees

Discretionary spending account

Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

T

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain ~~~~~~~~~~~
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~
3

1b
2

Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to

X Compensation committee

AF

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III.
Independent compensation consultant
Form 990 of other organizations
4

X Written employment contract

Compensation survey or study

X Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:

4a

c Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.

4c

D
R

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5

4b

X
X
X

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:

a The organization? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Any related organization? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

5a
5b

X
X

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III.

6

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:

a The organization? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
b Any related organization? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

6b

X
X

7

X

8

X

6a

If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III.

7

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part III ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

8

Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part III

9

~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
| Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

OMB No. 1545-0047

2020

Open to Public
Inspection
Employer identification number

91-6017001

FORM 990, PART I, DOING BUSINESS AS:
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY
OFFICIALS WACO

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D, OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES:

EXPENSES $ 0.

T

TRAINING CONTRACTS.
INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0.

REVENUE $ 1,575.

AF

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: THE ORANIZATION TOOK OVER A SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM
DESIGNED TO HELP STUDENTS PURUSING DEGREES WITH TUITION.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 6:

THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY OFFICIALS (WACO)

D
R

INCLUDES ELECTED COUNTY ASSESSORS, AUDITORS, CLERKS, CORONERS AND MEDICAL
EXAMINERS, PROSECUTING ATTORNEY'S, SHERIFFS, TREASURERS, AND COMPARABLE
APPOINTED OFFICIALS IN CHARTER COUNTIES.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 7A:
WACO'S BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS MADE UP OF COUNTY OFFICIALS FROM THROUGHOUT THE
STATE.

REPRESENTATIVES ON THE BOARD ARE CHOSEN BY COUNTY SIZE AND

AFFILIATE GROUP OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES ARE ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL WACO
CONFERENCE AND MEET FOUR TO FIVE TIMES A YEAR.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 7B:
ANY AND ALL AMENDMENTS TO THIS CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS MUST BE APPROVED BY
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE GENERAL MEMBERSHIP OF THE ORGANIZATION IN ATTENDANCE
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
032211 11-20-20
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020
Name of the organization

Page 2

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

Employer identification number

91-6017001

AT ANY REGULAR OR PROPERLY CALLED ANNUAL OR SPECIAL MEETING, PROVIDED;
HOWEVER, THAT THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT, OR AMENDMENTS, SHALL HAVE BEEN
SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY AND IN WRITING TO THE MEMBERSHIP AT LEAST 10 DAYS
IN ADVANCE OF SUCH MEETINGS, AND SHALL HAVE BEEN READ TO THE MEMBERS AT
SAID MEETING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:
AN ELECTRONIC

T

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REVIEWS THE RETURN BEFORE FILING.

AF

COPY OF THE RETURN IS ALSO PROVIDED TO THE BOARD BEFORE FILING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

THE WACO CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY REQUIRES ANY MEMBER TO SELF-REPORT
POTENTIAL FINANCIAL INTERESTS IN ENTITIES WACO DOES BUSINESS WITH.

WACO

ENTERS VERY FEW CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIPS ANNUALLY WHICH COULD POTENTIALLY
GIVE RISE TO SUCH CONFLICTS.

ALL PENDING CONTRACTS ARE REVIEWED BY THE

D
R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND LEGAL COUNSEL FOR POTENTIAL CONFLICTS.

CONTRACTUAL

ARRANGEMENTS ARE REPORTED TO AND REVIEWED WITH THE BOARD AT QUARTERLY
MEETINGS.

AS ELECTED OFFICIALS, WACO BOARD MEMBERS ARE ALSO REQUIRED TO

ANNUALLY REPORT TO THE STATE REGULATORS ANY FINANCIAL INTEREST AND WACO HAS
ACCESS TO THAT INFORMATION.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:
COMPENSATION OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR IS REVIEWED BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD
ANNUALLY.

COMPENSATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES IS REVIEWED BY THE EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE BOARD ANNUALLY.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 18:
FORM 1023 AND FORM 990 ARE MADE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.
032212 11-20-20
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Name of the organization

Page 2

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY O
OFFICIALS

Employer identification number

91-6017001

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:
GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE MADE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

PART XII LINE 2C

D
R

AF

T

THE PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED FROM PRIOR YEAR.

032212 11-20-20
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 25, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Stacie Prada, WACO Vice President and Jefferson County Treasurer

SUBJECT: LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE REPORT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Legislative Committee regularly reports to
the Board of Trustees.
WACO 2021 Legislative Committee:
 Tim Davidson, Cowlitz County Coroner
 Alison Sonntag, Kitsap County Clerk
 Josie Delvin, Benton County Clerk
 Jeff Gadman, Lewis County Treasurer
 Steve Drew, Thurston County Assessor
 Skip Moore, Chelan County Auditor
 John Snaza, Thurston County Sheriff
 James Nagle, Walla Walla County Prosecutor
The Legislative Committee adopted the interim work plan and timeline below. In
addition, WACO staff have had productive meetings with several affiliate presidents
and legislative chairs to outline affiliate plans and desired WACO services during the
interim. The attached powerpoint summarizes activities discussed to date. WACO
team and committee will continue to develop and implement these plans. Among the
services affiliates have requested of WACO during the interim are:
‐ Hosting informational sessions with legislative / caucus staff to educate on affiliate
policy issues (e.g. property tax reform)
‐ Draft topical policy briefs
‐ Data mining
‐ Support for specific members in strengthening key legislator relationships
‐ Scheduling meetings with legislators

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 88

Interim Work Plan Components

April

Legislative Committee Meeting Topics

WACO staff work with each affiliate
legislative committee chairs and presidents

Debrief 2021 Session –

Meetings between WACO staff and individual
affiliate leadership (president, legislative chair,
and others at affiliate discretion) to debrief
the session and develop and/or modify plans
for interim and next session, including:







May

What were the policy proposals /
bills that were not well‐informed that
will likely come up again next
session, and with whom do we need
to educate / discuss these proposals?
Who were our “champions” this
session and who were those that
held the biggest misconceptions
about us / our work?
Are there policy issues that would
benefit from formal interim
committee work / study?

Issues and Relationships – Examine
WACO/affiliate bills that didn’t pass –
good and bad – and implications for
targeted conversations with legislators to
schedule during interim.

i) Review and discuss WACO / affiliate bills
that did not pass and bills of concern likely to
be re‐introduced. Discuss strategies for
addressing opposition or lack of awareness /
priority.
ii) Discuss and identify key elements of affiliate
policy agenda – give context for specific bill
proposals (e.g. what policy change / action by
the legislature do we need to do our job and
serve our constituents better?)

Outcome = coordinated plan (aka certain
legislators will be on multiple affiliate’s
lists)
Policy platforms work session – priority
bill proposals benefit from attachment to
larger, longer‐term policy agenda.
Discuss policy agendas of each affiliate
and identify cross‐affiliate elements.
Outcome = product for affiliate
discussion at June conferences
June/July

Affiliate Conferences
WACO staff will be attending
conferences and offering assistance as
appropriate. Legislative 101 training
available.

Identify and develop components of specific
2021 legislative strategy using WACO services
needs assessment tool. The focus of each
affiliate strategy might include:
(1) Submitting priority bill proposals for WACO
membership; and/or
(2) Legislative awareness building on specific
issues in support of potential future legislative
proposals; and/or
(3) Relationship‐building with targeted
legislators, stakeholders, legislative staff or
others.

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 89

July/August First Draft Priority Proposals
Share outcomes of summer conferences
/ association decisions on legislative
proposals thus far. Discuss potential
supporter / detractors on proposals and
identify needed stakeholder / legislator
support; develop outreach plan

WACO staff facilitate affiliate legislative
committee member meetings with legislative
staff / key legislators

Outcome = begin outlining plan for
success
August

Building support for proposals
Affiliate proposals further refined;
identify needed stakeholder / legislator
support and develop outreach plan

WACO staff facilitate affiliate legislative
committee member meetings with legislative
staff / key legislators

Outcome = begin outlining plan for
success
September

WACO Priority Proposals for 2021
Review and discuss priority bill proposals
Continue to identify needed staff /
stakeholder / legislator outreach
Outcome = materials and information for
priority bill proposals sent to all WACO
members for October vote

October
November

WACO Conference – training for affiliate legislative committee members
Advanced Legislative Training for WACO
Legislative Committee Members
Outcome = enable effective legislative
advocacy

December

Materials development / Legislative
Days ‐ direct marketing of proposals and
materials on the hill; WACO staff identify
opportunities for affiliate contribution to
work sessions / meeting with legislators
on interests.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18th, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Officials Board of Trustees

FROM:

Jeff Gadman, Thurston County Treasurer, 2nd Vice-President
Washington Association of County Officials, Education Chair

SUBJECT: EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The WACO Education Committee meets on the
second Tuesday of each month. The mission of the Education Committee is to
provide quality communication and education opportunities that support WACO
affiliates as smart, effective and ethical leaders, which support a greater
understanding of our respective roles and which are not redundant with endeavors
undertaken by the individual affiliates. The Education Committee endeavors to
make WACO a go-to entity for WACO members, partners and citizens on county
matters involving our affiliate roles and duties.
Since adopting the Education Strategic Plan in March 2021, the committee has
focused on meeting the conference planning benchmarks outlined in the plan. I am
happy to report that the Committee is on course – and as of the time of writing this
report we have submitted a draft agenda for the annual conference in October.
Along with offering multiple opportunities for affiliate and cross-affiliate meetings,
the Committee has come up with a slate of education that we feel will have
something for everyone. I have provided a brief synopsis below.
Keynote: “Reset and Recharge” – Betsy Allen-Manning
Breakouts:
 Interacting with Your County Commissioners
 Labor/Hiring and Firing
 Budgeting LEAN in Today’s World
 Communicating During a Crisis
Closing Keynote: “Hope Inspired Leadership” – Jon Tunheim
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In addition to conference planning, the Committee has been working on producing
online learning content. During the legislative session we held a “Legislative 101”
training, and in late June WACO staff concluded production on “Effective
Lobbying”. These will add to the already impressive number of videos available on
the WACO website, as well as be available in a webinar setting. This is a
platform/format that we intend to replicate over the course of the next year moving
into 2022.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information only, no action required.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Melanie Terry, Member Services Manager

SUBJECT: WACO CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT
______________________________________________________________________________
BACKGROUND:
Due to the timing of the committee meetings, the committee will provide a verbal
update to the Board on July 7th.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion and motion as needed.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 25th, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Peggy Semprimoznik, Nominating Committee Chair

SUBJECT: NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Per WACO policy, the annual responsibilities
of the Nominating Committee for WACO Board and leadership positions is:





Managing and facilitating the nominating process;
Reviewing and updating as necessary the nominating policies and
procedures;
Securing candidates for the ballot and presenting a slate of qualified officers
to the membership; and
Conducting the elections process at the annual meeting of the membership.

The attached chart depicts the incumbents and open positions for elections in
conjunction with the WACO annual conference. Although this year’s conference is
virtual, the procedures for electing officers will be largely the same:
1) The call for nominations will be August 23rd, and will remain open through
September 13th. The call letter will be prepared by WACO staff and reviewed
by the Chair for review prior to distribution.
2) Candidates will be “vetted” to insure they have applied in the correct
category. They will be asked to submit a letter of intent, resume, and answer
a questionnaire by September 13th. This process will be administered by
WACO staff using process as in past years. WACO will distribute a list of the
questions to the committee for review prior to finalizing the process.
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3) The committee will reach out to the incumbents and other interested parties
to determine their interest in being nominated to serve.
4) We will not print ballots this year as all voting will occur electronically.
Members will have a window of opportunity for voting to be determined by the
nominating committee.
5) During the virtual conference - At the business meeting the Nominating
Committee Chair will call for nominations from the floor; nominations from
the floor will be accepted at that time only.
6) Electronic voting will open following the business meeting and conclude by
5p.m. that afternoon. Winner will be announced and sworn into office at the
following’s day awards and closing ceremony.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information only, no action required.
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Position

Current

Candidate 1

President
Vice President

Greg Zempel, PA
Stacie Prada,
Treasurer
Jeff Gadman,
Treasurer
Adam Kick, PA

Stacie Prada
Jeff Gadman

2nd Vice President
Secretary/
Treasurer
Trustee-at-large
Position 2 (county
population from
400,001 - 1 Million).
Two-year term

Candidate
2

Candidate
3

Adam Kick

Linda Hjelle,
Assessor,
Snohomish County

Clark, Pierce,
Snohomish, Spokane
Trustee-at-large
Position 4 (county
population from
50,001 – 100,000)
Two-year term
Chelan, Clallam,
Franklin, Grays
Harbor, Island,
Lewis, Mason, Walla
Walla
Trustee-at-large
Position 6 (county
population under
20,000) Two-year
term

Lisa Frazier,
Treasurer, Mason
County

Grace Cross, Clerk,
Skamania County

Columbia, Ferry,
Garfield, Lincoln,
Pend Oreille, San
Juan, Skamania,
Wahkiakum
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 25, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Officials Board of Trustees

FROM:

Jennifer Wallace, Executive Director

SUBJECT: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

Strategic Plan Progress
Attached is an updated chart depicting Board and staff actions since the last Board
meeting / report, color-coded status related to achieving each goal, notes on status
and metrics signifying accomplishment.
WACO Proposal to WSACA (Auditors)
At the March meeting, Auditor Hall and myself reported that WSACA was
discussing issuing an RFP for administrative, legislative and event coordination
services and members agreed it would be worthwhile for WACO to apply. WSACA
currently contracts with WSAC for event and some administrative services.
Attached is the RFP that was issued by WSACA and both WACO’s initial proposal
and subsequent revised proposal in response to request from WSACA. At the
WSACA conference in Clarkston June 22-24, WSACA members decided to take no
action on either of the proposals received and may issue a new RFP more aligned
with their funding in the future.
Washington Counties Building Updates
WSAC Executive Director Eric Johnson and Director of Finance and Administration
Bridget Lockling are now meeting with Lisa Gancel and myself on a monthly
business related to WCB management, for which WACO is assuming a larger share.
Lisa is currently leading the effort to update all internal and external lighting to
LED and Lisa and Jennifer will also be taking the lead in establishing a system for
external parties to rent the 1st floor conference room and kitchen. The building is
open to scheduled visitors and beginning in July will have posted masking
requirement for unvaccinated individuals and available disposable masks,
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antibacterial gel and cleaning products for staff and visitor comfort. Both WSAC
and WACO staff will resume negotiated in-office work schedules in July.
WACO Staff Affiliate Conference Attendance and Courthouse Visits
It is GREAT to be back out in the counties again! Deputy Director Tim Grisham,
Member Services Manager Melanie Terry and I will be visiting WACO members at
their offices throughout the summer and into fall. Thus far we have attended 3
affiliate conferences (Assessors, Clerks and Auditors) and visited members in
Skamania, Asotin, Columbia, Walla Walla, Franklin, Lewis, and Clark counties.
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WACO Strategic Plan Progress and Work Plan – July 2021 Update
Color key: Progression from green = on track achieving objective to yellow = needing attention in order to be on track to meet objective to red = significant barrier to progress exists

Goal 1. Increase Member Participation and Demonstrate the Unique Value of WACO to Members
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

A. Enhance and expand
legislative advocacy
services to affiliates
1. Provide year‐round
legislative advocacy, advice
and counsel for affiliates.

2. Annually evaluate progress
on the ‘WACO Legislative
Advocacy Action Plan’
included in the Work Plan.

Legislative Committee adopted ambitious interim plan and continues to meet
monthly

More work to do in closing gap in affiliate
participation levels

WACO “Day” on the Hill restructured as several week series of teams of WACO
members meeting with key legislators

2021 session ‐ First cross‐affiliate legislative
proposal in recent history

Increased work with affiliates on longer‐term policy agendas

6 of 8 legislative proposals in 2021 successful; 33
since 2015

Staff developing evaluation instrument with measurable indicators of legislative
action plan success, including indicators of affiliate engagement, interim
development timeline, proposal supporting materials produced, and bill success

7 out of 9 successful proposals in 2019 (long session)
5 out of 9 successful proposals in 2020 (short
session)
6 out of 8 successful proposals in 2021
WACO staff assistance on dozens of affiliate priority
bill support / defeat
6 out of 7 affiliates submitting priority
legislation requests for 2021

B. Provide high value
opportunities for WACO
members to engage with
the organization
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1. Maintain the WACO directory
of officials.

WACO directory expanded to include demographic data and year first elected
Directory includes auto generated birthday greetings for members that opted to
share birth date.

Analytics show low bounce rates and page exist
rates indicating website visits are finding
information faster
Analytic Benchmarks:
 2020
o maintain average monthly user rate of
3,500 or greater
o maintain average monthly views of 4,500 or
greater
 2021
o Increase average monthly users by 15%
over 2020 numbers
o Increase average monthly views by 20%
over 2020 numbers
Hosting Treasurers and Clerks websites – discussions
with Coroners and Auditors ongoing

2. Provide non‐redundant
leadership training
opportunities to reduce
duplicate training that
affiliates are also offering.
Redundant training at
conference should be
avoided.

Board approved education committee strategic plan 3/2021
Future Board meetings incorporate topical/educational presentations (e.g. MRSC,
WSAC, Sheriffs or Prosecutors.)

Online training tracker or education/training
offerings with evaluation ratings regularly used and
reviewed by education committee
Education survey of WACO members completed by
112 members and yielded new list of priority
trainings
Education Committee identified 5 online trainings to
space 2‐3 months from each other for 2020/2021
WACO produced Legislative 101 and Creating an
Effective Lobbying Campaign Training to date.
Education committee outlined 4 break out trainings for
the annual conference, and both an opening and
closing keynote training/address.
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3. Involve members in Board
projects, ad‐hoc committees,
and other key association
work.

WACO staff and Trustees and Large implementing revised outreach plan to engage
their category counties. Hosting monthly Zoom on topics of identified interest
First speakers bureau event in May 2021; staff continue to market to educational
institutions
Mid 2021 – End 2022 WACO organizes topic specific speakers’ bureau events
(frequency TBD).

4. Conduct an annual survey to
be sent to WACO
membership to assess if
WACO’s priorities are being
met.

2021 survey presented to Board in March 2021

WACO members / representation on three new
state‐level legislatively‐authorized committees:
1. Department of Commerce’s Manufactured
Housing Work Group
2. Vehicle subagent study group
3. State Treasurer’s re‐established LOCAL Program
Advisory Committee
Outreach online webinars hosted by Trustees at Large
and WACO staff in 5 of 6 category counties

Staff standardized evaluation instrument to better
evaluate progress over time
Surveyed membership on COVID impact and
implications for needed WACO services; informed
cross‐affiliate continuity of operations legislative
proposal

C. Increase WACO’s visibility
and value proposition
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1. Participate in every affiliate
annual conference and any
legislative conference of each
affiliate.

WACO Executive and Deputy Directors scheduled to participate in 6 of 7 affiliate
conferences in Summer 2021.

WACO ED participated in all affiliate annual
conferences in‐person in 2019 and all scheduled
2020 virtual

WACO staff assisted in hosting WSACA (Assessor)
2021 legislative conference and presented at
Treasurers’ 2021 legislative conference
WACO Staff attended Auditor, Assessor, Clerk, and
Treasurer conferences to date with plans for
Coroners and Sheriffs in Summer/fall.

2. Celebrate and communicate
WACO achievements and
activities in a presentation at
the annual conference.

Staff continue to take advantage of opportunities for marketing WACO success /
achievements (ongoing)

WACO services handout developed; distributed
Communications from WACO President and Exec Dir
about WACO accomplishments and new services
responsive to COVID situation; positive feedback
2020 WACO conference included video
congratulations by legislators in key leadership
positions

3. Publicly acknowledge the
professional
accomplishments of WACO
members and thank them for
their WACO involvement.

Staff re‐posts/retweets media continue to feature member accomplishments on
social media
Re‐started “know your county officials” video series feature Skagit County Coroner
Hayley Thompson
Accomplishments shared with members via Courthouse Journal
WACO to develop member feature videos ‐ development based on capacity, and
resources Winter 2020/2021. Goal for 2021 – End 2022 WACO will produce 4 video
featurettes annually.

D. Maintain the “Courthouse
Journal”

Sent to all WACO members weekly (ongoing)
Launched and maintain courthouse journal blog – sent weekly ‐ to increase numbers
of ways for members to access/digest information

2020 conference awards and retirement
recognitions planned

WACO CHJ readership at 34% trackable
open rate
WACO CHJ Blog features a quarterly “member
spotlight”.

Reach average annual open rate of 43%
September 2020; well above 21% industry
standard for non‐profit or government entities.
Stated Analytic Goals:
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2020 – Maintain an open rate of 35% for
newsletter mailings to WACO members.
2021 – Maintain an open rate of 40% for
newsletter mailings to WACO members.
Currently at 34% ‐ staff looking into decline.
2022 – Maintain an open rate of 50% for
newsletter mailings to WACO members.
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Goal 2. Create and Maintain a Shared Legislative Theme with Partner Associations
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

A. Work closely with
other public
advocacy groups to
develop legislative
themes and action
strategies
1. Work closely with the
Washington State Association
of Counties (WSAC) and other
identified stakeholders to
develop high value legislative
positions when appropriate.

WACO staff targeted outreach to WAPA and WASPC in support of greater
collaboration
WACO staff meet weekly and communicate frequently throughout the week on
2021 legislation
In 2021 session thus far WACO legislative team has collaborated with realtor
associations, king county medical society, homeownership resource center,
Northwest Justice, Association of Washington Cities, Washington Education
numerous organizations representing taxing districts, WA Hospitality Industry
Association, and others.

WACO staff ongoing participation in WSAC, AWC and
other association legislative dialogue.
WSAC and WACO collaborated on COVID listening
sessions / shared information on challenges
WSAC Exec Dir to present regularly at WACO Board
meetings.
WACO Exec Dir regularly presents to WSAC Legislative
Steering Committee
Member Services Manager worked with WSAC to develop
a master‐calendar and update county official contacts.
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Goal 3. Increase Awareness about County Officials and Their Functions
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

A. Develop materials to
effectively describe the work
of county officials and county
services
1. Identify potential opportunities
that tell the story.

Staff and Board identifying ways for Board and members to serve as ambassadors
/ opportunities to tell their story.
Staff put together a menu and “how to” of outreach options for elected officials
(e.g. service organization speaking); Courthouse Journal featured “how well are
you communicating with your public” guidance.
Staff planning outreach to higher education encouraging use of Washington
County Government guide and Know Your County Officials video to raise student
awareness of county government offices as a citizen and as a potential career
opportunity.
2020 increase distribution of “know your county officials booklet”; increase
retweets and shares of WACO social media posts
Re‐started “know your county officials” video series feature Skagit County Coroner
Hayley Thompson

Benchmarks: 2021 – End 2022 WACO will cohost
2 annual public education speaking events with
identified partners.
2022 – WACO will cohost 4 annual public
education speaking events with identified
partners.
Analytic Performance Goals (For ALL social media
content):
 2020
o reach an average monthly Twitter impression
rate of 13,916; or median monthly impression
rate of 11,450.
o Increase Twitter followers by 30%
o Increase Facebook followers (page likes) by
50%
o Increase Facebook engagement by 30%
 2021
o increase average monthly Twitter impression
rate by 20%; or median monthly impression
rate by 20%.
o Increase Twitter followers by 25%
o Increase Facebook followers (page likes) by
50%
o Increase Facebook engagement by 25%
 2022
o increase average monthly Twitter impression
rate by 20%; or median monthly impression
rate by 20%.
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o
o
o

2. Develop key messages for radio
and newspaper
communications and social
media. Also provide training to
affiliates on how to develop
such messages.

Increase Twitter followers by 25%
Increase Facebook followers (page likes) by
40%
Increase Facebook engagement by 25%

Staff sends press releases out annually and others by request (e.g. OpEd on hot
topic; officials retiring / replacement) (ongoing)

Media training conducted, positive evaluations

New communications plan includes initiative with Executive Officers and Affiliate
Presidents to develop specific messages members can take to their local media

Additional development / planning needed on
affiliate training

Based on affiliate needs assessments, Board and staff identify key messages of
county officials to pitch to media (e.g. rate‐based vs. budget‐based; Coroner
certification / accreditation)

B. Continue the conversation
with every Washington State
Legislator and stakeholders
1. Develop materials, messages
and policy objectives to
educate other elected officials
about what each member’s
responsibility is and how it
relates to the responsibility of
running their office.

Plans to start “lunch and learn” series based on the 18 weeks of COVID‐related
information sharing – some will include brief outside presenter / external info but
bulk of time in information exchange / building understanding of responsibilities
and issues

WACO produced “Know Your County Officials:
Coroners” video June 2021.
Additional social media push on “know your county
officials” Videos

Board developing WACO cross‐affiliate policy positions and statements
Re‐started “know your county officials” video series feature Skagit County Coroner
Hayley Thompson

Day on Hill 2020 included 74 participants and 22
meetings. A significant increase from 2019.
Maintain CHJ analytic goals (current open rate 43%)

Increase in distribution of “know your county officials booklet”; increased
retweets and shares of WACO social media posts
WACO staff outreach to colleges – elected official guest speakers re: roles
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Goal 4. Build a Sustainable WACO Budget
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

A. Develop and adopt an annual
budget aligned with the
Strategic Plan
1. Determine allocation levels
annually based on the Strategic
Plan and budget process

2022 Budget planning more explicitly link to 2‐year strategic plan and Board
discussion of where WACO wants to be longer‐term / define budget needed
to establish and sustain longer‐term goals.

March 2020 Board sustainability discussion resulted
in directing policy development re: a capital
improvement plan, and dedicated funds policy.

WCB worked on cost containment in light of COVID / telecommuting;
reduced parking allotments, considering future conference room rental,
retro‐fitted light fixtures for LED

2021 budget development documents included
budget / expenditure by priority areas / strategic
plan goals
Board adopted annual dues increase policy Oct
2020

2. Develop methodologies to
determine budget reductions
and increases as necessary.

Use cash flow and projections reports to analyze the income/expense trends
(ongoing)
More explicitly include Washington Counties Building in budget modeling
Staff and Board examining WCB costs

3. Review employee salary and
benefits annually as part of the
budget process.

Expenditures reflect member survey of priorities
Board adopted new policy linking dues increase to CPI
retaining option to reduce if necessary
Staff reduced redundant online storage
documentation system to reduce software expense

Enhanced input from Committees on budgetary needs to accomplish their goals

2021 and 2022 budgets reflected multiple strategies
for revenue and budget reductions

Personnel committee presented annual report and recommendations to the Board
in March 2021

Salary study conducted 2019
Consistent annual reporting by committee

Policy adopted to add COLA for staff by following the CPI‐U (Seattle)
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B. Diversity Revenue
1. Investigate other revenue
opportunities for the organization

Member services manager developing “partnership” model for year‐round
vendor/sponsor support

Next steps for Board sustainability discussion need to
be identified

Vendor/sponsor support for online training being pursued
WACO responded to WSACA RFP for administrative services
Annual Conference admission for each county appointed / elected official added
to budget revenue to reduce dues increases
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Goal 5. Maintain an Effective WACO Board Culture
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

A. Maintain a 3-Year Strategic
Plan and annual review of
work plans
1. Annually review the
actions/strategies that relate to
the 3‐Year Strategic Plan. There
will be ongoing items that will
continue to be worked on.

2. Identify progress against the
Strategic Plan’s Goals and
Objectives at each Board
meeting.

EOs / Board will identify meeting at which indicators of progress on strategic plan
will be evaluated and discussions of strategies to accelerate progress discussed
(month?)

Template completed / continued refinement
expected

Executive Director present progress on strategic plan as core of regular report to
Board (ongoing)

This chart updated and appended to Executive
Director repot for each Board meeting

B. Create clear roles,
responsibilities, and
procedures for Board
meetings
1. Based on the Bylaws and

Unified SOP with standard format completed
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Strategic Plan, identify specific
responsibilities for the Board,
Board Committees, and staff.

2. Define Board meeting
processes that ensure that new
ideas are identified and openly
discussed.

Need to identify date

Board identify schedule for regular review of policies
March 2021 – Bylaw and policy cleanup and additions
EOs / Board review SOPs and Code of Ethics to ensure they support and
encourage new ideas and open discussion.

Board meeting policy and procedures are included in
the new Policies and Standard Operating Procedures
Manual

Board identify how it wants to evaluate its own success (when/how?)

Need Board discussion – how accomplish this?

C. Develop a program for
evaluating Board
effectiveness
1. Annually evaluate the Board’s
effectiveness against
established criteria.

Board (at meeting / at retreat) identify effectiveness measures. Staff could
present various established models (2021?)

Goal 6. Foster a Collaborative Culture of Excellence within the WACO Headquarters
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

A. Recruit and retain a
Director and ensure
WACO is fully

EOs completing 2020 Executive Director Evaluation December 2020

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics
Fully staffed March 2020
New job descriptions for all positions approved and
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staffed.
B. Build better channels of
communication between
WACO Headquarters and
affiliates.

filled

Staff disaggregate annual member survey – identify affiliate presidents / consider
questions specifically directed at affiliate presidents

Component of engagement plan

WACO legislative committee with affiliate representatives meeting monthly during
interim
Outreach plan includes higher level of engagement by Trustees at Large and
Affiliate Representatives
Executive Director county courthouse visits / regular contact with affiliate
presidents, legislative committee chairs and other leadership as appropriate

C. Explore and provide
opportunities for employee
career growth.

Incorporated into 2020 and 2021 budget requests –
professional association memberships and training
for staff relevant to roles and growth goals

Ongoing and component of annual staff evaluation / performance and
development objectives
Member services manager training for website manager backup; training for
videography for Know Your County Officials series, and training for graphic design.

Goal 7. Provide Quality Communication and Education Opportunities that Support WACO Affiliates as Smart, Effective and
Ethical Leaders; which Support a Greater Understanding of Our Respective Roles and which are not Redundant with
Endeavors Undertaken by the Individual Affiliates
Board Objectives / Strategies

Board and Staff Actions Since Last Report / Planned Actions

A. Create better
Government Leaders
(CPO program)

Education Committee to explore and discuss with WACO Staff; ensure identify
any potential redundancy with other agencies/organizations (2020)

Stalled – piloted LinkedIn Learning as potential
platform for CPO – little participation / interest

B. Foster collaboration on

WACO Board set to adopt new WACO/cross‐affiliate policy and position
statements

Cross‐affiliate policy dialogue / position on bills

legislation – shared goals

Status

Notes on Status / Accomplishment Metrics

increasing
Successful cross‐affiliate legislative proposal in 2021
WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 114

C. Create knowledge and
understanding in how
legislation works.

Videotaped “effective lobbying campaign” training video as followup to
“Legislative 101” training – virtual training session including video scheduled for
July

New Legislative 101 training video completed Nov
2020
WACO staff provided legislative training at 3 affiliate
conferences in 2019 and at Day on the Hill in 2019
and 2020
Legislative 101 training materials on WACO website
Legislative training materials included in “welcome to
WACO” new member and new board materials

Color key: Progression from green = on track achieving objective to yellow = needing attention in order to be on track to meet objective to red = significant barrier to progress exists
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June 3rd, 2021
Darla McKay
President
Washington State Association of County Auditors
dmckay@co.asotin.wa.us
Dear President McKay:
It is with great enthusiasm that the Washington Association of County Officials
(WACO) thanks you for the opportunity to respond to your RFP outlining the
administrative, budget and finance, legislative, and management needs of the
Washington State Association of County Auditors (WSACA). We are excited for the
opportunity to share with you how WACO can better partner with WSACA to
provide support that exemplifies a high standard of conduct and professionalism.
WACO and WSACA’s unique relationship dates back to our founding over sixty
years ago. This relationship, as well as WACO’s relationship with every elected
county official in the State of Washington, positions our proposal in an already
existing setting that relies on cross-office collaboration and the input of experts in
local government across the state to advance our members’ legislative, education,
and communications platforms.
Because of this, WSACA already benefits from WACO-facilitated exchanges of
information among affiliates related to all service areas in the WSACA RFP. As our
proposal demonstrates, many of the services requested are already available to
WSACA at no cost. WACO delivers value and quality with a mission and focus more
aligned and relevant to WSACA than any other organization.
It our goal to provide a one-stop-shop for all WSACA’s administrative, financial,
legislative, and event management needs through leveraging WACO’s current
strengths, augmented by additional WSACA specific staffing. There is quite simply
nothing in the desired deliverables of the RFP that is outside our current
wheelhouse, it’s primarily a matter of increasing our staffing capacity to provide
these services in greater quantity.
Over the past six years WACO has become more focused and efficient in their
dealings with the legislature, increased revenue and partnerships each year related
to our annual conference and created a set of financial policies and procedures that
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has passed numerous levels of audits each year. We are eager to extend this success
to working with WSACA on a more robust platform that will leverage both
organizations’ expertise for greater future success.
Salutations,

Greg Zempel
WACO President
Kittitas County Prosecutor

Adam Kick
WACO Secretary/Treasurer
Skamania County Prosecutor

Stacie Prada
WACO Vice President
Jefferson County Treasurer

Jerry Pettit
WACO Immediate Past President
Kittitas County Auditor

Jeff Gadman
2nd Vice President
Thurston County Treasurer

Dianne Dorey
Past President
Lewis County Assessor
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RFP Information

Association Management – WSACA

Association Management for Washington State Association of County Auditors.
Issue Date: May 13, 2021
Closing Date: June 4, 2021

Contact
Darla McKay, President
Washington Association of County Auditors
dmckay@co.asotin.wa.us
(509) 552-1070

Proposer’s Information
Firm Name: Washington Association of County Officials
Contact Name: Jennifer Wallace, Executive Director
Address: 206 10th Avenue SE
City: Olympia
Phone: 360-481-6160

State: WA

Zip: 98501

Fax: _________

E-Mail: Jennifer@Countyofficials.org

Submit proposals by email no later than 4:00 pm on Friday, June 4,
2021 to:
Darla McKay, President
Washington Association of County Auditors
dmckay@co.asotin.wa.us
509-243-2085
dmckay@co.asotin.wa.us
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Introduction – WACO Qualifications
Who We Are
The membership of the Washington Association of County Officials (WACO) includes
elected county assessors, auditors, clerks, coroners and medical examiners, prosecuting
attorneys, sheriffs, treasurers and comparable appointed officials in charter counties.
WACO is a non-profit, nonpartisan organization. WACO works closely with the affiliate
associations for every executive level county official in Washington's 39 counties. These
affiliate associations meet throughout the year, bringing colleagues together to discuss
issues of common interest and to exchange ideas and opinions.
WACO Origins
The organization began its early stages of development in 1954 with all elected officials in
Washington State extended an invitation to join through their respective associations. By
January of 1955, legislation was introduced to add the Washington State Association of
Elected County Officials in statute. The bill did not pass. Determined county officials
continued their efforts for 4 more years and ultimately won passage of the legislation in
1959. WACO commenced operation on March 1, 1960, with offices in Olympia and has
been in continuous service the 61 years since.
Responsibilities
WACO's responsibilities for our seven affiliates and their respective associations are as
follows:
• Legislative representation
• Education and training
• Informational publications
• Day-to-day assistance concerning a wide variety of issues of importance to counties
• Local, state, and federal agency liaison
• Annual conference for networking, training and to develop a WACO legislative
package
• Other forums in which to develop policy and practice within and across affiliate
roles.
Our Services to Affiliates
WACO assists elected county officials, their offices, and their affiliate associations in three
primary areas: legislation, education, and communication. WACO has presented and
passed legislation on behalf elected county officials, created educational opportunities
online and in person, and fostered a greater understanding of the unique roles and duties
of each separately elected executive level county government office. WACO’s full menu of
services to members and their affiliate groups is extensive and tailored to their expressed
needs1.

Appendix A contains a detailed overview of WACO’s standard service offerings available to its
affiliates.
1
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WACO Staff
WACO’s current staffing model includes an Executive Director, who is appointed by the
WACO Board of Trustees, and three additional staff that are hired under the direction of
the Executive Director. These roles include the WACO Deputy Director, Member Services
Manager, and Finance & Administration Manager2.
What Others Say About WACO
WACO has a sixty-year history of working with affiliates on matters ranging from
conference planning to legislative and administrative assistance. You will find letters of
reference in regard to these areas in Appendix B.

Service Solutions For All Specified Deliverables
Why WACO?
It is WACO’s goal to provide a one-stop-shop for all WSACA’s administrative, financial,
legislative, and event management needs through leveraging WACO’s current strengths,
augmented by additional WSACA specific staffing. This will allow WSACA’s membership
to free up their own time and capacity to focus on the higher-level policy development and
strategic planning to move the organization forward. There is quite simply nothing in the
desired deliverables that is outside our current wheelhouse, it’s primarily a matter of
increasing our staffing capacity to provide these services in greater quantity.
The clear advantage of WACO as contractor for this RFP is our existing relationship and
service to WSACA and the six other county elected official associations. WSACA already
benefits from WACO-facilitated exchanges of information among affiliates related to all
service areas in the WSACA RFP. As our proposal demonstrates, many of the services
requested are already available to WSACA at no cost. WACO delivers value and quality
with a mission and focus more aligned and relevant to WSACA than any other
organization.
WACO operates with policies and personnel that are hypervigilant. This extends to a set
of stringent internal financial controls that have led to a track record of spotless annual
independent audits, and a high level of transparency with a high standard for ensuring
accuracy and accountability.
WACO offers a legislative advantage no other organization can offer due to the WACO
legislative team’s 60 years of combined experience, a coordinated team approach, and the
strong connections WACO has with its affiliates and stakeholders that hold similar
concerns as WSACA. This positions WACO to be the most well-placed contractor to
leverage WSACA’s legislative concerns.

The resumes for all current WACO staff who are integral to proposed service delivery to WSACA
can be found in Appendix C.
2
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Over the past five years the WACO legislative team was crucial in the passage of twentysix pieces of WACO priority legislation that ranged from securing even year election
funding, to elevating training and standards for county coroners, to creating a more
equitable senior property tax system, and responding to the challenges to county officials
and their offices due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Furthermore, the WACO legislative team
has helped establish WACO as a trusted go-to source of information and coordination for
matters related to their affiliates’ offices.
Because our proposal is for the complete slate of desired deliverables for this RFP, WACO
event management would have several added bonuses that at first may go unnoticed. For
example, WACO and WSACA share a great number of vendor and sponsor clients. With
this proposal, WACO offers a single source of contact for sponsor and vendor relations –
allowing for a more personal source of contact that will allow both organizations to foster
and grow relationships with business partners rather than compete for them.
Similarly, with a combined approach to conference site selection, WACO and WSACA
could leverage their combined relationship for more financially beneficial responses for
services. In addition, there are clear logistic and quality control advantages to having the
same organization handle your event management and financial management.

Administration
All deliverables listed in the RFP under “administration” are well within the capabilities
of existing WACO staff. Because we propose that existing WACO staff provide the
administration deliverables using existing systems and processes, this will reduce costs
passed on to WSACA.
The WACO Executive Director would provide personnel management and oversight of all
employees providing direct service to WSACA at no additional cost. In this proposal
WSACA would hold the WACO Executive Director responsible for ensuring satisfactory
support and performance of those employees, as well as offering appropriate support and
professional development opportunities.
With WACO as the employer of record, the WSACA Managing Director and any other
hires under this contract would be eligible for the same generous package of benefits
available to all WACO staff. With this proposal, WACO would endeavor to strike a balance
between clear accountability to WSACA and creating a cohesive team-oriented work
environment.
Additional staffing would work out of the Washington Counties Building. As 50% owner of
the building, WACO can offer ample space to incorporate additional staff comfortably
without the need to purchase or rent additional space. Similarly, network and IT support
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for staff working in the building, as well as utilizing remote workspaces, will be made
available3.
This proposal notes that differences exist between WSACA and WACO travel
reimbursement policies. Due to this, WACO would follow WSACA’s SOPPs with regard to
travel reimbursement while utilizing our existing processing procedure and forms to
accommodate the difference in policy.
WACO’s Member Services Manager is a certified graphic designer for both print and
online media with the ability to deliver the WSACA website, publication, and conference
material needs. In addition, at no additional charge, we offer an opportunity for WSACA to
engage in rebranding its association logo, graphics and colors, resulting in a variety of
templates, such as letterhead, memos, online meeting platform backgrounds, and much
more4.
In addition to offering services and assistance with online and print design, WACO would
assume the management of the WSACA website, as well as maintain hosting services and
domain registration.
We assume WSACA does not desire to own, and therefore pay personal property tax on,
assets purchased in support of this contract such as computers and printers. Thus, WACO
proposes to maintain those assets and incur those costs.

Budget and Finance
Fiscal Agent
When it comes to financial management, WACO operates with policies, systems, and
personnel that are hypervigilant. In addition to required state audits, WACO has a track
record of spotless, annual independent audits where most conduct only biennially.
WACO maintains detailed financial policies and procedures that are reviewed and
updated annually5. The Financial and Internal Controls Policy sets a clear, transparent,
and redundant set of internal financial controls that rely on a high standard for ensuring
accuracy and accountability by creating a double entry accounting system where no one
person has full control of all funds. The updated policy has led to clean annual and SAO
audits.
This proposal notes that differences exist between WSACA and WACO regarding financial
management policies. Overall, WACO’s financial internal controls are more stringent.
Other differences include a WSACA preference for hard copy records, while WACO has
The budget section of the proposal outlines the initial costs associated with the purchase of
computer and electronic devices to support WSACA staff.
4 WACO’s current branding guide can be found in Appendix D.
5 WACO’s policies and procedures can be found at:
http://countyofficials.org/DocumentCenter/View/1761/WACO-Policy-Guide
3
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transitioned to almost entirely electronic records; or WSACA requiring pre-approval of
expenses. WACO will work with WSACA to ensure comfort and satisfaction with policies
and procedures governing high-level financial controls6.
WACO’s Finance and Administration Manager has more than 25 years of finance and
administration background in both profit and non-profit sectors. The Finance and
Administration Manager would provide financial management functions for WSACA
funds; work with the WACO Executive Director and with WSACA’s designee(s) as
fiduciary for both WACO and WSACA to oversee investment of WSACA funds; and ensure
WSACA has electronic access to easily view funds and investment performance.
WACO will tailor financial reporting to fit WSACA needs in detail and summary forms.
WACO is held to the same external reporting requirements WSACA lists in the desired
deliverables. Our system of processing payments and managing finances facilitates ontime compliance with all reporting requirements, including Washington Secretary of
State, IRS, and others as appropriate.
WACO has established relationships with multiple online payment and registration portal
vendors with whom we are negotiating competitive pricing models that will be extended to
a WSACA contract. WACO treats any payment portal with the same level of security as
our other bank accounts, ensuring the solid protection of a significant source of WSACA
revenue.
If WSACA believes it is currently lacking adequate insurance, WACO will help WSACA
obtain business insurance to meet the needs of the association. This should include
commercial general liability and directors and officers insurance, or others as determined
by the WSACA board.

Legislative Lobbying
As part of WACO’s standard service offerings provided to its members, WACO currently
provides each of the listed deliverables listed under “Legislative Lobbyist” with the
exception of leading an affiliate’s weekly briefing of their own members.
WACO offers a legislative advantage no other organization can offer due to both the more
than 60 years combined Washington State legislative experience of our team (Shaw,
Wallace, Grisham, Foster), combined with a coordinated and collaborative approach
WACO has with all its county elected official affiliates and stakeholders that hold similar
interests and concerns.
The WACO legislative team’s priority during the legislative session is the success of
priority legislation approved by the full WACO membership. In recent years, WACO’s
legislative team has demonstrably expanded its support to address other bills of specific
affiliate interest and concern, as well as worked with affiliates on interim policy and
6

Appendix E contains WACO’s Financial and Internal Controls Policy.
WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 125

legislative relations. Historically, WSACA has varied in their desire to take advantage of
these services from WACO.
If selected to provide these services, WACO would continue to offer the current level of
contracted service of WACO lobbyist, Mike Shaw, and ongoing support of the entire
WACO legislative team augmented by responsibilities WSACA envisions for its Managing
Director. Together, WACO’s team and additional WSACA staffing have the skill and
experience needed to meet the RFP’s stated deliverables regarding legislative
development, securing sponsorship, and a year-round approach to lobbying.

Management
Managing Director
The RFP outlines a set of deliverables under the scope of work for a Managing Director
that is quite broad. The current list of responsibilities assumes both organizational
leadership and lobbying skills and experience, as well as a variety of administrative
functions. We believe this may make recruitment and retention difficult.
Our proposal shifts certain, primarily event management, responsibilities listed under the
RFP’s Managing Director set of responsibilities to the addition of a 0.5 FTE Event
Coordinator position. This will better avail the Managing Director to be the main point
person for more high-level management of WSACA’s needs, while also more efficiently
leveraging WACO’s existing services and staffing skill sets. Appendix F demonstrates the
division of responsibility for deliverables we propose.
We propose that several responsibilities listed in the RFP for the proposed WSACA
Managing Director position related to conference/event planning be overseen, but not
executed, by the Managing Director. While the Managing Director would maintain
responsibility for coordinating with the WSACA Board and program committees on
agenda development such as sessions, speakers, and times; we propose the responsibilities
listed below be primarily the responsibility of the Managing Director and a 0.5 FTE
Events Coordinator position dedicated entirely to WSACA conferences and events, with
the assistance of the WACO Member Services Manager.
As with “administration” deliverables, these functions use existing systems and processes
of WACO, thus additional cost passed on to WSACA would be minimal. We propose the
responsibilities of these two positions as follows:
Conference Site Selection and Contracting
The WACO Member Services Manager will work with Conference Direct to provide
WSACA options to compare potential conference venues and review RFPs. Through this
process the Member Services Manager will review and negotiate venue contracts, conducts
site visits, and work with the WACO Finance and Administration Manager to ensure all
contracts meet the conference budget(s). WACO routinely identifies and selects sites and
secures contracts two to four years in advance of events.
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Event Management
The Managing Director will manage WSACA conferences once the site selection and
negotiations are complete with assistance from a proposed 0.5 FTE Event Coordinator.
The 0.5 FTE Event Coordinator’s work, at the direction of the Managing Director, will
prioritize all necessary planning and preparation for WSACA events at every stage
including registration assistance and maintenance, preparing badges, table tents and
conference materials, managing rooming lists and complimentary reservations,
contracting keynotes and educational speakers, creating menus for meals and banquets,
coordinating social outings, and ensuring WSACA conference attendees experience the
best attendee experience possible.
During WSACA conferences, WACO anticipates additional logistical support will be
needed. To fulfill this need, temporary hires and/or volunteers brought on-board would be
compensated through conference revenue – and not at any additional cost to this proposal.
WACO would be responsible for the recruitment of any temporary staff hired for on-site
work during WSACA events in consultation with the Managing Director. The Managing
Director would be responsible for the management and supervision of on-site staff.
Soliciting Vendor and Sponsors
WACO’s Member Services Manager would be responsible for solicitation of vendors and
sponsors for WSACA events by seeking new partnerships and maintaining current
WSACA relationships. We believe this approach would ensure no vendor must choose
between a WACO or WSACA sponsorship.
WACO’s approach to soliciting vendors and sponsors is to dedicate time to develop strong
partnerships with current and potential sponsors. Through this approach WACO has been
able to grow its sponsorship and vendor program each year since 2015.
Currently, WACO is implementing an annual partnership model to increase sponsor
revenue, while also providing ample opportunities for organizations to interact with
WACO’s unique audience throughout the entire year.
Because we are proposing a coordinated approach to vendor/sponsor solicitation, we also
view this as a vehicle for partially funding the cost of WACO services. We propose that
WACO would receive a 15% commission for revenue beyond the break-event point for
WSACA’s conference costs. This is reflected in the cost proposal.
Graphic Design and Website Management
The Member Services Manager will be available to create a branding guideline for
WSACA that would guide the creation templates for the 0.5 FTE to use for conference
graphics, nameplates, badges, conference signage, external communications, newsletter
and more. Additionally, WACO would be responsible for maintaining WSACA’s online
presence.
Additional Duties
Time permitting the 0.5 FTE could provide additional administrative support to the
Managing Director on requested deliverables such as:
• Keeping all WSACA directories, rosters, and email distribution lists up to date
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•
•
•

Assisting the Member Services Manager to ensure all website information is timely
and accurate
Organize and retain WSACA’s paper and digital documents, transfer archival
records to State Archives
Produce, deliver, and track WSACA recognition and awards

Providing support for organizational strategic planning and development/implementation
of strategic communications plans is high-level work. The WSACA Managing Director will
be provided support by both the WACO Executive Director and Deputy Director 7.
Additionally, candidates for the WSACA Managing Director position may also lack
significant experience for the RFP deliverables of serving as point of contact for media
inquiries, providing input for fiscal notes, and/or updating organizational policies and
operating procedures. These are again all routine areas of work for WACO leadership to
provide guidance and support.
WACO frequently deploys surveys to shape our services, collect performance analytics,
and much more. Additionally, WACO is able to provide e-mail newsletter services,
directory management, and much more as part of WACO’s standard service offerings
provided to its members8.

Pricing
WSACA’s primary current operating expense and revenue generator are its 4-5 annual
conferences. WACO’s cost proposal includes no additional conference-related expenses, but
assumes transfer of WSACA current costs and expenditures for WACO management and
disbursement. WACO commits to ensuring WSACA conference costs are covered while
keeping attendee registration fee levels low, recognizing the organization’s commitment to
affordable, accessible member training and education.
As discussed previously, WACO has dramatically increased its vendor/sponsor levels and
plans to further expand its year-round partnership model. Through our aggressive
vendor/sponsorship efforts, we will work to meet WSACA’s revenue expectations related to
its conference. Because we are proposing a coordinated approach to vendor/sponsor
solicitation, we also view this as a vehicle for partially funding the cost of WACO services.
We propose that WACO would receive a 15% commission for revenue beyond the breakevent point for WSACA’s conference costs.
In addition to maximizing revenue, WACO will also continuously strive for cost
containment without compromising quality. We’ve already begun soliciting competitive
price packages from a variety of conference platforms in anticipation of WSACA

7 You

can find the resumes for the WACO Executive Director and Deputy Director under Appendix
C. Both demonstrate significant experience in leading organizational development initiatives with
organizations and their leadership boards.
8 A complete list of WACO’s standard service offerings can be found in Appendix A.
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conference management. WACO conducts site selection and contracting for its own
conference three years in advance in order to secure the most competitive pricing.
The major cost in WACO’s proposal is staffing support. We believe this is consistent with
WSACA’s goal of oversight and management that lessens WSACA leadership and
membership time spent on management and logistics. Investing in skilled staffing will
provide WSACA the peace of mind that your organizational management and funds are in
good hands and working in your best interest.
Pricing also reflects the distribution of responsibilities discussed in our service solution. In
examining comparable salaries for the responsibilities of the new 1.0 FTE Managing
Director and 0.5 FTE event coordinator, we suggest the positions listed below 9.
Positions with comparable responsibilities to the WSACA Managing Director position:
1. Management Analyst 4 – WDFW Legislative Coordinator – $61,224 – $80,292
2. Senior Policy and Education Manager – Liquor and Cannabis Board – $85,000 –
$90,000
Positions with comparable responsibilities to the WSACA Event Coordinator:
3. Event Coordinator 2 – Salary Range 35 – $30,000 – $39,000
4. WSAC Meetings and Events Coordinator - $44,798 – 58,238

9

Appendix G contains the full position descriptions for comparables 1-3.
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DELIVERABLES

PROPOSER’S
ANNUAL PRICE

Administration
Budget and Finance
(Fiscal Agent)

$41,720

Legislative lobbying

$0

Management
(WSACA Managing
Director)

$130,000

COMMENTS

Electronic devices / Software
WACO Management Fee (includes WACO staffing support)
Overhead (office space, equipment, parking, IT, utilities)
Proposal assumes current level of service from full WACO
team + addition of significant legislative responsibilities of
WSACA Managing Director
Reflecting proposal redistribution of responsibilities,
particularly related to WSACA’s 4-5 annual conferences
and .5 FTE Event Coordinator.

Currently WSACA’s major revenue source is conference fees. Our understanding is that an
increase in member dues is also contemplated as current conference revenue will not
extend to cover costs associated with a contract for the deliverables identified in the
current RFP.
WACO intends to significantly expand our relationships with corporate business partners
within its own operations, thereby increasing revenue as a result. This will go beyond the
traditional vendor and sponsorship opportunities associated with organization conferences
to including web-based advertising, and sponsored education and training opportunities.
Last year WACO held 143 online sessions for a total of 894 attendees. We are currently
exploring the continuing education requirements of our affiliate members and whether
WACO could serve as an approved/accredited continuing education provider. All of these
initiatives could be extended to benefit WSACA revenue.

Contract Length
WACO believes the proposed one-year duration of contract will adversely affect
recruitment and retention of the Managing Director and Event Coordinator positions. A
multi-year contract that may be renegotiated at any time by either party would address
these concerns.
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Signature Page
I, the undersigned, having carefully examined the Request for Proposals, propose to
furnish services in accordance therewith as set forth in the attached proposal.
I further agree that this proposal will remain in effect for not less than sixty (60) calendar
days from the date that proposals are due, and that this proposal may not be withdrawn or
modified during that time.

Jennifer Wallace
_____________________________________________________________________

Print Name

Washington Association of County Officials Executive Director
_____________________________________________________________________

Title

_____________________________________________________________________

Signature

June 3, 2021
_____________________________________________________________________

Date
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Appendices
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B – References
C – Resumes
D – Branding Guidelines
E – Financial and Internal Control Policy
F – Color Coded Staffing Responsibilities
G – Comparables Position Description
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A – WACO Standard Service Offerings
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Priority Area
Education

Service
Conference
Training

Online
Training

Description
Provides all-member,
Annual
Conference affiliate specific, and

cross-affiliate training
opportunities during
the Annual WACO
Conference.

Newly
Elected
Officials
Training

Provides member wide
training for newly
elected officials prior to
when they take office.

Filmed
Training
Sessions

Provides audiovisual
capture of in-person
training sessions for
future viewing.

Online
Video
Training

Provides online video
training for various
member needs.

Webinar
Based
Training

Provides interactive
webinar based
education opportunities
for WACO members.

Examples
• With the lead of the WACO Education Committee coordinates
keynote and general session speakers
• With the lead of WACO affiliate education chairs coordinates
training, speakers, and logistical needs for conference affiliate
specific training and meetings
• Coordinates cross-affiliate education, training, and forums
including possible speakers and logistical needs during the annual
conference
• With the lead of the WACO Education Committee coordinates daylong general session topics and speakers to provide member wide
training for newly elected county officials
• With the lead of WACO affiliate presidents and education chairs
coordinates logistical needs for affiliate specific education
opportunities relating to newly elected county official training
needs
• Films, edits, and hosts in-person training sessions online for future
viewing on the WACO webpage or intranet
• Films and edits trainings provided as a data file for client to host or
utilize determined by their own needs
• In consultation with the WACO Education Committee identifies
topics for online training in either stand alone or modular form
• Creates training curricula for targeted audience’s training
outcomes
• Scripts, films, edits, and hosts training video for the training
• Augments training videos with online education resources,
brochures, and other documents as needed
• In consultation with the WACO Education Committee identifies
topics for interactive webinar based education opportunities
• Creates training curricula for targeted audience’s training
outcomes
• Tracks registration and participation in online webinars
• Hosts recorded record of online webinars for future viewing with
the ability to track viewership for certification purposes
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Legislation

Training Resource Hub

Serves as a resource
hub for non-WACO
training opportunities
available for WACO
members and their staff.

Education/Training

Provides education and
training not only for
WACO members – but
also for legislators,
legislative staff, and
stakeholders.

Technical Assistance

Provides legislative and
policy technical
assistance to members,
affiliates, legislators,
legislative staff, and
stakeholders in the form
of interim legislative
outreach, education, and
support.
Provides direct lobbying
support for WACO
priority bills, advocacy
on bills affecting
affiliates.

Representation and
Advocacy

• Coordinates with partner agencies the dissemination of
information regarding training available to WACO members
• Creates partnerships with non-traditional sources of training for
WACO members and provides information on how to participate
• Works with partners to create and provide an avenue for multiagency training for WACO members
• Building and sustaining positive working relationships with your
state legislators
• Overview of the legislative process and how a bill becomes law
• From idea to implementation: achieving policy change through the
legislative process
• Recorded webinar – Navigating the Washington Legislature’s
Website
• Upcoming recorded webinar – Legislative Process 101
• Determining association’s short and long term legislative priorities
and strategies for success
• Written info and advocacy materials
• Provide support for issue based work groups
• Research emerging policy trends nationally
• Produce information videos

• Preps testimony and presentations
• Creates legislative awareness building on policy issues regarding
current and future legislation
• Fosters relationship building with target legislators, staff, and
stakeholders
• Coordinates rapid response to emerging legislation
• Handles logistics regarding meetings, gatherings, and official
legislative functions
• Provides bill tracking and daily bill status updates on affiliate and
other bills of relevance
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Communication Education/Training

Provides education and
training not only for
WACO members – but
also for external
stakeholders on the
roles and
responsibilities of
elected county officials.

• Reviews, edits, and publishes a compendium of information on the
roles and responsibilities of county officials: Washington County
Government
• Coordinates sharing of Washington County Government with
members, stakeholders, partners, education institutions, and the
general public
• Creates original content and shares county resources on social
media that provides education and training on the roles of elected
county officials and their offices
• Creates online audiovisual content describing the roles and
responsibilities of elected county officials and their offices
• Creates graphic content, brochures, handouts, talking points, etc.
describing the roles and responsibilities of elected county officials
and their offices for various external stakeholders

Media Advocacy

Provides media support
for WACO, affiliate, and
member initiatives.

Technical Assistance

Provides
communications based
technical assistance to
affiliates and members.

• Drafts press release language and distributes news releases to a
wide spectrum of media outlets regarding WACO issues, as well as
assist affiliates and members to do the same
• Curates a contact list of local, regional, statewide, and national
media contacts for radio, television, newsprint, and influential
online media portals that can be used to disseminate press releases
for WACO, affiliates, or members
• Drafts language and works with editorial boards to place Op Ed
content regarding topics of interest to WACO, affiliates, or its
members
• Provides members media training and press relations advice
• Provides web design advice and services for affiliates web needs
• Provides communications best practices advice on several topics
including web design, social media policy and procedure creation,
content creation and more
• Researches and provides tech solutions for complex situations
including remote collaboration, cloud storage usage under
different IT structures and more
• Provides design assistance for affiliate and member publication
and online needs
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B – References
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From: Dalton, Vicky <VDalton@spokanecounty.org>
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 11:49 AM
To: Jennifer Wallace <jennifer@countyofficials.org>
Subject: Recommendation of WACO Project Management

[External Sender]
Hi Jennifer,
I am pleased to provide my recommendation for the services WACO provided for the report on Irrigation
District elections.
WACO provided high-quality project management to WSAC for the Irrigation District election project in
2019. The legislature mandated a report regarding the election processes of the Irrigation Districts and
recommendations for improvements.
Jennifer Wallace and her staff at WACO scheduled and managed the meetings of a large group of
stakeholders, coordinated the gathering of information and authored the final report to the
Legislature. Throughout the process, Jennifer and her staff ensured that all voices were heard, that
information was validated and factual, and that the project remained within its designated scope.
Due in large part to the quality and comprehensive coverage of the final report, the Legislature gained a
better understanding of the challenges, deficiencies and potential improvements in Irrigation District
elections. With Jennifer’s leadership and WACO’s support, the project was a success for all
stakeholders.
Regards,
Vicky M Dalton, CPA | Spokane County Auditor
1116 W Broadway | Spokane WA | 99260
509.477.2262 |509.688.5114 cell
vdalton@spokanecounty.org
www.spokanecounty.org
NOTICE: All e-mails sent to this address will be received by the Spokane County e-mail system and may
be subject to public disclosure under GR-31 and Chapter 42.56 RCW and to archiving and review.
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From: Diana Bradrick <DBradric@co.whatcom.wa.us>
Sent: Friday, May 21, 2021 12:48 PM
To: Jennifer Wallace <jennifer@countyofficials.org>
Subject: RE: WACO proposal to WSACA

DATE:
TO:
FROM:
RE:

May 22, 2021
WSACA Executive Board
Diana Bradrick, Whatcom County Auditor
WACO Reference

I’m writing to provide a reference for WACO as it relates to their performance with work
provided to WSACA. As a prior Legislative Committee Chair, I can state without reservation that
I couldn’t have done it without WACO’s support, more specifically that of Jennifer Wallace and
Mike Shaw. They provided a wealth of knowledge on the legislative process, strategy
development, and tracking of both the Auditor’s priority bills and proposed legislation affecting
our offices. Their organization, communication and follow-through were invaluable. Further,
as a member of the WACO Legislative Committee it was clear to me that that same level of
service was provided to all of the affiliate associations. We would have been in a much worse
position at the end of the 2020 legislative session without their expertise and support. As an
on-going member of the Auditor’s Legislative Committee I can attest that their support has
been on-going and continues to be critical to our success legislatively. I highly recommend
WACOs legislative services.

db
Diana Bradrick
Whatcom County Auditor
360-778-5105
Dbradric@co.whatcom.wa.us
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Washington State Association of County Treasurers

Date:

May 28, 2021

To:

Darla McKay, President
Washington State Association of County Auditors

From:

Jeff Gadman, Legislative Committee Chair, Washington State Association of
County Treasurers, Thurston County Treasurer

I am writing this letter of support for the Washington Association of County Officials'
(WACO) response to your recent RFP regarding administrative, legislative, and conference
services. In recent years, WACO has been instrumental to WSACT’s success working with
the Legislature. Their flexible, tailored approach is highly supportive of our association
goals.
WACO has provided WSACT with legislative tracking and updates that have proved to be
vital to our legislative endeavors. They have used a combination of personal messages and
regular emailed updates to bring our attention to legislative developments in a timely
manner so that we could effectively respond. They have further assisted us working with
legislators to find agreeable solutions to problematic legislation, rather than just standing in
opposition. This has had a positive impact on our relationship with the legislature and we
have seen our voice grow in the legislature in a manner that we would be unable to do on
our own.
WACO's staff are service- and detail-oriented, highly accessible, and strategic in their
approach to achieving difficult legislative asks. In the past 2 years alone, WACO staff and
their contract lobbyist Michael Shaw have helped WSACT inform and influence
legislative priority proposals on key policy issues , such as affordable housing.
Beyond their outstanding legislative support, WACO staff has provided valuable support to
us as an association in managing logistics and conduct of our regional legislative meetings
and the affiliate time hosted at the WACO annual conference.
WSACT believes it is in the best interest of all county elected official associations to be
connected and well-supported in their operations, including a coordinated approach to
development and implementation of our individual and cross-affiliate legislative agendas.
We believe WACO is best positioned to accomplish this.

.'
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Washington State Association of County Assessors
Date:

May 28, 2021

To:

Darla McKay, President
Washington State Association of County Auditors

From:

Dave Thomas, President, Washington State Association of
County Assessors, Skagit County Assessor

I am writing this letter of support for the Washington Association of County Officials'
(WACO) response to your recent RFP regarding administrative, legislative, and conference
services. WSACA values WACO and its services to our organization as a key partner in our
success.
WACO has provided WSACA with legislative tracking and updates that have proved to be
vital to our legislative endeavors. Through their regular updates, and constant tracking of
legislative developments, they have brought to our attention, and we have been able to
timely address, legislation affecting us. WACO's staff are service- and detail-oriented,
highly accessible, and strategic in their approach to achieving difficult legislative asks.
This past year, WACO stepped up and assisted WSACA in transitioning our planned
membership conference into a virtual event. They handled the logistics seamlessly and
provided all the tools we needed to facilitate a successful event.
County elected officials and their associations have the potential to learn from and benefit
one another on an ongoing basis if this is facilitated and supported. WACO is our shared
association, and we hope WSACA’s needs may be met contracting with WACO.

David M. Thomas, President
Washington State Association of County Assessors
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360 – 481 – 6160
Jenniferlwallace1@gmail.com

Jennifer Wallace
Experienced legislative advocate and strategic policy advisor
Skilled manager of complex, time-sensitive initiatives

SKILLS

Track record of delivering on organizational goals and strategic plans

Legislative advocacy,
negotiating and
consensus building

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Stakeholder
engagement

Executive Director
Washington Association of County Officials
Olympia, WA (8/2019 – Present)

Organizational leadership and management of day-to-day operations
of the association office, including fiscal, facility and personnel
matters. Serve as Secretary to the Board of Trustees and primary
staff for all Committees. Represent the organization to legislators
and external stakeholders. Facilitate development and
implementation of Association’s strategic plan. Ensure Board and
members are timely, appropriately, and accurately informed about
issues of importance to the Association.

Deputy Director
Washington Association of County Officials
Olympia, WA (6/2018 – Present)

Lead development and secure support for legislative proposals of
elected officials (Auditors, Assessors, Clerks, Coroners, Prosecutors,
Sheriffs and Treasurers) in all 39 counties across Washington
State. Draft legislation, data-driven advocacy materials and position
statements for each elected officials’ state association. Provide
training and guidance to members on establishing and maintaining
legislative relations. Manage government and stakeholder outreach
and engagement. Define scope of work of contract lobbyists. Assist
Executive Director and staff in achieving goals and objectives of the
Association strategic plan.

Executive Director
Washington Professional Educator Standards Board
Olympia, WA (2000 – 2006; 2007 - 2017)

Led state policy and regulatory board and staff governing all licensed
education professions. Represented and advocated for PESB to the
Governor, state legislature, state and national education associations
and the federal government. Oversaw development and
implementation of policy initiatives, strategic plan and organizational
staffing and work plans. Directed government and stakeholder
outreach and engagement. Maintained currency in and provide
timely updates for the Board related to emerging national and state
policy trends and political context. Provided ongoing budget
oversight and management.

Network building and
enhancement
Strategic Planning
Multi-million budgets
and grant
management
State and federal
policy formulation and
analysis
Written and verbal
presentation of
complex policy issues
Targeted technical
assistance

EDUCATION
Stanford University:
M.A. in Public Policy
University of
Colorado, Denver:
Graduate School of
Public Affairs,
graduate coursework
University of
Colorado, Denver:
B.A. in organizational
psychology
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Director of Government Relations
The Evergreen State College, Olympia, WA (2006-2007)

Served as sole institutional lobbyist for operating and capital legislative policy and budget
proposals. Prepared policy and budget proposals for President and Board of Trustees. Developed
and maintained relationships with legislators and stakeholders. Published weekly legislative
briefings for all campus faculty and staff. Provided daily briefings to the President during the
legislative session. Served as liaison for congressional initiatives affecting the institution. Testified
on behalf of the Council of Presidents, representing all public baccalaureate institutions in
Washington State.

Governor’s Education Policy Advisor
State of Washington, Governor’s Executive Policy Office
Olympia, WA (1998 – 2001)

Briefed and advised Governor on K-12 education issues. Served as Governor’s representative to
the legislature and education boards, agencies and organizations. Developed and managed
Governor’s education policy initiatives. Reviewed and provided written analysis of proposed
legislation. Advocated for legislation in support of Governor’s policy and budget proposals.
Provided oversight for Governor-appointed education boards and commissions.

Policy Center Director (1996 – 1998)
Policy Analyst, State Services Division (1994 – 1996)
NE & Islands Regional Education Lab, Providence, RI; Andover, MA

Provided analysis and technical assistance related to formulation and implementation of state and
federal education policy. Identified and analyzed regional and national trends in education policies
and programs. Produced policy and practice briefs and working papers on research and policyrelated issues. Networked with major national education organizations and associations.
Convened policymakers, education and community leaders on current policy issues. Targeted
direct policy assistance to individual states. Managed project budgets and staff.

Research Associate, Programs and Policy Studies (1991 – 1992)
Research Assistant, State Relations (1989 – 1991)
Project Assistant, Programs and Policy Studies (1986 – 1989)
Education Commission of the States, Denver, CO

Tracked and analyzed state reform activities on a wide range of education issues. Contributed to
development and implementation of state relations plans that encouraged active participation of
states in on-going ECS activities and projects. Served as organizational resource on issues of
school restructuring and system change, K-12/higher education partnerships, early childhood
education, and community involvement. Developed grant proposals and managed budgets for
funded projects.

SAMPLE PRESENTATIONS
Washington State Legislative Education Funding Task Force, May 11, 2016. Retrieved from
http://www.tvw.org/watch/?eventID=2016051027, Time index 15:56.
Washington State Legislature, Early Learning and K-12 Education Committee, March 14, 2017.
Retrieved from https://www.tvw.org/watch/?eventID=2017031136 Time index 25:51.
National Press Conference / Panel Presentation and Roll-Out of edTPA, National Press Club,
November 12, 2014. Retrieved from http://edtpa.aacte.org/uncategorized/new-assessment-forteacher-candidates-rolls-out-after-two-years-of-field-testing.html. Time index 33:30
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Ed Conversations Panel with Rev. Al Sharpton, Katy Haycock and Chester Finn, Seattle University,
May 9, 2011. Retrieved from https://www.seattleu.edu/coe/conversation.aspx.

SELECT PUBLICATIONS
Washington PESBoard (2016). Addressing the Recurring Nature of Teacher Shortages. (Policy
Brief). Retrieved from https://goo.gl/yKiJjn.
Washington PESBoard (2014). Teachers who pass the ProTeach Portfolio assessment are more
effective than those who fail, according to a U of WA Bothell study. [Press Release]. Retrieved
from https://goo.gl/svHmcT.
Washington PESBoard (2012). Educator Workforce Regional Meetings A Report to the Governor
and Washington State Legislature on the Status of Requirements in SB 6696. Olympia, WA: Author.
Retrieved from https://goo.gl/WRmLK4
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Timothy M. Grisham
1700 Glass Ave NE; Olympia, WA 98506 / 360-561-8934 / timothy.grisham@gmail.com

Key Skills

Professional Experience

• Legislative Relations
• Policy Development

Public Sector
Experience

• Community Outreach
• Strategic Communications

Deputy Director, WA Association of County Officials
Nov. 2019 – Present
Director of Communications, WA Association of County Officials
Feb. 2015 – Nov. 2019
Communications Manager, WA State Board of Health
April 2013 – Feb. 2015
Legislative Coordinator, WA State Dept. of Corrections

• Public/Media Relations
• Communications Planning
• Emergency Communications

Jan. 2013 – April 2013
Health Insurance Specialist, WA Health Care Authority
May 2010 – May 2011

• Social Media
• Web Design

Communications Consultant, WA Dept. of Revenue
July 2008 – Jan. 2009

• Project Management
• Administration

Administrative Coordinator, WA State Dept. of Corrections
Oct. 2005 – July 2008
Computer Information Consultant, WA State Dept. of Corrections
Sept. 1997 – July 1998

Education
New York University
New York, NY
Masters Degree Awarded
June 2004
Evergreen State College
Olympia, WA
Bachelors Degree Awarded
June 2002
National Writers Workshop /
Poynter Institute June 2002
Crisis Communications Forum /
Evans School of Public
Administration, University of
Washington May 2014

Professional
Timothy Grisham

Administrative
Experience

Other
Experience

Office/Facilities Manager and Account Receivable, Grove/Atlantic, Inc. April
2004 – October 2004
Office Manager, CBGB OMFUG Jan. 2003 – April 2004
Program Staff / Community Outreach / Web Designer, Ghetto Film School Sept.
2002 – June 2003
Director of Media Suite / Fringe Fest Coordinator, Olympia Film Society Nov.
1995 – July 2002; March 2005 – Oct. 2005
City of Olympia Arts Commissioner March 2017 – Feb. 2021 (served as chair
2019/2020)
Vice-President, Bridge Music Project May 2017 – Present
Board Member, Arbutus Folk School Sept. 2019 – Sept. 2020
Founding Board of Directors, Olympia Arts & Heritage Alliance June 2018 – May
2019 Advisor May 2019 – Present
Contributing Writer, Weekly Volcano July 2012 – Feb. 2015
Contributing Writer, SSG Music Jan. 2013 – Jan. 2015
News Editor, SSG Music Nov. 2011 – Jan. 2013
Touring Musician April 2009 – April 2010; Aug. 2011 – Oct. 2011
Film Director, The American Memory Project March 2003 – May 2004
House Manager/Audio Tech., Midnight Sun Jan. 2000 – July 2002
Photography Editor, Cooper Point Journal Aug. 2001 – June 2002

● Confidential ● Detail Oriented ● Resourceful ● Efficient
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Public Screenings and
Showcases
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2000 17th annual Olympia Film Festival
(Oct.)
2000 9th annual Austin Short Film Festival
2000 T.E.S.C. media showcase. Lecture Hall
four (April)
2002 Olympia Arts Walk Festival (April,
Capitol Theater)
2003 Hamptons International Film Festival
2003 Heartland Film Festival
2003 Hi-Res New York, NY
2003 Smithsonian Institute Washington, DC
2006 National Portrait Gallery
(Smithsonian) Washington, DC
2016 WA State History Museum
2020 Olympia Arts Walk Festival (April-Oct.
Revival Motors and Coffee)

Freelance Experience

Freelance
Design
Clients
(selected)

Aires and Graces, Buzz Magazine, Contra Records, Dark Palms, Dead End
Social Club, Ghetto Film School, Grove Press, Happy Noose, Longshot
Records, Olympia All Ages Project, Olympia Film Festival, Thunders
Mouth Press, Time Out New York, The Ton Magazine, T-Minus Magazine,
10003 Magazine, 11211 Magazine, SSG Music, Weekly Volcano

Freelance
Publication
History (by
selected
publication)

Buzz magazine, Careless Talk Costs Lives, CMJ, Cooper Point Journal,
Daily Olympian, Matte Magazine, Maximum RocknRoll, Oblivion,
Panache Magazine, People Magazine, Punk Planet, SSG Music, The Ton
Magazine, T-Minus Magazine, Seattle Weekly, The Stranger, Weekly
Volcano

Current Duties and Achievements
The Deputy Director is a multifaceted position that incorporates elements of legislative advocacy,
strategic communications, administration and policy development.
The Deputy Director works with WACO Leadership to inform and advise long-term policy goals
and direction of affiliates and the organization, providing comprehensive policy-level staffing
assistance, including researching state and national policy trends and best practices affecting
affiliate roles.
The Deputy Director closely monitors and tracks emerging and introduced state legislative
proposals, sharing information with the Executive Director and affiliates as appropriate. The
Deputy Director also monitors relevant Congressional action and other federal activity affecting
county officials.
The Deputy Director is responsible for developing and implementing WACO’s strategic
communications plan, and provides guidance to affiliates on strategic communications topics.
The Deputy Director manages the association in the absence of the Executive Director.

Timothy Grisham
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MICHAEL E. SHAW
Shaw- Government Relations - Providing lobbying services since 1999

Formed by Michael Shaw in 1999, Shaw – Government Relations a state government
lobbying firm in Washington State. Based in Seattle, but with an office in the Washington
Counties Building in Olympia, Shaw – Government Relations has led large lobbying efforts
on a wide variety of issues; from criminal justice proposals to regional transportation
governance.

PRIOR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

WASHINGTON STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES - Policy Director
Olympia, Washington
November 1996 - November 1999
Represented Washington’s 39 counties before the state legislature. Responsible for initiating
and developing strategic planning efforts in both public and legislative arenas. Liaison
between WSAC and the Office of Financial Management, the Department of Transportation,
the Department of Revenue, the Department of Social and Family Services, and the
Department of Corrections. In 1999, given responsibility for all transportation issues impacting
counties.
KING COUNTY - Director, Government Relations
Seattle, Washington
December 1995 - November 1996
Responsible for developing and implementing county’s legislative agenda -- primarily focusing
on county finance and regional services, including transit.
SENATE REPUBLICAN CAUCUS - Staff Counsel and Floor Attorney
Olympia, Washington
January 1993 - December 1995
Drafted legislation, resolutions, legal memorandums, memorials, and bill summaries for
senators and staff. Researched legality and effect of state and federal legislation. Provided
insight regarding public policy and political strategy to caucus members. Advised leadership
regarding parliamentary issues.
KING COUNTY PROSECUTOR'S OFFICE - Deputy Prosecutor
Seattle, Washington
September 1988 - January 1993
Filed and argued criminal cases before the King County District and Superior Courts,
Washington State Court of Appeals (Division One), and the Washington State Supreme Court.
Extensive trial experience.

EDUCATION

Juris doctorate, 1988 -- Northwestern School of Law of Lewis and Clark College, Admitted to
Washington State Bar - December 1988
Bachelor of Arts, 1985 -- University of Washington, Seattle, Washington.
Political Science Major.
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Client list:

Aladdin Bail Bonds
American Planners Association
American Public Works Association
American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals
King County
Pierce County
Washington Association of County Officials
Washington Federation of Animal Control Agencies
Washington State Transit Association
Liberty Mutual Insurance
Washington State Bar Association
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Lisa A. Gancel

1266 Susitna Lane SW | Tumwater, WA 98512
360.480.3739 | itsgantzfam@hotmail.com

Summary

Confident in performance and knowledge of GAAP with 25+ years’ experience in non-profit and for-profit
industry. Setting high expectations of the work performed to ensure trust in the process and integrity in the
corporate financial picture. Policy driven decision maker with an eye on improvement opportunities. Proud to
achieve and provide clean audits both independent and government.

Experience
2017-Present

Washington Association of County Officials (WACO) (a nonprofit IRS 501 (c)3 corporation) Olympia, WA
360.753.7319
Finance and Administration Manager
 Ensure the integrity of the finances by keeping accurate records
 Timely prepare financial reports for management, audit committees, and Board members
 Serve as liaison with state and independent auditors for annual and periodic audits; prepare documents for
audits; relay audit results with management and Board members
 Work with internal controls and financial policies; suggesting new ideas to strengthen financial integrity
 Manage accounts payable and accounts receivable; contractor files, verify bills for payment; prepare invoices for
billing of services, prepare payments received for deposit; reconcile multiple bank accounts in multiple funds
 Interpret, maintain and manage complete records of costs and revenues for multiple funds using double-entry
financial software
 Prepare annual budgets for multiple funds working closely with budget committee and management using
projections, cash flow, and historical reports; assist with preparation and adoption of the budget
 Prepare and file various state and local quarterly and annual business taxes, licenses and non-profit reports
 Comfortable working with government agencies such as Dept of Revenue, Secretary of State, Stat Auditor’s
Office, Public Disclosure Commission, Internal Revenue Service, Labor and Industries, Dept of Enterprise
Services, Employment Security Dept as needed to report information, perform tasks and/or resolve situations
 Prepare and provide data needed by Board members to file annual PDC F-1 reports
 Assist management in searching for and negotiating CD rates for investments; tracking investment deadlines
 Receive and review job applicant documents; set appointments for interviews; provide new hire setup and
transition with needed equipment, supplies, software, etc.
 Securely manage and maintain employee files and other employment records
 Process payroll; prepare and file payroll tax deposits and liability payments
 Prepare and file quarterly and annual reports including 941’s, Workers Comp, Unemployment, Paid Family and
Medical, W2/W3’s, 1099’s, 1094/1095s, SSA, and others as required
 Track timesheets, paid time off and benefits for staff
 Serve as benefits and retirement fund coordinator/administrator regarding benefit packages; communicating
relevant information to staff, coordination of 401k participant’s reports, ensuring annual IRS filing of Form 8905;
making recommendations for change
 Perform various administrative functions such as maintain supplies, manage office equipment contracts; plan
conferences, meetings, trainings to include overnight accommodations, banquet and a/v services
 Recommend and serve as administrator to various software used by staff
 Manage and maintain documents for retention, manage personal property schedule and annual review; file
annual personal property report
 Work with commercial insurance companies to maintain appropriate coverages for property, Board of Trustees
and staff, and others various plans
 Work with management to develop and write policies related to administrative and financial business
 Comply with company policies, procedures and guidelines, follow general accounting practices, guidelines by
Washington’s RCWs and State Auditors Office
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Lisa A. Gancel

1266 Susitna Lane SW | Tumwater, WA 98512
360.480.3739 | itsgantzfam@hotmail.com

2007-2017

Batdorf & Bronson Coffee Roasters (Challain, Inc.) Olympia, WA 360.754.5282
Accounting Lead / Manager (2014-Present)


Direct and oversee Accounting staff of 4, their workloads, tasks, and projects



Oversee, engage, and provide daily and emergent functions of AR, AP, Inventory, GL, taxes, reporting, 7 retail
outlets, 2 wholesale production teams, corporate staff, and members



Provide support, counsel, and solutions to the company with respect to data and information coming from all
retail and wholesale locations



Monitor information and data for accuracy



Develop processes and procedures for the accounting department, and relative to accounting software’s
functionality; seek out new ways to improve



Initiate and coordinate multi-bank transfers, multi-bank accounts and credit card reconciliations, paying
vendors by check and electronic means



File and process a variety of monthly, quarterly, and annual reports and taxes to numerous city, county, and
state authorities, banks, and other vendors



Retain current and archival records of vendors, contracts, leases, permits, taxes, and business documents



Train and educate the accounting staff in all areas affecting their roles and tasks



Prepare employee reimbursements and charges of personal purchases for payroll



Process and maintain Fixed Asset Management (FAM) tagging system



Assist with setup of new locations (e.g., merchant accts, sales tax, vendor setup, landlord liaison, permits, etc.)



Year-end 1099-Misc preparation and filing; TIN matching for all vendors



Assist departments with creating relevant reports pulling from accounting software internal reports and/or
exporting into refreshable Excel reports

Accounts Payable Coordinator / Lead (2012-2014)
 Maintain inventories for accurate month, quarterly and year-end reporting
 Allocate weekly shipping costs to appropriate profit centers
 Track employee reimbursements including maintenance and retrieval of appropriate receipts
 Monitor and reconcile various company bank accounts including loans and inter-company accounts
 Maintain inventory listings, item numbers, price adjustments and inventory transfers for all locations
 Regulate use of manual checks including reconciliation to accounting program and bank accounts
 Research various costs as processed through accounting to support the company and departmental goals
 Calculate and file multi-state monthly/quarterly Business & Occupation and Sales Taxes
 Daily, weekly, and monthly accounts payable processes including invoice reconciliation, payment
processing, check mailing and file maintenance
 Coordination of department staff workload
 Provide training as needed to staff in Washington and Georgia
 Serve as backup to Accounts Receivable Coordinator
Accounts Receivable Coordinator (2007-2012)
 Oversee, monitor, and maintain collection and reconciliation of the company’s national accounts receivables
 Oversee accuracy of billings and credits for wholesale and mail order customers
 Perform income auditing for wholesale, mail order and retail locations to include daily bank deposit and
processed credit card sales
 Collection of NSF checks and past due accounts – reduced delinquency to less than 1% over 60 days
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Lisa A. Gancel

1266 Susitna Lane SW | Tumwater, WA 98512
360.480.3739 | itsgantzfam@hotmail.com
 Work closely with customers via phone, mail, email and in person to aid in billing and collection activities, as
well as building customer relations
 Prepare correspondences to customers and vendors as needed to perform desired tasks
 Provide personal attention to customers by listening and communicating to build relationships that aid in
resolution of account concerns
 Establish payment terms for accounts requesting in-house credit by providing background checks
 Upkeep current and accurate information on all customers including tax identifications, state certificates, credit
cards, and other business data
 Assist accounts payable coordinator with data entry of invoices, sales, and vendor statements
 Prepare monthly reconciliations for multiple bank accounts from multiple banks
 Prepare employee reimbursements and charges of personal purchases for payroll
 Audit, process and prepare payment for 30+ company employee issued credit card expenses
 Provide reports and results of the company’s receivables to managers and owners

 Responsible for up-keeping balanced general ledger accounts
 Prepare and electronically submit multi-state business and occupancy, and sales taxes for payment
 Archive accounting documents for long term storage and retrieval using scanners to eliminate the need for
paper storage

2005 – 2007

TitleVentures, LLC / SeaCrest Homes, LLC Chesapeake, VA 757.962.9844
Full Charge Bookkeeper / Executive Assistant / Office Administrator / Procurement

 Responsible for 10 simultaneously active LLC’s accounts payable and accounts receivables which includes
job costing, bank draws, posting of all payments received, deposit preparation & posting, loan
reconciliations in preparation of monthly financials

 Maintain reconciliation and maintenance of the companies’ general ledgers
 Create and update reports as needed
 Daily project and budget tracking, monitoring, reporting and support in the new home building division to
include working with 2 owners, bank officers, architects, city inspectors, public works, utilities,
subcontractors, suppliers, realtors, home owners’ association, and other branches of various city and state
government

 Procurement and inventory of company supplies, printing needs & promotional items, as well as new
development and home building supplies; working with subcontractors for current contracts and
insurances

 Assist the Vice President with preparing deposits and maintaining deposit logs for multiple simultaneously
active Title Insurance Agencies

 Coordinate and execute the opening and closing of satellite offices to include furnishing, supplying and
networking

 Provide office IT/network support of software & hardware to include updates, upgrades & workstation
training; network & website administration & troubleshooting; training as needed

 Review and edit legal documents (i.e. purchase contracts, deeds, titles, equipment leases) as required
 Create forms, templates, flyers, announcements, and signs needed for marketing, home building projects,
etc.

 Prepare and maintain detailed database of company records and files for offsite file storage and retrieval;
established electronic archival system for the company’s documents using a copier/scanner

 Perform tasks that requires independent judgment, initiative, and creativity
 Provide direct support to the President, as his Executive Assistant, for meeting coordination, filing,
organizing, drafting, and typing correspondence, upkeep corporate books, real estate closings,
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Lisa A. Gancel

1266 Susitna Lane SW | Tumwater, WA 98512
360.480.3739 | itsgantzfam@hotmail.com
communicate with company partners on business matters, meeting representation, upkeep Outlook
schedules and contacts

 Liaison to outside accounting firm for year-end audits and tax filings
 Liaison to insurance broker regarding the companies’ general liability, property & casualty, flood, umbrella
policies, builders’ risk

1996 - 2005

Tidewater Maritime Training Institute, Inc. (TMTI), (a nonprofit IRS 501 (c) 3 education facility) and Virginia Ship
Repair Association, Inc. (VSRA), (a nonprofit IRS 501 (c) 6 trade association) Norfolk, VA 757.23.7034
Executive Assistant / Office Manager / Full Charge Bookkeeper / Payroll / Event / Seminar Coordinator

 Responsible for daily function and support for approximately 180 member companies
 Responsible for calculating and tracking staff payroll, benefits and leave, accounts payable and accounts
receivables, preparing, and filing of monthly, quarterly, and annual taxes

 Responsible for posting all payments received, deposit preparation, bank reconciliations, preparation of
monthly financials

 Responsible to maintain the reconciliation and maintenance of the companies’ general ledgers
 Responsible for coordinating (supplies, materials, donations, collections, etc.) and accounting for training
programs, seminars, and golf outings, monthly membership meetings, luncheons, graduation, and
retirement ceremonies from 10-300 people

 Responsible for providing support to training instructors with setup of training equipment, grading,
monitoring, and certifications

 Responsible for creating flyers, announcements, and registrations to alert the membership and public of
upcoming events, trainings, and meetings








Responsible to maintain and prepare database of company’s membership contacts, billings, and rosters






Telephone communications

Responsible for supervising temporary staff, as needed
Perform routine and non-routine tasks that requires independent judgment, initiative, and creativity
Liaison to outside accounting firms for 990s, compilations, and audits in accordance with company’s bylaws
Support given to maintain accuracy of company’s website
Support given to Board of Directors and President with filtering and preparing of appropriate business
information for the members
Provide support to VSRA Committee chairpersons and committees, as needed
Provide support in creating & typesetting booklets
Liaison to insurance broker regarding the company’s general liability, property and casualty, bonds,
Directors & Officers policies

 Liaison for staff benefits through health, dental, life, and retirement companies
 Preparation of membership mailings as needed

Key Skills



Organization – Attention to Detail – Analysis – Report Development – Instinct – Software skills: Abila MIP Nonprofit Accounting, Microsoft Dynamics GP ERP, Microsoft Office 365 w/SharePoint, various accounting box and
industry specific proprietary software, QuickBooks
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MELANIE TERRY
SK I L L E D EV E N T P L A N N E R & G R A P H IC D E SIG N E R

Dynamic and driven employee with 5+ years of working for non-profits and government agencies.
Excellent adaption skills to cater to job descriptions with a wide variety of needs. Successfully implemented
branding guides, marketing policies, and social media campaigns to match the goals of the organization.
Executed events and conferences with record sponsorship, and increased attendee experiences.

MELANIE@COUNTYOFFICIALS.ORG

(360)489-3043

206 10TH AVE SE, OLYMPIA, WA 98501

EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

April 2020 - Present | Olympia, WA
Washington Association of County Officials
Member Services Manager
•
•
•

•

•
•

June - August, 2016
George Mason University
The Fund For American Studies, Leadership & The
American Presidency

Serves as the WACO graphic designer, designing annual reports
and publications and legislative policy briefs.
Creates and maintains association website by managing day-today content, appearance and access.
Prepares and distributes association’s general informational and
communications, including the Courthouse Journal and the
Membership Directory.
Serves as the primary Event Manager for the WACO Annual
Conference, including coordinating with the conference hotel,
arranging affiliate room requirements and soliciting exhibitors
and sponsors.
Assists with organizing and planning WACO and Affiliates’
meetings, education and training.
With Direction from the Executive Director, conducts member
outreach, soliciting feedback from WACO members on
satisfaction with services provided and future services desired.

2013 - 2017
University of South Carolina
Bachelor’s Degree in Policitcal Science
March 2021 - Present
University of Texas, San Antonio
Adobe Certified Assoicate Course
May 2021 - Present
Syracuse University, Institute for Veterans & Military
Families
Project Management Professional Certification (PMP)

ACHIEVEMENTS
2019
Spartanburg County Foundation Grassroots
Leadership

2019 - 2020 | Lacey, WA
Lacey South Sound Chamber
Event Planner
•

•
•

Served as the lead event planner for Chamber and their partners,
including the planning of grand openings, networking events,
Lacey South Sound Chamber Business Awards, Forum, and the
Annual Golf Tournament.
Maintained and solicited vendors and sponsors for the Chamber’s
events.
Communicated with stakeholders to coordinate special projects
which enhanced the Lacey community in a positive way.

2017 - 2019 | Spartanburg, SC
Chapman Cultural Center
Special Event Coordinator
•

•
•

Organized and implemented all Chapman events, including
Soaring! Kite Festival, Sundays Unplugged, December Craft Fair
and Board of Trustees Gala.
Collected regular data needed to evaluate effectiveness and
impact of the Chapman.
Develop and maintain an equitable and just application and
selection process that identifies diverse and qualified local artist
to participate in events and programs.

2019
SAVVY Arts Institute
Graduate

TECHNICAL SKILLS
•
•
•
•
•

Adobe InDeisgn
Adobe Photoshop
Canva
Microsoft Programs
Zoom

•
•
•
•

Mailchimp
SurveyMonkey
CivicEngage
GoToWebinar

PERSONAL SKILLS
•
•
•
•

Creative
Adaptable
Flexible
Kind

•
•
•
•

Organized
Collaborative
Team Player
Dedicated
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D – Branding Guidelines
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PRIMARY LOGO

ALTERNATE/SECONDARY LOGO

This is WACO’s primary logo and should be used for
the majority of print and graphic designs. It should not
be skewed or altered. If the design requires, the logo
can be used monochromatically in black or white.

WACO’s secondary logo is the W element
from the primary logo. It can be used individually from the primary logo when the
design allows. It can also be used monochromatically in white or black for specific
designs.

COLORS

PRIMARY BLUE

PRIMARY ORANGE

PRIMARY GREY

SECONDARY BLUE

SECONDARY GREY

#146BB1

#E89D4B

#BCBBBB

#144FB8

#939598

R20 G107 B177

R232 G157 B75

R188 G187 B187

R44 G86 B165

R147 G149 B157

FONTS

SECONDARY FONTS

HEADLINES: HELVETICA BOLD

HEADLINES: MOHAVE BOLD

ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ
abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz
0123456789

ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ
abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz
0123456789

BODY COPY: HELVETICA LIGHT
ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ
abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz
0123456789

Helvectica is the primary font family used for headlines and body text, however, Mohave Bold can be
used as a headline font for design purposes. Century Schoolbook can also be used for longer paragraph style text as the primary serif font.

BODY COPY: CENTURY SCHOOLBOOK
ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ
abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz
0123456789

HEADLINES: ARIAL BOLD
BODY COPY: ARIAL
When Helvetica can not be accessed as the primary
font, Arial should be used as a subtitute.

TAGLINE

Representing the Executive Branch of County Government Since 1959.
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DESIGN ELEMENT EXAMPLES

GRAPHIC ELEMENTS/ICONS

The WACO logo and secondary logo
should be centered, aligned left or aligned
right. It should be used without discoloration, unless monochromatically.
Do not skew, alter or warp the WACO logo
or secondary logo.

SOCIAL MEDIA CAMPAIGN GRAPHIC EXAMPLES
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E – Financial and Internal Controls Policy
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FINANCIAL AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
PURPOSE
To have in place internal controls to eliminate opportunity for misappropriation or
improper financial activity, and to provide a method by which the financial data is to be
processed.
AUTHORITY
• WACO Constitution and Bylaws Article VII, Section 7.1
• Financial and Internal Controls Policy adopted July 11, 2012, amended October
1, 2019, amended March 9, 2021
• Credit Card Use policy amended July 21, 2016, consolidated into Financial and
Internal Controls Policy October 1, 2019
• Bank Account Signatures Policy adopted July 10, 2019, consolidated into
Financial and Internal Controls Policy October 1, 2019
POLICY
1) This policy governs WACO’s financial operations. If this policy in any way
conflicts with the WACO Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or any applicable
state or federal regulation, such Article, Bylaw, or regulation shall prevail.
2) General Provisions
a) It is the policy of the Washington Association of County Officials (WACO) that
all financial operations must be conducted in an accurate, accountable,
transparent, and efficient manner. This policy is intended to ensure that all
financial operations can be tracked and understood.
b) This policy, together with WACO’s adopted Financial Procedures, is
designed to prohibit any single person from having unrestricted control of
WACO’s finances and to provide a structure to ensure that all financial
operations are subject to timely review by at least one other person.
c) Review by Outside, Independent Entities – Best practices dictate
independent review is a vital component of ensuring the integrity of WACO’s
finances. In addition to the audit by the State Auditor’s Office pursuant to
RCW 36.47.060, WACO will arrange for a Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to periodically review and make recommendations regarding WACO’s
financial activity.
3) Bank Accounts
a) Creation of Accounts
i) The Association shall create and maintain bank accounts to support and
protect the assets received, or other needs as authorized by the Board of
Trustees from time to time.
b) Access to Accounts
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i) The Executive Director shall have full access, including online, to all
WACO financial accounts and be named on the accounts. This will be all
checking, savings, investment, donor specific and program accounts.
ii) In addition to the Executive Director being named on all accounts, at least
two people from the WACO Board of Trustees, other than the
Secretary/Treasurer, will be additional representatives.
iii) The Finance & Administration Manager must have sufficient access to
WACO’s financial accounts to review WACO’s financial activity, reconcile
account statements, make electronic fund transfers (EFT) and process
online banking bill pay.
iv) The WACO Secretary/Treasurer must have sufficient access to WACO
financial accounts to review WACO’s financial activity.
c) Signature Authority
i) The Executive Director shall be an authorized signer to all accounts. To
prevent a stoppage in business in the absence of the Executive Director,
there shall be additional signers, as authorized by the Board of Trustees
added to the checking accounts to serve as backup signers as needed.
These additional signers consist of 2 members of the Board of Trustees
and 1 WACO staff other than the Finance and Administration Manager. All
checks will have a two-signature requirement. Signers are not authorized
to sign checks made payable to themselves.
ii) The Executive Director shall have the authorization to place their electronic
signature to WACO documents. The Executive Director’s electronic signature
shall be created using the Adobe certificate process whereby the computer
and signature are password protected and include a time stamp with each
use and used only by the Executive Director. Electronic signatures shall not
be used to sign physical bank checks.
d) Investments
i) The Executive Director shall be mindful of interest rates, terms and risks
when pertaining to the Associations funds. Therefore, from time to time,
the Executive Director may need to move funds within the current
accounts or may need to open new accounts. When moving funds is
necessary it should only be handled by bank wires or cashier’s checks
payable to WACO, and never cash. No WACO investments shall not be
held in stocks. Any new accounts opened by the Executive Director
should be reported to the Secretary/Treasurer.
e) Account Limits
i) To protect the cash assets, no account should exceed the FDIC minimum
insured value. As needed, the Executive Director may open new bank
accounts or transfer funds from one bank establishment to another to
adhere to these limits.
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4) Credit Card Use
a) Credit cards shall be owned by WACO and all monthly statements must be
sent to the WACO office. The Executive Director will be issued a WACO
credit card; however, individual credit cards will not be issued to other WACO
staff, officers, or board members.
b) Credit cards are to be used as a convenience when accommodations, travel
expenses, or purchases can be made on-line, or over the phone. With
previous approval by the Executive Director, staff may on occasion use the
WACO credit card for in-person purchases and appropriate backup receipts
are needed for every purchase.
c) Purchases over $250 require prior written approval of the Executive Director.
d) Use of credit cards must be consistent with all other WACO policies and
practices. Credit cards must not be used for personal purposes or for cash
advances. Use of a credit card to purchase alcohol or tobacco products is
also prohibited.
e) In the event of the loss of a credit card, the employee shall immediately notify
the Executive Director and the Finance and Administration Manager.
5) Amendments to Procedures
a) The WACO Executive Director must notify the WACO Board of Trustees if
any amendment(s) are made to the WACO Financial and Internal Controls
Procedures adopted by the Executive Director.
PROCEDURE
1) Financial Software
a) All WACO financial transactions must be properly processed and recorded using
approved financial software.
b) Access to the WACO financial software will be provided using user profiles as
allowed by the software with appropriate profile privileges. Full user access will
be provided to the WACO Finance & Administration Manager with a secondary
user profile provided to the WACO Executive Director. Additional user profiles
can be provided to the Certified Public Accountant who periodically reviews
WACO’s financial activity, and the WACO Secretary/Treasurer.
c) The Finance & Administration Manager is responsible for entering and
processing financial transactions.
2) Accounts Receivable (AR) Invoices
a) AR invoices are to be generated by the Finance & Administration Manager using
WACO's financial software. An electronic version of the invoice is to be retained
in the financial software and a hard copy, together with the appropriate backup
documentation, must be retained until payment is received at which time it
becomes part of the deposit record.
b) If any AR invoice is to be deleted, waived, voided, or otherwise deemed
uncollectible, the hard copy of the invoice, together with the backup

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 165

documentation for the invoice, must be kept with a memorandum giving a
sufficient and detailed explanation for the determination that the invoice should
be deleted, waived, voided, or otherwise deemed uncollectible.
3) Receipt of Revenues
a) Revenues to WACO and/or the scholarship fund are typically received through
the US Mail. Mail that is determined to contain revenue is separated, opened by
the Executive Director or their designee, promptly stamped with the appropriate
bank account’s “deposit only” stamp, photocopied, and then stored in a secure
location pending deposit. Revenues that are received outside of the US Mail are
handled in the same manner.
b) Revenues received through electronic means will be reconciled against batching
reports and bank deposits which confirm actual receipt of any batched amounts.
A hard copy record must be created for electronic receipt of revenues and kept
together with non-electronic deposit records.
c) On very rare occasions, such as at Annual Conference, a fundraising auction for
the WACO scholarship fund may take place whereby cash is received in
conjunction with selling tickets for raffle baskets. The starting and ending ticket
numbers are recorded providing a method to balance the cash received. A cash
lock box is used during an event to securely store cash received. A cash receipt
book is also available to write receipts, as requested, by those purchasing tickets
for the fund raiser. After the event, the ending ticket numbers are recorded on a
piece of paper and the cash counted by two individuals. The individuals should
record their counted cash amounts and sign their names as to affirm the cash
amount counted. This record will become part of the permanent documentation
used for deposit.
4) Deposits
a) Revenues received are to be processed not less than once per week and cannot
be processed by the Finance & Administration Manager unless assisting another
authorized person.
b) To process the deposits, the original financial instrument, stamped with
appropriate “for deposit only” endorsement, along with its copy, and any other
documentation received with the payment must be appended with the invoice(s)
being paid and the backup documentation for the invoice. This bundle of
paperwork will constitute the deposit record for that transaction.
c) Once each financial instrument is appended with the appropriate documentation,
the information from the financial instrument will be recorded onto a deposit
record sheet. At a minimum, the deposit record sheet should include the name
of the entity making the payment, the check number, the check amount, the
check date, and the invoice number and/or purpose of the payment.
d) An itemized receipt will be calculated to total the amount of the deposit and is
attached to the batch of documentation. This receipt will be initialed by a
separate person from whom will prepare for depositing. The itemized receipt
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indicating the total amount of the deposit must be kept with the deposit record
sheet for verification against the deposit receipt created by the bank.
e) Once a deposit is prepared it must be delivered to WACO’s bank for deposit
within 24 hours. Under no circumstances must any WACO deposit be made
“less cash.” The employee making the deposit must insist on receiving a receipt
from the bank showing the total amount deposited into WACO’s checking
account. That employee must produce the bank deposit receipt to another
WACO employee for verification against the itemized receipt from the WACO
deposit record sheet. Once the amount is verified to be exact between the bank
deposit receipt and the itemized receipt from the WACO deposit record sheet,
the WACO employee who made the deposit must sign the WACO deposit record
sheet and the WACO employee who verified the bank deposit receipt must sign
the WACO deposit record sheet.
f) The signed WACO deposit record sheet, the itemized initialed receipt, the bank
deposit receipt, and all backup documentation must be presented to the Finance
& Administration Manager for entering into the financial software. These
transactions will be scanned for retention.
5) Disbursements by Check
a) All disbursements by check must be signed by two persons properly registered
with WACO’s bank as authorized signers on WACO’s checking accounts.
b) The WACO check inventory must be kept in a secure location.
c) Prior to any check being generated by WACO, a WACO Payment Approval Form
must be completed and submitted to the Executive Director for approval. No
check may be generated without first having a completed WACO Payment
Approval Form.
d) As conditions require, the Finance & Administration Manager will conduct a
“check run” to generate disbursements by check from WACO. The Finance &
Administration Manager obtains from a secured location the specific number of
blank checks from the check inventory.
e) The Finance & Administration Manager will generate the checks using the
approved software and present the checks, together with the completed Payment
Approval Form with the Executive Director’s signature and appropriate backup
documentation for signatures.
f) Once each check is signed by two authorized signers the Finance &
Administration Manager will retain a copy of the check, the payment approval
form, invoice, and any other documentation for that transaction. These
transactions will be scanned for retention.
6) Voided Checks
a) In the event a check is voided the original check must be written over in heavy
black ink with the word “VOID” and the check must be correspondingly voided in
the financial software. Additionally, a memo must be written by the Finance &
Administration Manager to the Executive Director as to why the check was
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7)

8)

9)

10)

voided, and the Executive Director must initial the memo indicating receipt of the
memo. Once initialed by the Executive Director, the voided check and
corresponding memo must be placed into a file for that month’s financial
transactions. These transactions will be scanned for retention.
b) Voided checks must be appropriately recognized and reconciled each month with
the bank statement.
c) Under no circumstances may a check be “deleted” in the financial software.
Disbursements by Credit Card
a) Disbursements by card credit shall be processed consistent with the use of credit
card policy. Processing credit cards is like disbursements by check, except that
the Finance & Administration Manager will collect all credit card paid transactions
for the billing period to become part of the monthly credit card billing statement.
An electronic fund transfer (EFT) is processed via the credit card’s website to pay
for that period’s transactions. The credit card statement is to be reconciled in the
financial software just like other bank accounts. These transactions will be
scanned for retention.
Disbursement by Electronic Fund Transfer and Banking Bill Pay
a) Disbursements by electronic fund transfer (EFT) and banking bill pay shall be
processed consistent with disbursements by check, except that the Finance &
Administration Manager is authorized to make the electronic payments upon
receipt of the signed Payment Approval Form from the Executive Director.
b) The Finance & Administration Manager must create a paper record by printing
the transaction confirmation or receipt. New ACH recipients will provide required
banking account details in writing for Executive Director review. Such
confirmation or receipt shall be appended to the Payment Approval Form,
together with the appropriate backup documentation, and will constitute the
payment record for that transaction. These transactions will be scanned for
retention.
Petty Cash
a) The Executive Director may, as needed, authorize a petty cash fund not to
exceed $250. In these instances, cash will be obtained by issuing a check made
payable to “cash” to create a temporary petty cash fund. The petty cash fund
must be kept secure, and all transactions must be recorded and balanced with at
least one other person present to witness and attest to the accuracy of the petty
cash balance. All transactions require proper receipts & documentation. As soon
as the event requiring petty cash is complete, the reconciled petty cash balance
must be deposited into WACO’s checking account. These transactions will be
scanned for retention.
Payroll
a) Payroll is coordinated and processed by the Finance & Administration Manager,
consistent with WACO’s approved Budget and Salary Schedule. Payroll is
processed by EFT under normal circumstances. Prior to processing payroll, the
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Executive Director will approve staff’s time through the online timekeeper system
which interfaces with the approved financial software. Once payroll is processed,
documentation is presented to the Executive Director for review, and EFT
approval at the bank. These transactions will be scanned for retention.
11) Bank Account Reconciliation
a) Original statements from financial institutions with which WACO has accounts
are received by mail at the WACO office and must be opened and examined by
the Executive Director. Online statements obtained directly from the financial
institution’s website are available sooner than those that arrive via mail and can
be used as a substitute. The statements should be initialed on the first page
indicating it has been reviewed and is ready for reconciliation.
b) The signed or initialed statement shall be given to the Finance & Administration
Manager, who must reconcile WACO’s records of financial activity to the
statement. Each reconciliation must balance exactly.
c) The detailed reconciliation report, together with the statement, will constitute the
reconciliation report. The Executive Director reviews and initials the reconciliation
reports. These transactions will be scanned for retention.
d) The Secretary/Treasurer is to receive a copy of the reconciliation report and
statement for each of WACO’s accounts.
12) Reporting
a) Not later than the fifteenth day of each month, the Executive Director or Finance
& Administration Manager shall provide to the WACO Secretary/Treasurer a full
financial report for the previous month. The financial reports required may vary
slightly with each Treasurer (at their request) but must include the following
information:
i) Balance Sheet - The Balance Sheet gives a complete picture of WACO’s
assets and liabilities (of each fund) as of the last day of the reported month.
ii) Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual – The Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual shows
how much WACO’s actual revenues and expenditures for the reported month
compared to the amount of revenues and expenditures budgeted for the
reported month.
iii) Year-To-Date Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual – This report shows the
originally adopted WACO Budget amounts or the amended WACO Budget
amounts (if any), actual revenues and expenditures for reported month, YearTo-Date actual revenues and expenditures, and the percent of annual budget
received (for revenues) or spent (for expenditures).
iv) Accounts Receivable Aging Report - The Accounts Receivable Aging Report
shows the invoices issued but not yet paid as of the date of the report. Items
in the “current” column are invoices created within 30 days of the report date.
Items in the 1-30, 31-60, 61-90, and >90 columns indicate how overdue an
invoice is.
v) Bank Accounts Reconciliation Reports - The reconciliation report shows the
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financial activity for the reporting month according to WACO’s financial
records as compared to the financial activity according to the bank
statements.
vi) Include Board meeting minutes or other documentation that approved or
discussed line items affecting budgets.
13) Annual filings with Internal Revenue Service
a) WACO must utilize a CPA firm to prepare and submit its annual 990 Return with
the Internal Revenue Service. The WACO Board of Trustees must be aware of,
and welcomed to participate in, the preparation of the 990 return. The ‘Public
Disclosure’ version of the filed 990 return must be distributed to the WACO
membership via email and posted on the WACO website.
14) Audit by State Auditor’s Office
a) Pursuant to RCW 36.47.060, the financial records of WACO are subject to
accountability audits every 3 years by the State Auditor.
b) The WACO Board of Trustees must be aware of, and welcomed to participate in,
audits conducted by the State Auditor’s Office.
c) The WACO Board of Trustees must be made aware of any exit items,
management letters, findings, or other relevant communications from the State
Auditor’s Office.
PROCESS ANALYTICS:
1) Audit Committee findings
2) Independent financial audit findings/reports
3) State Auditor’s Office findings/reports
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F – Color Coded Staffing Responsibilities

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 171

STAFFING RESPONSIBILITIES
WACO Finance and Administration Manager
WACO Contract Lobbyist
WSACA Managing Director with assistance/direction from WACO Contract Lobbyist
WSACA Managing Director
WACO Member Services Manager
WSACA Managing Director, and .5 FTE Events Coordinator / Admin Asst
* WACO Executive Director and Deputy Director provide guidance and organizational resources to
support these responsibilities, among others
Administration
• Personnel management of Managing Director (proposer will be the employer of record).
o Contract
o Payroll
o Travel reimbursement
o Electronic devices
o Network and IT support
o Office space and parking
• Graphic design in support of website, publications, and conferences
• Website hosting, associated email account, and maintenance of domain registration(s)
Budget and Finance (Fiscal Agent)
• Banking
• Accounting
• Insurance, as needed
• Provide a secure online payment and registration portal for WSACA conferences
• Quarterly reports, profit / loss reports, and end-of-year statements
• Act as registered agent and file annual reports with the IRS and Washington State Secretary of
State
• Internal controls, compliance, and obligations of the Association
Legislative lobbying
• Assist WSACA’s Legislative Committee in development of WSACA’s legislative priorities by
providing strategic and policy input
• Draft legislation necessary to implement WSACA’s legislative agenda, which includes
submitting bill drafts to the state code reviser’s office
• Secure sponsorship for legislation and seek to pre-file where possible
• Seek and attend meetings with legislators regarding their goals and WSACA’s legislative agenda
Meet with partner jurisdictions/organizations, and key stakeholder groups as necessary
• During session, lead a weekly legislative briefing for the WSACA legislative committee. This
will involve preparing bill tracking documents, legislative summaries, and copies of pertinent
legislation for review
• During session, review all legislation filed on daily basis and identify bills for analysis and
tracking
• During session, meet routinely with legislative caucus staff and committee staff
• During session, sign in on bills, consistent with WSACA’s legislative priorities
• Serve as WSACA’s eyes and ears in Olympia, gathering information and reporting back to the
WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 172

Legislative Committee
Management (WSACA Managing Director)
• Work with WSACA committees and Board of Directors to create and execute a strategic plan
and annual work plans*
• Schedule and support WSACA board meetings and program committee meetings (Licensing,
Recording, Finance, Elections)
• Schedule and support WSACA district meetings (NW, SW, Central, and Eastern)
• Work with WSACA program committees to plan and execute WSACA statewide conferences
and trainings. Typically, this would be four conferences per year
• Negotiate contracts with conference venues, including but not limited to food, banquet, AV
orders, and hotel logistics
• Identify and recruit financial sponsors to support WSACA (conference vendors, etc)
• Create member surveys and publish results
• As directed, maintain contact with key stakeholders on issues of interest to WSACA
• In partnership with WSACA’s legislative lobbyist: Track legislation, organize testimony, support
WSACA’s legislative committee, develop advocacy materials, and coordinate legislative
receptions and lobby days
• Keep all WSACA directories, rosters, and email distribution lists up to date.
• Act as point of contact for media inquiries, local fiscal note requests, etc. Working with the
WSACA leadership, coordinate responses by auditors
• Keep WSACA website content updated to ensure relevance and usability
• Develop and execute a communication plan for WSACA’s members, designed to keep informed
and engaged*
• Organize and retain WSACA’s paper and digital documents, transfer archival records to State
Archives
• Maintain and update WSACA’s policies (Standard Operating Policies and Procedures
• Monitor bank account balances and act as liason to fiscal agent
• Produce, deliver, and track WSACA recognition and awards
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G – Comparables Position Describition
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State of Washington Classified Job
Specification
EVENTS COORDINATOR 1
<< Classified Job Listing
EVENTS COORDINATOR 1
Class Code: 111A
Category: Administrative Services
Salary Range: 30 30,108 – 39,528

Class Series Concept
Positions in this series plan, arrange, and coordinate facility and logistical support for on- and offsite conferences, seminars, and workshops. Incumbents oversee operational detail support
services and may have financial responsibility throughout the event including establishing
budgets, selecting speakers, lodging, catering, security, publicity, materials, and equipment;
negotiating with vendors; determining fees to charge participants; preparing and changing
contracts; and collecting and refunding conference fees. Coordination duties are usually complex
in nature such as overseeing and monitoring compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
policies, emergency procedures, and ADA compliance and making arrangements for large-scale,
multi-state regional conferences and simultaneous unrelated conferences.
Incumbents make comprehensive arrangements for conferences and resolve all logistical
problems that arise during events. Incumbents work with the latitude to make decisions
independent of requesters regarding details such as budgets, charges, lodging, type of facility(ies),
equipment, materials, speakers, food service, and additional event support services in on- and offsite facilities. Incumbents typically establish conference and event budgets and negotiate rental
fees and associated costs for on- and off-site events and establish competitive rates with the goal
of recouping all costs, including overhead, negotiate revisions to contracts, and make
determinations regarding refunds.

Definition
Positions at this level work under general supervision and independently coordinate day-to-day
scheduling and use of on-site buildings, rooms, and facilities. Incumbents have extensive contacts
with customers to ensure that logistics of events are made and completed on time.
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Typical Work
Reviews and prioritizes facilities use requests to assure optimum use of space; assigns space and
monitors facility use to assure conformity with policies;
Coordinates events and services such as furniture, equipment, food orders, and custodial services
for meetings, conferences, workshops, social functions, and other events involving the use of onsite facilities and equipment;
Maintains liaison and coordinates with building users related to facility use; issues keys; assigns
storage space; monitors use and condition of facilities;
Receives and deposits funds received in payment for services provided;
Performs other work as required.

Legal Requirement(s)
There may be instances where individual positions must have additional licenses or certification. It
is the employer’s responsibility to ensure the appropriate licenses/certifications are obtained for
each position.

Desirable Qualifications
Positions typically require high school graduation and two years of work experience involving
public contact such as secretarial, sales promotion, setting up conferences, public information, or
in the hospitality industry.
OR
Equivalent education/experience.

Class Specification History
New class effective August 10, 2012. New class code with class series concept from 111B
Conference Coordinator 2 and definition from 110B Building Coordinator 2. (110B Building
Coordinator 2 was established on June 1, 2005 as a result of consolidating 2021 Building Services
Coordinator, 2055 Scheduling Center Coordinator.)

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 176

State of Washington Classified Job
Specification
EVENTS COORDINATOR 2
<< Classified Job Listing
EVENTS COORDINATOR 2
Class Code: 111B
Category: Administrative Services
Salary Range: 35 33,588 – 44,412

Class Series Concept
See Events Coordinator 1.

Definition
Positions at this level work independently and follow generally defined methods to perform
assigned activities. Incumbents typically provide detail support services for single-day
conferences, seminars, and workshops. Incumbents review events and services to be provided
for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and policies; have financial responsibility for
contracts negotiated and fees charged; and represent conference services to outside
organizations and the community. Incumbents assist higher level staff with longer, more
detailed multi-day events.

Typical Work
Reviews events and services to be provided for compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
and policies;
Provides information regarding details of current or scheduled conferences such as location,
registration process, dates, times, and deadlines;
Prepares, compiles, and assembles printed conference materials, such as brochures, publicity
releases, and course materials; arranges for reproduction and mailing of materials;
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Participates in planning sessions by answering questions regarding arrangements, taking notes
of sessions, and reminding participants of deadlines;
Maintains contact with conference sponsors; monitors conference expenses against
established budget; monitors established conference timeline;
Provides on-site coordination of registration such as nametags, packet materials, rosters, and
program evaluation forms; assures that physical details such as furniture arrangements are
completed and that supplies and media equipment are ready;
Receives calls after hours to resolve problems that arise with events;
Arranges for tours and special events connected with conferences;
Composes and types memoranda and correspondence to speakers, conference participants,
site personnel, and others involved with conferences;
Prepares purchase requisitions, travel vouchers, and conference agreements; arranges for
payment of speakers; orders supplies;
May occasionally coordinate support service for repeated or routine multi-day events;
May supervise lower level staff;
Performs other work as required.

Legal Requirement(s)
There may be instances where individual positions must have additional licenses or
certification. It is the employer’s responsibility to ensure the appropriate licenses/certifications
are obtained for each position.

Desirable Qualifications
contact such as secretarial, sales promotion, setting up conferences, public information, or in
the hospitality industry.
OR
Equivalent education/experience.

Class Specification History
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New classes effective June 1, 2005; Conference Coordinator 2 (replaces 2019 Conference
Coordinator I).
Revised class title; formerly 111B Conference Coordinator 2, which replaced 2019 Conference
Coordinator I on June 1, 2005. 110D Building Coordinator 4 was abolished at the August 9,
2012 Director’s Meeting as agencies reallocated these positions into Conference Coordinator
2. Revised class title effective August 10, 2012.
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State of Washington
Dept. of Fish and Wildlife
invites applications for the position of:

Management Analyst 4 - WDFW
Legislative Coordinator - Permanent *04722
SALARY:

$5,102.00 - $6,691.00 Monthly

OPENING DATE: 05/14/21
CLOSING DATE: 05/25/21 11:59 PM
DESCRIPTION:
DUTIES:

Legislative Strategy Development and Coordination:
•
•
•

Facilitates agency Legislative Coordination Team meetings to keep executive
management and programs organized during the legislative session.
Trains and provides technical assistance to Legislative Coordinators and program
managers on the legislative process to ensure efficient workflow during the legislative
session.
Prepares weekly hearing schedules and helps ensure staff coverage at legislative
hearings and meetings.

Coordinates Agency Bill Development Process:
•

•

Leads bill development and outreach teams for agency request legislation - coordinating
internal subject matter experts, conducting research on policy and fiscal impacts and
formulating recommendations for the Legislative Director, Director of Budget and
Government Affairs, and Executive Management Team.
Develops and maintains timeline, proposal forms and guidance documents for the
development of agency legislation.

Bill Tracking:
•
•

Serves as the agency’s administrator of the Bill Analysis Tracking System, LobbyGov and
other legislative tracking systems.
Ensures systems are up-to-date and staff are trained in how to use them.

Legislative Outreach and Coordination:
•

Reviews documents, reports, and legislative assignments to ensure consistency and
accuracy within RCWs, WACs, and Departmental policy.
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•

Resolves legislative customer complains - assigns, tracks, prioritizes and reviews
correspondence from Legislators and Governor’s Office and monitors status of response.

Administrative Operations and Management:
•

Serves as the Office Manager and Records Manager for the Government Affairs Unit, as
well as the supervisor of administrative staff on the legislative affairs
team.

WORKING CONDITIONS:
•

•

•
•

Work Setting, including hazards:
o Work environment is a very busy office setting.
o The duty station for this position is in Olympia, WA. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
many of our positions do remote work or telework (a combination of office and
remote). When the workforce is approved to return to an office setting, remote or
telework may be considered.
Schedule:
o Typically, Monday – Friday – 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.
o Workload demands may require work outside the assigned work hours/days and
adjustment of work schedules, especially during legislative session.
Travel Requirements:
o Some travel may be required throughout the State to attend trainings, meetings, and
conferences.
Customer Interactions:
o Legislators, Legislative and Congressional staff, Agency staff, and Stakeholders.

QUALIFICATIONS:

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Bachelor’s degree in business administration, public administration, law, public health, health
administration, or a related field.
AND

•

Two (2) years of experience conducting research and analyzing policies, laws, rules, or
regulations.

Please Note: Professional experience conducting research and analyzing policies, laws, rules, or
regulations may substitute, year-for-year for the education requirement.
Ability to:
•
•
•

Read, understand, and interpret policies and procedures.
Develop written reports.
Communicate effectively, both in writing and in speech.

Key Competencies:
•

Facilitation and Negotiation Skills – being tactful and sensitive when dealing with people with
strong held opposing viewpoints and when addressing “politically sensitive” matters.
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•

Written Communication - exceptional writing skills are required, letters, memos, and e-mails
should be organized, clear and concise, use principles of “plain talk”, and effective, yet tactful
communication.

Certifications/Licenses:
•

Valid Driver’s License.

PREFERRED QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Three (3) years of experience conducting research and analyzing policies, laws, rules, or
regulations.
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Senior Policy and Education Manager (EMS3)
Olympia
SALARY:

$85,000.00 - $90,000.00 Annually

OPENING DATE: 05/12/21
CLOSING DATE: Continuous
DESCRIPTION:

WSLCB Vision
Safe communities for Washington State
Mission
Promote public safety and trust through fair administration and enforcement of liquor, tobacco, cannabis and
vapor laws.
SENIOR POLICY and EDUCATION MANAGER (EMS Band 3)
This position is an Exempt Management Service (EMS) Band 3 employment opportunity.
***Note: This recruitment is open until filled. First review of applications will begin on May 26, 2021, and
thereafter on a weekly basis. The hiring authority reserves the right and may exercise the option to make a hiring
decision at any time. It will be to the applicant's advantage to submit materials as soon as possible.
To further ensure public safety and in conjunction with our Governor's proclamation of stay home, stay healthy
and current guidelines related to COVID-19, interviews at this time will be conducted by video or phone
conference as part of our recruitment process.
Who we are
The mission of the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board (WSLCB) is to promote public safety and trust
through fair administration and enforcement of liquor, cannabis, tobacco, and vapor laws. At the WSLCB, we
pride ourselves on creating the "wow" factor in everything we do. We search for people who demonstrate a
strong work ethic, excellence in customer service, partnering and teamwork, and quality performance. We strive
to be a great place to work by fostering a safe, open, inclusive and healthy work environment. We want to ensure
that our organization is as diverse and inclusive as our great State of Washington. We want to create a culture
that fosters excellence in customer service, open and honest communication, transparency and accountability,
data driven decisions, and business initiated process improvement.
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Your opportunity at a glance
The Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board (WSLCB) is announcing an opportunity at the headquarters
office in Olympia, WA for a Senior Policy Advisor in the Licensing Division. This exempt, full-time position reports
to the Director of Licensing and Regulation. In this position you will develop position papers, proposals, and
legislative analysis, decision papers, policies and procedures for the Division. You will identify and track data and
develop reports for the Director and the rest of the Division to inform decisions and continuous program
improvement efforts. Additionally, you will be responsible for the training development for Division staff and
external partners.
This position directly supervises a Data Consultant 4 and a Program Specialist 5. This position is also
responsible for the work of a Data Consultant 1, a Program Specialist 2 and two training positions. In this
position, you will assist in implementing legislative changes and participate in the drafting and modification of
rules (Washington Administrative Codes) and policies pertaining to the Licensing Division.
WSLCB provides a modern work environment and excellent benefits including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Training and career development programs
Tuition reimbursement
Flexible work schedules
Telecommuting opportunities
Generous wellness program
Onsite exercise facility
Active and engaging diversity program
Infant at Work program.
Organization's commitment to your personal health and well-being.
Work/life balance.
Free parking
A comprehensive benefits package.

DUTIES:

POSITION PROFILE
This position serves as the Division lead and expert on legislative analysis, rulemaking and policy development
as they pertain to liquor and marijuana licensing. It will establish an effective system for the Division’s response
to requests for legislative analysis, rulemaking and policy development. It will ensure that proper
communications to staff, the public and other agency divisions are effective and easy to understand.
Additionally, this position manages the Education and Outreach as well as Training programs within the
Division. It is responsible for strategic planning and determination of the goals and objectives of these
programs. The position is responsible for the development, maintenance and effective communication of
educational opportunities and tools between the Licensing Division and external stakeholders. This position is
also responsible for developing and updating key training for Division staff.
Some of your primary responsibilities include:

•
•

Develop position papers, legislative analysis and contribute to rulemaking as needed to support the goals
of the Division. Facilitates and guides staff to meet timeframes related to the development of these
functions.
Utilizes leadership skills to motivate staff to achieve consistent high performance and to cultivate a
learning environment for staff to effectively expand their skill sets.
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•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provides leadership, training, and implementation of systems that promote a culture of process
improvement using Lean and other continuous quality improvement methods.
Works with staff to draft Division policies and procedures for implementation by management as well as
develop internal controls and accountability measures related to those policies and procedures.
Oversees the development and implementation of effective training for Division staff on new and revised
laws, rules and policies.
Utilizes knowledge of licensing laws, regulations and Board practices. Provides and updates resource
information for licensing staff to use in the conduct of their operational duties. Develops and maintains
effective working relationships with internal and external stakeholders, with a clear understanding of the
Division's mission and Board mandates and how they coincide with and differ from stakeholder
expectations. Working with the unit to provide excellent customer service within the bounds of our
mandates.
Assists in identifying and developing policy recommendations for a variety of functions impacting the
entire Division.
Leads and participates in internal and external statewide stakeholder workgroups.
Provides oversight and direction for the Mandatory Alcohol Server Training (MAST), Responsible Vendor
Program (RVP) as well as staff and external training programs.
Works to develop alcohol impact areas (AIAs) at the request of local authorities.
Keeps and maintains data reporting for the Division and uses that data to inform the work of the Division.
Consults and coordinates with staff across the Division and the Agency.
Provides regular updates to the Director related to the duties above.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Required:
•

Bachelor's degree in public administration, business administration, communications, or closely allied
field

AND

•
•
•
•
•

Three (3) years of management or supervisory experience in a regulatory environment.
Experience in analyzing proposed legislation and regulation, interpreting laws, rules policy and
procedures.
Excellent writing and oral skills.
Ability to communicate professionally and effectively in a variety of settings and to media.
Experience in evaluating and drawing conclusions from data.

Experience may substitute year for year for the required education.
Preferred/Desired:
•
•
•
•
•
•

3-6 years of experience in legislative process and data analysis.
Demonstrated knowledge and experience in state licensing and regulation.
Demonstrated experience in the application of leadership skill and change management principles.
Demonstrated experience in developing and implementing strategic plans for a business or program.
Demonstrated ability to identify and solve problems in operations areas, human resources, and staff
performance accountability.
Demonstrated ability to work cooperatively and productively with internal and external stakeholders.
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•
•

Effectively organizes multiple assignments of a complex nature or involving competing priorities, to
produce completed staff work.
Experience coaching and mentoring others to become more successful.
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DATE:

June 18th, 2021

TO:

Darla McKay, President, Washington State Association of County
Auditors and Asotin County Auditor

FROM:

WACO Executive Officers:
Greg Zempel, President and Kittitas County Prosecutor
Stacie Prada, Vice President and Jefferson County Treasurer
Jeff Gadman, 2nd Vice President and Thurston County Treasurer
Adam Kick, Secretary/Treasurer and Skamania County Prosecutor
Jerry Pettit, Immediate Past President and Kittitas County Auditor
Dianne Dorey, Past President and Lewis County Assessor
Jennifer Wallace, WACO Executive Director

SUBJECT: Proposal for WSACA Services
First and foremost, WACO again expresses its strong desire to strengthen our
relationship and service to WSACA and its members. As per WSACA’s request for
response today, WACO is providing suggestions for a reconceptualization of the
management services portion of your RFP for administrative, finance and budget,
legislative lobbying and management services. Prior to offering these suggestions, we
offer some assumptions and cautions:
•

It appears clear that sufficient funds will not exist for the scope of work proposed in
the original RFP and thus there is a desire for bidders to submit scaled-back
proposals.

•

WACO suggests there is benefit in WSACA identifying the additional revenue its
members are willing to fund that would be made available for this work. This
would support the ability to develop reasonable expectations for both parties and
reduce time expenditure on proposal development and negotiation.

•

Given that the original RFP no longer accurately reflects the services being
requested, WSACA may wish to consider the risk of potential bidders objecting to
non-issuance of a revised RFP and issue a new RFP.
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WACO’s proposal for administration, budget and finance, and legislative lobbying
deliverables remains as proposed June 4th. This includes significant leveraging of
existing staffing and resources to benefit WSACA and WACO. It includes lobbying
services as provided by current WACO staff and contracted lobbying services from Mike
Shaw.
We propose a significant scale back of expectations for the position formerly titled in your
RFP “WSACA Managing Director”. In keeping with WSACA’s desire to lessen the
administrative burden on its members, below is the original list of responsibilities for the
position, indicating those we suggest removing. The remaining responsibilities would
constitute a 1.0 FTE Association and Events Manager position. Removing the higherlevel leadership responsibilities would enable a lower salary level and yield a more
focused and coherent set of responsibilities, which would support recruitment efforts.
REVISED MANAGEMENT DELIVERABLES
Management (WSACA Managing Director) WSACA Association and Events Manager
•

Work with WSACA committees and Board of Directors to create and execute a
strategic plan and annual work plans.

•

Schedule and support WSACA board meetings and program committee meetings
(Licensing, Recording, Finance, Elections).

•

Schedule and support WSACA district meetings (NW, SW, Central, and Eastern).

•

Work with WSACA program committees to plan and execute WSACA statewide
conferences and trainings. Typically, this would be four conferences per year.

•

Negotiate contracts with conference venues, including but not limited to food,
banquet, AV orders, and hotel logistics.

•

Identify and recruit financial sponsors to support WSACA (conference vendors, etc).

•

Create member surveys and publish results.

•

As directed, maintain contact with key stakeholders on issues of interest to WSACA.

•

In partnership with WSACA’s legislative lobbyist: Track legislation, organize testimony,
support WSACA’s legislative committee, develop advocacy materials, and coordinate
legislative receptions and lobby days.

•

Keep all WSACA directories, rosters, and email distribution lists up to date.

•

Act as point of contact for media inquiries, local fiscal note requests, etc. Working with
the WSACA leadership, coordinate responses by auditors.

•

Keep WSACA website content updated to ensure relevance and usability.

•

Develop and execute a communication plan for WSACA’s members, designed to keep
informed and engaged.

•

Organize and retain WSACA’s paper and digital documents, transfer archival records to
State Archives.

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 188

•

Maintain and update WSACA’s policies (Standard Operating Policies and Procedures).

•

Monitor bank account balances and act as liaison to fiscal agent.

•

Produce, deliver, and track WSACA recognition and awards.

Scaling back the responsibilities for the management position will yield salary and other
savings reflected in the revised cost proposal below. This is a $43,934 reduction from
our original proposal.
WACO Cost Proposal
Projected New Expenses:
WSACA Association and Events Manager – 1.0 FTE (up to $67,427
+ benefits)
Electronic Devices/Software

Computers (1 staff)*
Cell Reimb (1 staff)
Printer for Conf (1)*
Staff software – 1 license each – Adobe, Office 365, Dashlane**
Overhead (space use, utilities, parking (1), supplies/equip/IT)
$400/mo
Total New Expenses
Management Contract Fee to WACO (includes WACO staff
compensation for WSACA responsibilities)
TOTAL WACO PROPOSED CONTRACT COST
* Assumes roughly four year replacement schedule
** At no additional cost WACO offers use of existing licenses for Zoom,
Uber, LobbyGov, Survey Monkey and Canva

$91,026

$2,960
$1,500
$360
$500
$600
$4,800
$98,786
$29,000
$127,786

Current Annual Expense Assumption:
Website – Domain and Hosting
Conferences – all inclusive (based on 2019 WSACA actuals)
Business General Liability
Licenses, Permits, Use & B&O Taxes
MIP Accounting Software License
Total Existing Expenses

$135
$118,000
$2,400
$95
$2,000
$122,630
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 16th, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Officials Board of Trustees

FROM:

Timothy Grisham, Deputy Director
Washington Association of County Officials

SUBJECT: DEPUTY DIRECTOR REPORT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: By all accounts 2020 and early 2021 have not
been the typical year for the Washington Association of County Officials in regard to
its communications platform. Two major factors have contributed to shifts in our
communication platforms’ analytic numbers.
First, the elephant in the room, Covid-19. Covid-19 saw WACO, along with nearly
every entity in the public and private sector, shift to some form of online business.
This potentially pushed our 2020 numbers for website engagement higher than it
would have in other years.
As we settle into a more “normal” or hybrid business model, some of the WACO
webpage’s page visits specific to items such as Covid-19 resources have begun to
normalize and fall back to a pre-pandemic level. Because of this, the WACO website
has seen a 3.5% decline in average monthly visits from 2020.
The second major factor has been a change in staffing with the addition of our
Member Services Manager Melanie Terry. This also means a new approach to some
of our traditional communications structures such as the Courthouse Journal. As is
often the case with such situations, a long-range view of its impact is a better metric
than immediate numbers.
For example, while the CHJ open rate thus far has fallen 9% compared to last year
with a declining trend beginning December 2020 – it is so far undetermined as to
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any causing factors. This could be in part to any unknown changes in how our
provider calculates “opens”, or a number of other factors. WACO staff is currently
investigating what may be predictors for causing the trend in order to address it.
But on the other side of the coin, our social media platform is performing VERY well
with a 19.5% increase of average monthly impressions and a giant 525.64% change
in average monthly profile visits. This is in part due to an 62.2% increase of in
average monthly tweets coupled with more topical tweets that are finding resonance
with our audience.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information only, no action required.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 18th, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Officials Board of Trustees

FROM:

Timothy Grisham, Deputy Director
Washington Association of County Officials

SUBJECT: 2021 COUNTY SCHOLARSHIP FUND

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Washington Counties Scholarship Fund
was established to provide scholarship assistance to the children of county
employees in the State of Washington. Since 1993 the fund has awarded over
$294,000 to eligible students.
In 2015 the Washington State Association of Counties indicated they would no
longer be contributing to the Washington Counties Scholarship Fund and ceasing
participation.
On December 11, 2018 the Washington Association of County Officials dissolved the
partnership and established a program under the same name. The new program
had reduced the eligibility to ONLY the children of WACO members and the
children of their staff after exhausting the funds from the previous agreement.
On December 5, 2019 the Washington Association of County Officials Board of
Trustees voted to offer three students a scholarship award of $3,000. Additionally,
the Board set a fundraising goal of $1,500 per affiliate annually due to the fund
October 1 of each year.
On December 2, 2020 the Washington Association of County Officials Board of
Trustees voted to again offer three students a scholarship award of $3,000 while
reaffirming the annual $1,500 per affiliate fundraising goal.
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The 2021 scholarship competition was the second under the new eligibility
requirements, and the first to be conducted entirely during Covid-19 restrictions.
This year we converted physical applications to PDFs for review. This allowed for
remote participation by reviewers, and decreased in person contact to hand off
materials.
The scholarship had 32 eligible applicants representing families working in each of
WACO’s membership offices. We are pleased to announce that there were a number
of VERY qualified applicants.
The 2021 scholarship has selected three recipients:
 Teleah Royal – King County Department of Judicial Administration (Clerks
Office), attending Bethune-Cookman University
 Austin Williams – Deputy Clerk in Klickitat County, Washington State
University
 Emily Adams – Mason County Sheriff’s Office, attending South Puget Sound
Community College
In addition to the three recipients, we have identified two alternates (as sometimes
issues arise and students do not take the scholarship award):
 Caitlin Sio –Pierce County Licensing and Recording Tech, attending Seattle
Pacific University
 Lucas Nichols – Pend Oreille County (Auditors Office), attending Montana
Western University
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information only, no action required
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 21st, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Officials Board of Trustees

FROM:

Melanie Terry, Member Services Manager
Washington Association County Officials

SUBJECT: MEMBER SERVICES REPORT

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Written into the current Strategic Plan, and
the Member Services Manager’s job description is the desire for the Member
Services Manager to work directly with the Executive Director to build and
implement a new outreach plan. In the March 2021 Board of Trustees meeting
Melanie and Jennifer gave an overview of the updated Member Outreach Plan,
outlining its four objectives.
In May 2021 Melanie and Jennifer met with all six Trustees at Large to review the
Outreach Plan and the newly shared materials provided via Sharepoint for each
county category group. The following were key points that emerged from our
discussion which are listed under their meeting topic:
1.Review WACO member outreach plan objectives specific to Trustees-AtLarge


As context for our efforts, we share the belief/outlook that outreach can be
frustrating because it doesn’t always yield engagement. BUT regardless of
level of resulting engagement, outreach is worthwhile and is
noted/appreciated, even by members who do not engage as a result.

2.View preliminary online resources / information related to each category
of counties


Information for WACO members about the role of Trustees-at-Large and
how/why a member might want to contact them should be situated on the
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website more obviously for members wanting to get in touch with a WACO
representative.
3. Discuss potential strategies for member outreach and engagement and
which might be best for your category of counties


Trustees concerned that outreach efforts they make individually risk
duplicating staff efforts. Sparked awareness with staff that we seldom send
out communications / information to members from TAL and we can identify
additional opportunities for this that would connect TAL with members in
their counties with information.

Melanie and Jennifer continue to work with the Trustees at Large to collaborate on
ideas for better outreach and communication within the entire WACO Membership.
A new idea that is currently in the planning stages is a monthly educational
webinar which also offers time for members to breakout into their category counties
to network and discuss that month’s topic and how it relates to them. This event not
only is an educational event for members, but also an opportunity to building
stronger relationships among category counties.
Another component of the Outreach Plan is the provide resources to Newly Elected
Officials from their first day in office. Jennifer has developed important updates to
our Newly Elected Official training, as well as ensuring they are connected with
WACO as soon as they become a member. Melanie has been updating the WACO
webpage with new Newly Elected Official training modules, sending officials
welcome letters, and reconnecting with them later on to ensure they have the
appropriate information to collaborate with WACO Members and staff.

WACO Board Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 195

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 8, 2021

TO:

WACO Board of Trustees

FROM:

Lisa Gancel, Finance & Administration Manager

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF MAY 31, 2021
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

SUMMARY: The following bank statement ending balances are true as of May 31,
2021:
Total Stmt
Institution
Account ID
Notes
Balances
Key Bank
Ckg #6577
GMM #3706
GMM #4092
GMM #4092
GMM #4092
Ckg #9911
Ckg #9986
Alaska FCU
Savings
Seattle Bank
Certificate #6516

$478,182.97
$329,497.05 Operating acct
$7,352.79 Operating (.06%)
Funds Designated & Capital
$120,770.54 Funds (0.01%)
$2,788.33 Operating (0.01%)
$4,957.85 Unexpended Funds (0.01%)
$295.53 Donor Reserve – Net acct
Donor Reserve - Scholarship
$12,520.88 acct
$1,239.70
$1,239.70 Operating (0.05%)
$240,521.72
Reserve (matures 11/14/2022)
$163,028.70 (0.65%)
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Certificate #3215
1st Sec Bank
Certificate #6091
Checking #4510
Savings #4500
Savings #4500
TwinStar CU
Certificate #40
Savings #00
Total Cash on
Hand:

Reserve (matures 7/16/2021)
$77,493.02 (.990%)
$174,198.00
$26,999.54
$2,500.00
$5,123.60
$139,574.86

Reserve (matures 7/15/2021)
(.20%)
Operating - (0.00%)
Operating - (0.50%)
Reserve - (0.50%)

$94,596.59
Reserve (matures 12/6/2021)
$94,591.21 (1.97%)
$5.38 Operating (0.00%)
$988,738.98

**Total Reserve:
$501,687.33
Total Operating:
$348,506.85
Total Designated/Capital Funds:
$120,770.54
Total Unexpended Funds:
$4,957.85
Total Networking Funds:
$295.53
Total Scholarship Funds:
$12,520.88
**Interest earned in CD accts moves to Operating acct as CDs mature to maintain
the $500,000 Board Reserve Balance
Reminders & Current events underway:
 As approved by the Board, $75k in unspent 2020 funds were redirected to the
2021 budget. These carryforward funds were to build designated funds for
technology/equipment ($2500), professional fees for future audits with SAO
($3000) and legal ($5000) needs as they should arise, as well as fund the
operating budget ($64500) to lower the need for county reimbursement
increases. It is recognized by the budget committee and board that
carryforward’s will not always be available and increases to dues are possible to
continue to support the mission of WACO.
 Feb 15, Nikki Wells with Aiken Sanders began the annual audit of WACO’s
finances. June 14, Nikki submitted the draft audit findings and financial
statement for review. The report was sent to the audit committee and is
included in the July 2021 packet for Board review.
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In May, the budget committee met and developed a 2022 budget using projected
unspent 2021 funds and a new funding option.
July 2021 – 2 CDs expire and are searching for investment options with returns
equal to or better than the current rates. Interest rates are still extremely low
as they have been the past 18 months.
In May, the team was excited to participate in an RFP for the Auditors.
MIP on-premises is being upgraded to MIP on the Cloud. This update to MIP
comes as the shared WCB server currently used for the shared Abila MIP
Accounting software and some building printer networking is old, out of
warranty and needs to be replaced or removed from service. Bridget and I are
in discussions with Abila to move the software from a local server to a cloud
server hosted by Abila. By moving the accounting software to the cloud it would
remove the need for a new dedicated server which will save money on the
hardware and ongoing IT upkeep – in the long run. It also affords MIP users a
better solution to access the accounting software via the cloud as well as Abila
handles the updates and software trouble which has been a problem with hired
IT consultants who are not familiar with this software. Bridget and I are
expecting to have MIP-in-the-Cloud in place by 2022 if all goes well.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Board discussion; motion to approve financial statements
through May 2021.
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Washington Association of County Officials
Aged Receivables by Invoice Date
Aging Date - 5/31/2021
10 - Operating - Unrestricted
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Customer Name

Invoice Number

Asotin County
Clallam County
Columbia County
DSHS - Division of Child Support
Grant County
Grays Harbor County
Kitsap County
Klickitat County
Pacific County
Pend Oreille County
San Juan County
Skamania County
Stevens County
Wahkiakum County
Walla Walla County
Whatcom County
Whitman County

21-Q1-002
21-Q1-005
21-Q1-007
21-Q2-0531
21-Q1-013
21-Q1-014
21-Q1-018
21-Q1-020
21-Q1-025
21-Q1-057
21-Q1-027
21-Q1-029
21-Q1-032
21-Q1-034
21-Q1-035
21-Q1-036
21-Q1-037
Total 10 - Operating Unrestricted

Report Total

Date: 6/7/21 12:06:04 PM

Invoice/Cr...
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
5/31/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
4/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021
1/1/2021

Current

1 - 30 Days
Past Due

31 - 60
Days Past
Due

61 - 90
Days Past
Due

Over 90
Days Past
Due

Total

0.00
0.00
0.00
1,210.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
899.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

(2,303.50)
(5,419.50)
(1,241.00)
0.00
(6,764.00)
(5,301.50)
(16,670.00)
(2,311.00)
(2,257.50)
0.00
(1,998.00)
(1,703.50)
(3,643.50)
(1,242.50)
(4,602.50)
(14,125.50)
(3,906.00)

(2,303.50)
(5,419.50)
(1,241.00)
1,210.00
(6,764.00)
(5,301.50)
(16,670.00)
(2,311.00)
(2,257.50)
899.00
(1,998.00)
(1,703.50)
(3,643.50)
(1,242.50)
(4,602.50)
(14,125.50)
(3,906.00)

1,210.00

0.00

899.00

0.00

(73,489.50)

(71,380.50)

1,210.00

0.00

899.00

0.00

(73,489.50)

(71,380.50)

00 WACO AR Aging Report
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WACO COMBINED FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
MAY 2021

Operating Unrestricted

Unexpended Board
Unrestricted

Operating
Reserve Board
Restricted

Capital:
Building Maint
Reserve

Capital: Tech &
Equip
Replacement
(T&E)

FUND 10

FUND 20

FUND 21

FUND 30

FUND 31

318,997.05

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,500.00

0.00

2,792.55

4,957.85

0.00

85,000.00

5,000.00

0.00

WACO
Scholarship
Networking
Fund Activities Fund
(WACOSF)
FUND 42

FUND 70

Designated:
Designated:
Conference Prof Fee NEO SAO_Legal_etc

Total

FUND 50

FUND 51

0.00

0.00

8,000.00

329,497.05

0.00

30,000.00

766.32

128,516.72
0.00

Assets
Current Assets
Operating Cash & Equivalents
Checking: Key Bank - Operating Acct 48206577
MM: Key Bank - Un/Designated Acct 47183004092
INACTIVE - Savings: Key Bank - Acct 471482021071

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Ckg: WSECU - WACO/WSAC Scholarship Acct

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Ckg: Key Bank - WACO Scholarship - Acct

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

12,520.88

0.00

0.00

0.00

12,520.88
295.53

Ckg: Key Bank - Networking - Acct 471481009911

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

295.53

0.00

0.00

Cash (Deposits in Transit)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Credit Card AP Clearing

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

321,789.60

4,957.85

0.00

85,000.00

7,500.00

12,520.88

295.53

30,000.00

8,766.32

470,830.18

Total Operating Cash & Equivalents
Board Reserve Cash Funds

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

MM: Key Bank - Acct 47183003706

INACTIVE - CD: Key Bank - Acct 7422

7,352.79

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,352.79

CD: Alaska FCU - Acct 3832

1,239.70

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,239.70

CD: Seattle Bank - Acct 60296516

524.63

0.00

162,504.07

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

163,028.70

CD: Seattle Bank - Acct 60303215

77,493.02

381.59

0.00

77,111.43

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

SVG: TwinStar - Acct 52540300

5.38

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5.38

CD: Twin Star - CD 525403 S40

759.43

0.00

93,831.78

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

94,591.21
26,999.54

CD: 1st Security Bank - Acct 06091

22.31

0.00

26,977.23

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

CD: 1st Security Bank - Acct 07720

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,122.97

0.00

139,575.49

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

144,698.46

SVG: 1st Security Bank - Acct 5151814500
CKG: 1st Security Bank - Acct 5151814510
Total Board Reserve Cash Funds

2,500.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,500.00

17,908.80

0.00

500,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

517,908.80

(71,380.50)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(71,380.50)

(71,380.50)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(71,380.50)
19,000.00

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable - Misc
AR Miscellaneous

19,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

AR Misc Other

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

WAPA/WAPA SEP Pass-through

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

Due to/from other funds

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Clearing Temporary Account

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Scholarship Fund Clearing Acct

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Clearing Account - EventBrite - Conf

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payroll Service Bureau Clearing

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,000.00

19,484.98

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,484.98

19,484.98

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,484.98

306,802.88

4,957.85

500,000.00

85,000.00

7,500.00

12,520.88

295.53

30,000.00

8,766.32

955,843.46

Total Accounts Receivable - Misc
Prepaids
Prepaids
Total Prepaids
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Furniture, Equipment, Website
Fixed Assets - Furniture & Equipment
Total Furniture, Equipment, Website

56,727.43

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

56,727.43

56,727.43

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

56,727.43

(37,334.20)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(37,334.20)

(37,334.20)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(37,334.20)

19,393.23

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,393.23

179,290.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

179,290.00

179,290.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

179,290.00

Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets
Other Assets
WCB Partnership
WA Counties Building Partnership
Total WCB Partnership
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WACO COMBINED FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
MAY 2021

Total Other Assets
Total Assets

Operating Unrestricted

Unexpended Board
Unrestricted

Operating
Reserve Board
Restricted

Capital:
Building Maint
Reserve

Capital: Tech &
Equip
Replacement
(T&E)

FUND 10

FUND 20

FUND 21

FUND 30

FUND 31

WACO
Scholarship
Networking
Fund Activities Fund
(WACOSF)
FUND 42

FUND 70

Designated:
Designated:
Conference Prof Fee NEO SAO_Legal_etc
FUND 50

Total

FUND 51

179,290.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

179,290.00

505,486.11

4,957.85

500,000.00

85,000.00

7,500.00

12,520.88

295.53

30,000.00

8,766.32

1,154,526.69

3,973.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

3,973.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

240.55

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

240.55

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabiities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable (GL SYSTEM)
DOR - Use Tax Payable
Contracts Payable/Receivable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,213.56

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,213.56

Salary and Wages Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payroll - Health Insurance Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payroll - HSA Contribution Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll Liabilities

Payroll - HRA Contribution Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payroll - Retirement Plan Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payroll - Accrued Vacation Payable

62,092.37

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

62,092.37

Payroll - SUI and FUTA Payable

19,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

19,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
252.59

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
252.59

245.06

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

245.06

81,590.02

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

81,590.02

Payroll - Federal Tax Withholding Payable
Payroll - FICA (SS & MC) Payable
Payroll - Labor & Industries (Work Comp) Payable
Payroll - Paid Family Medical Leave Payable
Total Accrued Payroll Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
INACTIVE - Deferred Revenue - Dues-Quarterly

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

INACTIVE - Deferred Revenue - Other

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total Deferred Revenue
Total Liabiities

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

85,803.58

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

85,803.58

Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets
Interfund Balances / Transfers

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Net Assets

350,387.34

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(833.52)

0.00

0.00

0.00

349,553.82

Cash To Carry-Forward

(10,500.00)

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,500.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

8,000.00

0.00

Total Beginning Net Assets

339,887.34

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,500.00

(833.52)

0.00

0.00

8,000.00

349,553.82

Operating: Unexpended - Board Unrestricted

0.00

4,957.85

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,957.85

Operating: Board Reserve

0.00

0.00

500,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

500,000.00
85,000.00

Without Donor Restrictions

Capital: Building Maint Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

85,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Capital: Tech & Equip Replacement Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,000.00

Designated: Conference - NEO Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

30,000.00

0.00

30,000.00

Designated: Prof Fees Audit Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

766.32

766.32

0.00

4,957.85

500,000.00

85,000.00

5,000.00

0.00

0.00

30,000.00

766.32

625,724.17
12,570.41

Total Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions
WACO Scholarship Fund - Donor Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

12,570.41

0.00

0.00

0.00

Conference Networking Fund - Donor Reserve

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

295.53

0.00

0.00

295.53

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

12,570.41

295.53

0.00

0.00

12,865.94

Total With Donor Restrictions
Current Year Excess (Deficit)
Total Net Assets

79,795.19

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

783.99

0.00

0.00

0.00

80,579.18

419,682.53

4,957.85

500,000.00

85,000.00

7,500.00

12,520.88

295.53

30,000.00

8,766.32

1,068,723.11
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2021 YE Projection as of
6/4/2021

GL

OPERATING FUND #10 ‐ ONLY

Prior Years Cash Carryforward 3000
Total Transfer/Carryover ‐ Other Funds

3/1/2021 ‐
3/31/2021
ACTUAL

4/1/2021 ‐
4/30/2021
ACTUAL

5/1/2021 ‐
5/31/2021
ACTUAL

64,500.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

64,500.00
64,500.00

64,500

231,313.75
(18,785.00)
212,528.75

1,089.00
(18,785.00)
(17,696.00)

0.00
(18,785.00)
(18,785.00)

232,402.75
(18,785.00)
213,617.75

(18,785.00)
(18,785.00)

929,609.50
(225,427.00)
704,182.50

929,597
(225,427)
704,170

64,500.00

TOTAL 2021
PROJECTION

2021
T
APPROVED VARIANCE TO A
BUDGET
BUDGET X

2/1/2021 ‐
2/28/2021
ACTUAL

1/1/2021 ‐
1/31/2021
ACTUAL

NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

64,500

N
0

REVENUE
Members Assessments / Allotments
Membership Income ‐ County Reimbursements
4000
WAPA Assessment Pass Through
8950
Total Members' Assessments / Allotments
Contracts
DSHS

4100
Total Contracts

Conferences / Training / Education
Annual Conference
Conf Registration ‐ Attendee
Conf Registration ‐ Exhibitor
Conf Registration ‐ Sponsorships

60.00

110.00

35.00

60.00

110.00

35.00

1,607.50

1,800

(193) Y contract renews 7/1/21‐6/30/23 ($4800 24
months)

55.00

110.00

1,607.50

1,800

(193)

48,250.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
83,250.00

48,250
25,000
10,000
83,250

0 N
0 N
0 N
0

0 Y
0

55.00

4200
4210
4220
Total Conferences

Non‐Conference Education
Summer Ed/Training ‐ Sponsors
4320
Total Non‐Conference Education
Rental
Rental Income ‐ WAPA

4600
Total Rental Receipts

Miscellaneous
Interest Income
4800
Miscellaneous Income / Restitution
4900
Total Miscellaneous
Total Revenue + Fund Balance Carryover

13 N
0 N
13

110.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

10,000.00
10,000.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0
0

2,296.25
2,296.25

2,296.25
2,296.25

2,296.25
2,296.25

2,296.25
2,296.25

2,296.25
2,296.25

27,555.00
27,555.00

31,715
31,715

(4,160) N agreed to $27555 vs increase after bdgt appr
(4,160)

414.98
731.35
1,146.33

467.51
948.01
1,415.52

223.01
750.76
973.77

404.88
486.99
891.87

481.59
237.03
718.62

4,566.97
5,604.14
10,171.11

9,023
1,800
10,823

(4,456) N savings % down @ institutions
3,804 N restitution steadily arriving
(652)

280,531.33

(13,874.23)

(15,479.98)

216,860.87

(5,660.13)

891,266.11

896,258

(4,992)
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2021 YE Projection as of
6/4/2021

2021
T
APPROVED VARIANCE TO A
BUDGET
BUDGET X

1/1/2021 ‐
1/31/2021
ACTUAL

2/1/2021 ‐
2/28/2021
ACTUAL

3/1/2021 ‐
3/31/2021
ACTUAL

4/1/2021 ‐
4/30/2021
ACTUAL

5/1/2021 ‐
5/31/2021
ACTUAL

TOTAL 2021
PROJECTION

5005
5000
5000
5000
5000

4,439.76
10,611.47
8,450.48
5,968.96
5,230.58
34,701.25

3,623.78
10,611.47
8,450.48
5,968.96
5,230.58
33,885.27

2,451.51
10,611.47
8,450.48
5,968.96
5,230.58
32,713.00

2,085.58
10,611.47
8,450.48
5,968.96
5,465.87
32,582.36

3,066.76
10,611.47
8,450.48
6,237.56
5,465.87
33,832.14

15,667.39
129,725.23
102,166.29
73,776.07
64,884.60
386,219.59

2,500
129,725
101,942
73,776
67,559
375,502

(13,167)
0
(224)
(0)
2,674
(10,718)

5110
5120
5121
5130
5200
5200
5210
5240
5241

2,364.23
0.00
3,111.06
1,806.74
0.00
0.00
2,658.02
75.28
44.40
44,760.98

2,364.23
0.00
3,111.06
1,745.53
0.00
0.00
2,595.62
75.28
44.40
43,821.39

2,364.23
0.00
3,111.06
1,657.61
0.00
0.00
2,505.91
75.28
44.40
42,471.49

2,364.23
0.00
3,111.06
1,647.82
0.00
0.00
2,495.92
75.28
44.75
42,321.42

2,364.23
0.00
3,111.06
1,741.56
0.00
0.00
2,591.57
75.28
45.14
43,760.98

28,370.76
0.00
37,332.72
24,987.18
1,500.00
0.00
29,562.72
903.36
536.34
508,876.32

79,118
12,000
0
28,332
1,500
0
31,038
888
548
528,926

50,748
12,000
(37,333)
3,345
0
0
1,475
(15)
11
20,050

22,000
25,000
6,000
10,600
1,500
3,800
5,000
200
1,500
75,600

0
0
0
0
0
(2,800)
0
0
0
(2,800)

GL

OPERATING FUND #10 ‐ ONLY

NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

EXPENSE
Salaries / Taxes Benefits
Salaries
Accrued Vacation
Employee ‐ Executive Director
Employee ‐ Dep Dir
Employee ‐ FAM
Employee ‐ MSM
Subtotal Salaries & Wages

accruing leave faster than use

EXPENSE (con't)
Taxes / Benefits
Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ Health Insurance
Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ HSA Contributions
Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ HRA Contributions
Employee Payroll Benefits ‐ Retirement
P/R Taxes ‐ WA SUI (Accrued or paid)
P/R Taxes ‐ FUTA (n/a 501c3)
P/R Taxes ‐ FICA (SS & MC)
P/R Taxes ‐ Labor & Industries (Workers Comp)
P/R Taxes ‐ Paid Leave & Medical Plan (PFML)
Total Salaries, Taxes, Benefits
Conferences
Annual Conference
Annual Conf ‐ Facility/Equip Rental
Annual Conf ‐ Food/Catering/Awards Banquet
Annual Conf ‐ Outgoing President's Reception
Annual Conf ‐ Facilitators/Speakers/Trainers
Annual Conf ‐ Entertainment
Annual Conf ‐ Registration/Processing/CC Fees
Annual Conf ‐ Printing/Supplies/Staff Lodging
Annual Conf ‐ Networking Supplies
Awards & Recognition
Total Conference

6500
6510
6511
6520
6521
6530
6540
6541
6545

Non‐Conference Education
Summer Education/Training ‐ Members
6600
Total Non‐Conference Education
Professional Fees ‐ Acctg/Auditing/PR
Aiken Sanders ‐ Annual Audit / 990 Prep
Trowe/ClearPoint/PPA ‐ 401k Financial Fees
AATRIX ‐ 941/942/W2/1099/1096 Processing
Professional Fees ‐ Other
Total Professional Fees

8100
8100
8100
8105

Legislative Advocacy
Contract ‐ Legislative/Advocacy
8110
Legislative Sessions Support Waco Day Hill
8111
Legislative Sessions Support/Admin
8120
Total Legislative Advocacy

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,799.55

0.00

22,000.00
25,000.00
6,000.00
10,600.00
1,500.00
6,599.55
5,000.00
200.00
1,500.00
78,399.55

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

8,600.00
8,600.00

8,660
8,660

60
60

3,000.00
618.18
79.00

2,000.00

7,300.00
2,268.18
178.80
0.00
9,746.98

7,000
2,200
175
0
9,375

(300)
(68)
(4)
0
(372)

88,000.00
0.00
0.00
88,000.00

88,000
3,800
0
91,800

0
3,800
0
3,800

2,799.55

99.80
99.80

0.00

3,697.18

2,000.00

0.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

1 staff member does not participate
funds transferred to liability acct

Whova Reg Sys added

no in‐person WDH
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2021 YE Projection as of
6/4/2021

GL

OPERATING FUND #10 ‐ ONLY

2021
T
APPROVED VARIANCE TO A
BUDGET
BUDGET X

1/1/2021 ‐
1/31/2021
ACTUAL

2/1/2021 ‐
2/28/2021
ACTUAL

3/1/2021 ‐
3/31/2021
ACTUAL

4/1/2021 ‐
4/30/2021
ACTUAL

5/1/2021 ‐
5/31/2021
ACTUAL

TOTAL 2021
PROJECTION

42.33
451.54

142.36
457.28

41.47
457.20

185.97
604.19

0.00
364.19

7,100.00
60.00
333.98
40.15

7,100.00
60.00
333.98
40.25

7,100.00
60.00
333.98
40.20
45.00

7,100.00
60.00
333.98
40.25
10.00

7,100.00
120.00
333.98
40.30
0.00
167.16

2,512.13
5,016.73
250.00
85,200.00
1,200.00
4,143.84
484.65
79.00
294.21
654.20
99,834.76

4,600
5,435
250
91,520
1,440
4,200
600
79
300
2,200
110,624

2,088
418
0
6,320
240
56
115
0
6
1,546
10,789

125
100
250
1,200
4,290
1,900
480
350
0
8,695

33
0
14
(100)
139
100
60
11
0
256

NOTES

(RED) = Deficit

EXPENSE (con't)
Operations
Supplies/Printing
Software/Software Renewals
Postage & UPS
Office Lease
Telephone ‐ Office / Cells
Equipment Rental & Maint. Agree.
Fees ‐ Banking
License Fees and Permits
Property Taxes / B&O Taxes
Miscellaneous

6000
6000‐3

6100
7000
7050
7200
7300
7400
7900
8900
Total Operations

Communications
Vimeo ‐ Video Sharing
Sparko Cam License
UberConference ‐ Phone Conf Service
Zoom Meeting ‐ Web Conf Service
CivicPlus ‐ Website Platform
WSAC Media Sharing
Survey Monkey ‐ Survey Service
Blu Hosting ‐ Website domains ‐ Clerks/WACO
Social Media Archiving
Total Communications
Outreach
Membership Outreach

7100
7100
7100
7100
7100
7100
7100
7100
7100

127.05
8,155.05

8,133.87

8,077.85

654.20
8,988.59

8,125.63

7.75

7.65

7.65

7.65

7.65

19.71

19.69

19.69

19.69

19.69

333.73
149.97
35.04
138.76

333.73
149.97
35.10
200.55

333.80
149.97
35.00

350.00
149.97
35.00

350.00
149.97
35.00

684.96

746.69

546.11

562.31

562.31

91.90
100.00
236.30
1,300.00
4,151.26
1,799.64
420.14
339.31
0.00
8,438.55

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

4,100.00
4,100.00

4,138
4,138

38
38

376.37
376.37

375.93
375.93

375.00
375.00

375.00
375.00

615.00
615.00

4,742.30
4,742.30

5,000
5,000

258
258

36.00

BOD
3,500.00
351.00

Bdgt
2,034.91
486.78

21,534.91
10,573.78

28,000
20,000

6,465
9,426

36.00

3,851.00

0.00

2,521.69

32,108.69

48,000

15,891

164.10

0.00
0.00
164.10

2,000
750
2,000
400
100
190
0
5,440.00

0
0
31
0
0
0
(20)
10.80

8000
Total Outreach

Insurance ‐ Business
Insurance ‐ WACO

7800
Total Insurance

Travel
Travel Expense ‐ Board Mtg/Training/Travel
Travel Expenses ‐ Staff ‐Contg Ed/Training/Travel

8500
8550

Total Travel
Memberships and Subscriptions
Assoc of Wa Cities ‐ Cty Salary Survey
NCCAE / NACo
LOBBYGOV ‐ Organization Team Plan
3CMA‐County Comm/Marketing
TCTV
SHRM ‐ HR Resource
The News Tribune
Total Memberships and Subscriptions
Total Expense

0.00

7410
7410
7410
7410
7410
7410
7410

164.10

164.10

20.00
584.10

164.10

164.10

2,000.00
750.00
1,969.20
400.00
100.00
190.00
20.00
5,429.20

64,241.26

63,277.98

65,602.73

63,210.97

61,749.71

848,276

896,258

47,982

(67,409.84)

42,989.76

0

42,990

164.10

164.10

164.10
400.00

0.00

WCB Conf Rm Improvements

chngd to $7100 with revised WCB budget

City license / notary permit

have not rec'd renewal as of 6/4

paid thru 8/2022

used to help with CHJ articles

22.08
DEFICIT/PROFIT

216,290.07

(77,152.21)

(81,082.71)

153,627.82
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Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
10 - Operating - Unrestricted
From 1/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021
(In Whole Numbers)

2021 YTD Actual
Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted
Cash Funds Carryover
Total Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted

2021 % Total of Budget
Remaining

2021 Total Budget
Variance

2021 Total Budget

64,500
64,500

64,500
64,500

Revenue
Members Assessments
Contracts
Conferences
Rental Receipts
Miscellaneous
Total Revenue

370,881
370
10,000
11,481
5,146
397,878

704,170
1,800
83,250
31,715
10,823
831,758

(333,290)
(1,430)
(73,250)
(20,234)
(5,677)
(433,880)

Expense
Salaries, Taxes, Benefits
Conferences
Non-Conference Education
Professional Fees
Legislative Advocacy
Operations - General
Operations - Communications
Operations - Outreach
Operations - Insurance
Operations - Travel
Operations - Memberships & Subscriptions
Total Expense

217,136
2,800
0
5,797
38,000
41,481
3,102
0
2,117
6,409
1,341
318,183

528,926
75,600
8,660
9,375
91,800
110,624
8,695
4,138
5,000
48,000
5,440
896,258

311,790
72,800
8,660
3,578
53,800
69,143
5,593
4,138
2,883
41,591
4,100
578,075

Depreciable Assets/Trx to Liability
WCB Remodel Funds
Total Depreciable Assets/Trx to Liability
Excess (Deficit)

22
22
144,173

0
0
0

Date: 6/7/21 10:53:26 AM

21 BOARD SUMMARY PnL w/ Percentage

0
0

(22)
(22)
144,173

0%
0%

(47)%
(79)%
(88)%
(64)%
(52)%
(52)%

59
96
100
38
59
63
64
100
58
87
75
64

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

0%
0%
0%
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Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
21 - Operating Reserve - Board Restricted
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Current Month
Revenue
Miscellaneous
Total Revenue
Excess (Deficit)

Date: 6/7/21 01:21:48 PM

Current YTD

Prior YTD

Current YTD
Budget

Current YR
Budget

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

21 WACO CurPer/YTD/Prior YTD/Bdgt YTD/Annual
WACOBdBoard
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Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
31 - Capital: Tech & Equip Replacement (T&E)
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Current Month

Current YTD

Prior YTD

Current YTD
Budget

Current YR
Budget

Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted
Cash Funds Carryover
Total Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted

0.00
0.00

2,500.00
2,500.00

0.00
0.00

2,500.00
2,500.00

2,500.00
2,500.00

Expense
Operations - General
Total Expense

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

5,500.00
5,500.00

5,500.00
5,500.00

Excess (Deficit)

0.00

2,500.00

0.00

(3,000.00)

(3,000.00)

Date: 6/7/21 01:21:48 PM

21 WACO CurPer/YTD/Prior YTD/Bdgt YTD/Annual
WACOBdBoard

Package, July 7, 2021 - Page 207

Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
42 - WACO Scholarship Fund (WACOSF)
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Current Month
Revenue
Miscellaneous
Scholarship

Current YTD

Prior YTD

Current YTD
Budget

Current YR
Budget

Total Revenue

22.94
525.00
547.94

272.71
530.96
803.67

133.08
6.53
139.61

166.65
3,000.00
3,166.65

400.00
11,000.00
11,400.00

Expense
Operations - General
Operations - Communications
Scholarship
Total Expense

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
19.68
0.00
19.68

1.97
19.66
0.00
21.63

0.00
0.00
25.00
25.00

0.00
0.00
9,025.00
9,025.00

547.94

783.99

117.98

3,141.65

2,375.00

Excess (Deficit)

Date: 6/7/21 01:21:48 PM

21 WACO CurPer/YTD/Prior YTD/Bdgt YTD/Annual
WACOBdBoard
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Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
51 - Designated: Prof Fee - SAO_Legal_etc
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Current Month

Current YTD

Prior YTD

Current YTD
Budget

Current YR
Budget

Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted
Cash Funds Carryover
Total Fund Balance Carryover Unrestricted

0.00
0.00

8,000.00
8,000.00

0.00
0.00

8,000.00
8,000.00

8,000.00
8,000.00

Expense
Professional Fees
Total Expense

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

2,884.05
2,884.05

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

Excess (Deficit)

0.00

8,000.00

8,000.00

8,000.00

Date: 6/7/21 01:21:48 PM

(2,884.05)

21 WACO CurPer/YTD/Prior YTD/Bdgt YTD/Annual
WACOBdBoard
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Washington Association of County Officials
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
70 - Networking Activities Fund
From 5/1/2021 Through 5/31/2021

Current Month
Revenue
Miscellaneous

Current YTD

Prior YTD

Current YTD
Budget

Current YR
Budget

Total Revenue

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

1,150.00
1,150.00

Total Expense

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

650.00
650.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

500.00

Expense
Conferences

Excess (Deficit)

Date: 6/7/21 01:21:48 PM

21 WACO CurPer/YTD/Prior YTD/Bdgt YTD/Annual
WACOBdBoard
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MEMORANDUM
DATE:

June 25, 2021

TO:

Washington Association of County Official Board of Trustees

FROM:

Greg Zempel, President
Jennifer Wallace, Executive Director

SUBJECT: WORKING SESSION / BREAKOUT GROUPS: CONTINUED
DEVELOPMENT OF CROSS-AFFILIATE POLICY ISSUES AND
STATEMENTS

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: At the November 17th Board retreats, members
began working on the President’s initiative for this year - to strengthen partnership
between and among affiliates and to identify and develop commonly-held policy
issues and statements. A common practice among associations, these documents
evolve over time and can serve as a foundation for stakeholder alliances; inform the
development of longer-term policy / legislative proposals; call for the development of
proposals by others; and inform response to emerging / potential proposal by others.
This initiative is consistent with WACO Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives,
including:
 Foster collaboration on legislation – shared goals (7b);
 Increase Awareness about County Officials and Their Functions (3); and
 Create and Maintain a Shared Legislative Theme with Partner Associations (2).
WACO desires to strengthen its collective voice by communicating common issues
and priorities in addition to those of individual affiliates.
At the December Board meeting, Board members broke into groups to articulate for
each of the potential cross-affiliate policy issues they were assigned:
i. Statement on current status
ii. Belief statement
iii. What needs to change / what should be done about it
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Particularly by focusing on what needs to change / needs to be done on any given
issue, the list of issues began falling into two categories:
1 – policy issues for inclusion in this document intended for an external audience;
and
2 – issues that have implications for WACO and WACO member initiatives that
might be considered in the context of the WACO strategic plan / work plan.
At the March meeting, the Board further refined the document. Attached is the
next draft. At the June meeting, members will again break into groups to review
edits made to the previous draft and to discuss what additional policy and position
statements might be developed / added.
Below are the examples of other organization policy and position statements for
comparison.
American Council of Engineering Companies – Washington https://acecwa.org/advocacy/industry-issues/
Washington Retail Association https://washingtonretail.org/advocacy/
Washington Council on International Trade https://wcit.org/about/
https://wcit.org/policies/
American Public Health Association
https://www.apha.org/news-and-media/news-releases/apha-newsreleases/2020/2020-apha-policy-statements
WSAC has a Draft “Statement of Policy and Core Principles”. Its stated purpose is
to “guide WSAC’s actions as it advocates for the common good of counties” Here
are a couple excerpts Tax Exemptions
Both the Legislature and counties have legitimate policy reasons for providing tax
exemptions, and economic development often relies on targeted exemptions.
However, because the existing county revenue sources are both limited and
inelastic, counties must maintain their current sources of revenue. These
countervailing considerations are often in competition.
WSAC Policy:
WSAC will advocate that tax exemptions be limited to the state’s portion of
revenue. The Legislative Steering Committee may examine individual tax
exemptions, but absent a decision on a specific tax exemption, WSAC will oppose
tax exemptions affecting the county portion of revenue.
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Housing ng
Counties support and provide housing needs in a variety of ways. Counties have a
direct and indirect impact on housing availability, location and cost because of our
role in land-use and development regulations.
Housing is also a required element of growth management plans.
In addition, some counties manage or assist in low-income housing programs. They
may directly administer a residential program for those with special needs. They
may run local housing authorities, which manage federally subsidized programs
such as Section 8. Counties also have an increasing role in providing housing
services for individuals undergoing treatment for behavioral health and/or
substance use disorder issues.
Additionally, counties have the responsibility to develop plans to end homelessness.
Dramatic increases in housing costs in Washington State are creating
unmanageable pressure on existing private market affordable and workforce
housing resources.
WSAC Policy:
Counties support the elimination of duplicative planning and regulatory burdens
that impact housing affordability and support the reduction of other regulatory
requirements that significantly impact housing affordability without a
commensurate benefit for the environment or the general welfare of our
communities.
Counties also support additional sources of revenue from both the state and federal
level to assist in funding housing for low-income, workforce and other specific
populations. Counties support the Legislature increasing the amount of funding
dedicated to the Housing Trust Fund for the needs of special populations, the
elderly, those with low incomes, and workforce housing. They support increased
administrative flexibility in developing housing programs and the reduction of any
state organizational barriers such as multiple licensing requirements and
overlapping directives. The state should enact additional protective measures to
preserve housing options for low-income and workforce groups as the continued
displacement of these groups directly threatens the housing of thousands of
members of our communities. Increasing the state’s supply of rental housing should
be considered an equal strategy with homeownership for increasing the state’s
housing supply.
Counties also support innovative approaches to help with affordable housing. Those
approaches should include the reuse of existing homes and residential materials,
sweat-equity programs, green building, and energy efficiency investments.
Public Health
Although titled as a specific 2021 Legislative Agenda, note AWC articulates their
policy agenda / position statements more broadly than specific bills –
https://wacities.org/advocacy/City-Legislative-Priorities
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DRAFT WACO Policy and Position Statements
(revised 3/2021)
Courthouse Security and Safety
County elected officials agree that safety and security of public visitors to their offices,
staff, as well as their own personal safety, is at increased risk. They respect that counties
vary in what they feel is appropriate response to this increased risk and reject a “one size
fits all” approach to this issue. All agree that resources are not sufficient to address safety
and security, regardless of approach.
WACO supports the establishment of model standards for counties to determine need for,
and guide implementation of, appropriate training and security measures to ensure the
safety of county elected official offices and staff. WACO advocates for guidance and
resources for counties to develop policies responsive to their differing needs and preferred
approach, including rules related to the presence of firearms in and around county elected
official offices and in field-based work. WACO further supports strong accountability for
threats made against the safety of elected officials.

Adequate Funding and Resources
Adequate funding across the board for delivery of local services is both state and local
issue. The state has historically failed to adequately fund local mandates, despite clear
message from the public that they do so. Proposed legislation frequently fails to consider
the cost and administrative burden on local elected officials’ offices. Local legislative
authority funding and priorities often force county elected officials to compete with one
another for limited funds.
WACO advocates for adequate funding and resources for new and existing services
expected of us by the state. WACO supports establishing and maintaining strong
partnerships with county legislative bodies, ensuring they are equipped with clear
understanding of county elected official resource needs and join us in advocating for and
securing them.

Technology to Deliver Key Services
Technology has moved from a want to a need. But the reality is two-thirds of county
elected officials reported in March 2020 that they lack adequate technology, particularly
given the rising demand for remote access to services. County elected officials need upto-date, secure technology to be able to carry out the responsibilities of their offices.
WACO urges state and local legislative authorities to provide adequate technology
resources for county elected official offices.
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Equitable Public Access to Internet
County elected officials further support legislation and initiatives to provide affordable
broadband and internet access provided equitably to citizens statewide to enable them to
access services.

Recruiting and Retaining a Skilled and Effective Workforce for County Elected
Officials
County elected officials have seen their job applicant pools shrink as wages have failed to
keep pace with the private sector. In addition, with overall less longevity and more
turnover in the workforce, training and retraining for specialized positions has become a
greater expense and more difficult to access.
County elected officials advocate for competitive wages for their staff and collaboration
and funding support for adequate and accessible training programs. State funding for
training should accompany mandates for new services. WACO further advocates for
consideration of the workforce needs of our county elected officials’ offices in state-level
workforce development initiatives and policies. This includes further development and
incentives tied to specialized training in our postsecondary system.

Operational integrity / Maintaining Value of Internal Controls
County elected officials believe in the value of maintaining internal controls throughout our
departments using necessary policies and procedures to hold ourselves accountable to the
public trust. Greater demand on our county elected official offices without commensurate
funding, increases in remote workforce, and demand for increased remote access to
services by citizens greatly challenge this.
WACO opposes legislation and policy that compromises the integrity of the service we
provide and diminishes our ability to maintain internal controls.

Elected Official Privacy
Personal information on elected officials is available to the public per public records act
and some information is in the public interest to ensure qualifications and accountability.
WACO believes a county elected official’s responsibility to be accessible to the public need
not extend to their personal residence. Address disclosures poses a risk to elected
officials and their neighbors.
WACO advocates for creation of an opt-in process for candidates for public office to seek
protection of personal information prior to running for office. Consideration should also be
given to including county elected officials in the address confidentiality program to which
sheriffs and judges are able to apply. In addition, stricter penalties should be established
for those violating the privacy of county elected officials.
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Autonomy of Elected Officials and Offices
County elected officials are aware the Washington State Constitution and RCW intends
their roles are as independently elected officials. County legislative bodies may attempt to
narrow authority and limit control through budget constraints.
WACO opposes efforts to suppress the independent role of county elected officials.
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WSACA Audit Process Workgroup

Issues Involving SAO
1

Issue
LGAC (Local Government Advisory Committee) is
not functional.

2A

Cash basis entities are required to report many
items using GAAP

2B

Cash basis standards set by SAO lack an adequate
development, approval and implementation
process.

3

Inconsistent response to issues that Counties
bring to the SAO

4

Audit invoices are not adequately detailed to
determine type or scope of work performed

5

For accountability audits, the professional
standards in the engagement letter are vague.

Rev: 05/17/2021

Description
The SAO is required by RCW to have a Local
Government Advisory Committee.
Members are from local government. The
intent of the Committee is provide
suggestions, vet proposed policies and
provide feedback. In practice, the
committee has no power, the agenda is
controlled by the SAO and
suggestions/feedback are not welcome.
SAO has provided for some entities to
report using the cash basis. However, the
SAO is requiring many items to be reported
using GAAP. This requires resources and
expertise the entity may not have. It is also
confusing to the entities to determine what
standard to use for individual items.
GAAP accounting standards set by GASB
follow a defined process for development,
approval and implementation that provides
for stakeholder input, comment and
amendment. The SAO sets accounting
standards for cash basis entities. The SAO
does not follow a defined process that
incorporates the benefits of the GASB
model.
The SAO sometimes goes in depth on an
issue in one county but basically ignores a
similar issue in another county. The
appearance is that one of the driving
decision factors is how the issue will appear
to the public rather than how SAO’s
involvement will assist the county.
The invoices received do not provide an
adequate level of detail to determine the
work performed.
For accountability audits, the professional
standards in the engagement letter are
vague. It does not reference a verifiable
standard, such as GAAS or GAGAS. The
client is unable to hold the SAO
accountable and does not know what
quality of work to expect.

Page 1
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WSACA Audit Process Workgroup
6

Peer review is not done by AICPA.

7

There is no regulatory body for the SAO.

8

There is no oversight of how rates are set.

CPA firms who conduct audits must submit
to peer reviews. These are conducted
under the AICPA standards. The peer
review of the SAO is conducted by the
National State Auditors Association.
There is no regulatory body to oversee the
professional conduct of the SAO. CPA firms
are subject to professional oversight by the
WA State Board of Accountancy, which can
impose penalties and revoke licenses.
Explanation of rates is not explained in
detail to the clients. SAO clients are a
captive market; the local governments
cannot effectively choose to “shop
around.”

Additional Issues
1

Communication with State Auditor and upper
management staff are not effective.

2

Use of outside CPA firms is not open for
discussion.

Upper management of the office appears
entrenched in bureaucracy. When an
entity brings a concern to the SA, the
response is essentially canned, provided by
staff or a stump speech. An example, when
Cowlitz County discussed the unrealistic
recommendations made by the SAO in a
recent fraud, it seemed that the SA did not
listen to the auditee’s concerns.
The SA and the SAO are not open to
discussing the potential of clients using CPA
firms for audits (financial, single audit). The
response is essentially canned.

o
WSACA Action Items
1

Identify stakeholders

2

County Audit Workplan

Rev: 05/17/2021

Identify other local government
associations that may have common issues.
Develop a brief work plan for counties to
use when working with the SAO on audits,
special purpose audits or agreed upon
procedures. Example, a brief
checklist/procedures of what to do when a
fraud/theft is suspected/identified. This
would be from the perspective of a client.

Page 2
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